Eagle County Colorado

2021 Budget





Table of Contents

Section	Page
Table of Contents	1
Budget Message	4
Budget Award	6
Eagle County Strategic Plan	7
Goals and Objectives	8
Organizational Chart	9
Budget in Brief	10
Revenue Trends	13
Expenditure Trends	14
Capital Expenditures	15
Current Debt Obligations	16
Personnel Summary	18
Fund Structure	19
Major Funds and Departments	21
Budget by Fund and by Department	22
General Fund - Summary of All Departments	23
General Fund - Board of County Commissioners (Elected Office)	24
General Fund - Assessor (Elected Office)	25
General Fund - Clerk and Recorder (Elected Office)	26
General Fund - Coroner (Elected Office)	27
General Fund - Sheriff's Office (Elected Office)	28
General Fund - Surveyor (Elected Office)	29
General Fund - Treasurer (Elected Office)	30
General Fund - Public Trustee (Elected Office)	31
General Fund - District Attorney	32
General Fund - Board of Equalization	33
General Fund - Elected Officials/Surrendered Funds	34
	Return to Table of Contents

EAGLE COUNTY 2021 BUDGET BOOK PAGE 1

General Fund - Administration	35
General Fund - Economic Development	36
General Fund - Attorney	37
General Fund - Finance	38
General Fund - Finance Administrative	39
General Fund - Human Resources	40
General Fund - Communications and ECGTV	41
General Fund - Innovation and Technology	42
General Fund - GIS	43
General Fund - Planning	44
General Fund - Facilities Management	45
General Fund - Project Management	46
General Fund - Emergency Management	47
General Fund - Emergency Incident Response	48
General Fund - Animal Services	49
General Fund - Environmental Health	50
General Fund - Sustainable Communities	51
General Fund - Engineering	52
General Fund - Building Inspection	53
General Fund - Vegetation Management	54
General Fund - Human Services	55
General Fund - CSU Extension	56
General Fund - Fair and Rodeo	57
Public Trustee Fund (Custodial Fund)	58
Road and Bridge Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	59
Human Services Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	60
Offsite Road Improvement Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	62
ECO Transit Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	63
ECO Trails Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	64
Airport Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	65
Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation (Blended Component Unit)	66
Conservation Trust Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	67
800 MHz Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	68
Emergency Reserve/TABOR Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	69
Public Health Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	70
Mental Health Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	72
Open Space Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	73
Capital Improvements (CIP) Fund	74
Landfill Fund (Enterprise Fund)	76
Fleet Fund (Internal Service Fund)	77
Insurance Reserve Fund (Internal Service Fund)	78
Health Insurance Fund (Internal Service Fund)	79
Housing Operations Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	80
Housing Loan Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	81

Return to Table of Contents EAGLE COUNTY 2021 BUDGET BOOK PAGE 2

Workforce Housing Rental Fund (Special Revenue Fund)	82
Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (Blended Component Unit)	83
The Valley Home Store (Blended Component Unit)	84
Lake Creek Village Apartments (Blended Component Unit)	85
Golden Eagle Apartments (Discretely Presented Component Unit)	86
E911 Fund (Discretely Presented Component Unit)	87
Fund Balances and Net Position	88
Mill Levy	90
Where Do My Property Taxes Go?	90
Long Range Financial Plan	91
2021 Budget Process	92
2021 Budget Calendar	92
Budgetary Level of Control	93
Budget Amendments	93
Statistical and Supplemental Data	94
Form of Government	94
Geography	95
Community Profile	95
Demographics and Economics	97
Budget Approval Resolution	100
Financial Policies	105
Glossary of Terms	131

Budget Message



Administration Jeff Shroll, County Manager 970-328-8605 jeff.shroll@eaglecounty.us www.eaglecounty.us

Eagle County Board of Commissioners 500 Broadway Eagle, CO 81631

Honorable Chair and members of the Board:

We are pleased to provide you with the fiscal year 2021 budget for Eagle County Government which was developed with a focus on allocating resources to programs that further the organization's strategic plan along with funding current levels of service, all of which support our mission of "<u>Creating a Better Eagle</u> <u>County for All</u>." Along with continued alignment with our organization's mission, this budget is mindful of the COVID-19 pandemic and potential economic fallout from the pandemic. We are proud of the diligence and care that all offices and departments took in reviewing their individual budgets. The organization is committed to providing the best possible programs and services to our constituents in a fiscally responsible manner.

The budget is a financial plan that allocates resources to reflect our strategic plan as well as policy directives of the elected officials of Eagle County. While many funds have an excess of revenue over expenditures, some require the use of excess fund balance for a variety of reasons discussed in this book. We are presenting you with a balanced budget for your approval and appropriation. The budget was prepared using the modified accrual budget basis and includes all county funds, blended component units, the Public Trustee custodial fund, and discretely presented component units. The modified accrual budget basis attempts to capture expected funds coming into and going out of county funds. This is further defined in our Financial Policies. The county's comprehensive annual financial report is prepared on a Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) basis, so each year we make a reconciliation between full and modified accrual within that document.

When we set out to draft our 2020 budget a year ago, we had no idea what the year 2020 had in store for us. In 2020 we battled local wildfires, a contested national election, and the global COVID-19 pandemic. We prepared for many potential election issues, but each of our three elections was conducted and certified with few unexpected interruptions. While the Grizzly Creek fire, which started on August 10 and left us with limited interstate commerce for almost two weeks, had an impact on our quality of life, it was the COVID-19 global pandemic that impacted our residents, businesses, visitors, and financials the most. We are so thankful for and proud of our team members for their work in addressing the pandemic. To date, 135 staff members have spent almost 20,000 cumulative hours on addressing the needs of our community members and businesses. This took the form of making emergency grants to individuals, businesses, and non-profit partner organizations, addressing public health needs and implementing public health orders, providing shelter and food to those in need, and working with partner organizations to ensure schools, healthcare facilities, public transportation, airport, and our local businesses on which our tourism heavy economy are so very reliant are as successful as possible. In 2020, we were able to secure \$9 million in grant funding to help offset the additional and unexpected costs of the organization related to the pandemic. Both the revenues and expenditures are included within our 2020 budget which was amended to include these unforeseen costs in accordance with our policies. We have budgeted to receive an additional \$1.7 million in COVID-19 related grant funding in 2021.

The 2021 budget reflects continued support of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as investments in essential county services and our strategic goals and budget priorities which are listed below:

Strategic Goals

- Eagle County is Financially Sound
- Eagle County is a Great Place to Live
- Eagle County Protects the Natural Environment
- Eagle County Promotes a Diverse and Resilient Economy
- Eagle County is a High-Performing Organization

Budget Priorities

- Core Services
- Economic Sustainability
- Affordable Quality Workforce Housing
- Transportation & Mobility
- Supporting Vulnerable Populations
- Climate

The COVID-19 pandemic has exposed fissures in our local economy which have existed for decades - the lack of affordable housing, sustainable and comprehensive transportation systems, and affordable and accessible childcare and healthcare for all of our residents. To address these issues, Eagle County is developing an equitable and inclusive community engagement process which will convene residents to determine what really matters to them and guide us in determining how we can come together to make our community a better place for all. We expect an outcome of this project to be a revised and invigorated strategic plan which we will complete during 2021.

This 2021 budget includes expenditures that will cover the continuation of all core county functions while also allowing for funding key strategic investments. These investments include:

- Design of the entire Eagle Valley Trail the paved arterial core trail that will span the county from Vail Pass at the east end to Glenwood Canyon at the west end and construction of certain sections with a focus to develop a funding plan to construct the remaining sections.
- Improvements to the early childhood system, with a focus on increasing the availability of affordable quality child care and strengthening working families.
- Increased funding to address the county's Climate Action Plan.
- The acquisition of a parcel in west Edwards that can be used to enhance some of the budget priorities listed above.
- Partnerships with local organizations to improve the availability of mental health resources in the community.
- Agreements with the Eagle County School District to ensure our school aged children have access to preventative and intervention services related to tobacco and other substance abuse.
- Funding to ensure our public health and emergency management departments have the resources to lead the community through the COVID-19 pandemic.
- Funding to provide economic recovery for the community to combat negative impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Even with these investments, we will hold strong reserves that will help us weather the unforeseen, including unanticipated drops in revenues or new or continuing emergencies.

We want to thank the board of county commissioners, elected officials and all county departments for their diligence in controlling expenditures and their efforts in developing their budgets to support our strategic plan and areas of focus. We particularly thank Robbie Arndt and Shauna Huber for their hard work and dedication to the budget process.

Sincerely,

Jeff Shroll County Manager and Chief Budget Officer

WR

Jill Klosterman Finance Director

Budget Award



GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award

PRESENTED TO

Eagle County Government

Colorado

For the Fiscal Year Beginning

January 1, 2020

Christophen P. Morrill

Executive Director

Eagle County Strategic Plan

EAGLE COUNTY STRATEGIC PLAN

Mission

Creating a better Eagle County for all

Vision

Eagle County is made up of thriving communities for families and is home to a vibrant workforce, with personal health and wellness achievable for all. Our natural beauty is preserved through purposeful environmental stewardship. We are an international year-round resort destination with a diverse, resilient economy.

Values

EAGLE COUNTY



Goals and Objectives

Eagle County's strategic plan provides our road map as we allocate resources, gauge our performance and ensure we are delivering quality services to our constituents. This plan and its related goals and objectives were developed by the board of county commissioners with assistance from the county's management team and staff.

Eagle County is Financially Sound Define service levels based on available resources and community demands. Increase access to affordable health care and preventative services. Plan for facilities, infrastructure, staffing and maintenance within projected *Expand early childhood development opportunities revenues Deliver county services in the most cost effective and efficient manner possible. Become a more inclusive county welcoming to all. Enhance productivity and customer service through appropriate technology systems *Expand trail connectivity. Leverage county resources through grants, outside funding sources and partnership Complete major traffic improvement projects.



Protect surface and ground water quality and quantity. Protect the forest.

Concentrate development in populated areas guided by smart growth principles. Preserve community buffers and open spaces.

Eagle County Protects the Natural Environment

*Reduce greenhouse gas emissions in county government and our communities. Achieve a community waste diversion goal of 30% by 2030.

Eagle County is a High-Performing Organization

Recruit, retain, and develop a top quality county workforce that reflects community demographics. Require all supervisors, managers and directors have management skills to set targets, meet goals, manage staff, and measure performance. Provide outstanding customer service.

Maintain competitive compensation based upon market and performance.

Eagle County is a Great Place to Live for All

- *Encourage more affordable housing choices, including types and price levels. Expand services and opportunities to meet the needs of vulnerable populations. Actively pursue code and zoning violations that affect health, safety, wildlife, and/or the environment. Create communities with a sense of place. *Connect communities through a variety of transportation systems.
- *Increase availability of mental health and detox services.

Eagle County Promotes a Diverse and Resilient Economy



Increase the number jobs with livable wages Promote business expansion, retention and attraction. Expand commercial air service. Encourage competition and cost reductions in health care. Encourage opportunities for businesses identified in the county economic development plan.

Support innovators and entrepreneurs. Advocate to decrease congestion on I-70.

Evaluate county policies and practices to support business development.

Achieve strategic goals Align the county organization with the mission and vision.

- Practice the core values.
- Require a high level of expertise among supervisors, managers and directors
- Establish a culture of continuous improvement.
- *Promote consistent and transparent internal communication.

Organizational Chart

Eagle County Organizational Chart EAGLE COUNTY Eagle County Residents Clerk & Recorder **Treasurer & Board of County** Coroner Sheriff Assessor Surveyor **Public Trustee** Commissioners County Attorney County Manager Deputy County Manager **Deputy County** Manager Aviation Communications Engineering Facilities & Community Finance Development **Project Management** Human Resources & **ECO Transit** Housing **Organizational Development** Human Information Services Technology **Public Health** & Environment Special Projects Road & Bridge Strategy & Innovation Sustainable Communities

Budget in Brief

Eagle County's 2021 budget includes revenues of \$132 million and expenditures of \$134 million. The result is net expenditure of \$1.1 million which reduces the county's fund balance for a total estimated fund balance across all funds of \$170 million.

Eagle County Revenues - 2021 Budgeted Revenues \$132,457,205

22% Sales & Use Taxes \$29,666,676 21% **Property Taxes** \$28,421,018 17% Charges for Services \$22,181,769 15% Grants and Intergovernmental \$19,587,011 11% Internal Service Fund Charges \$14,960,498 10% Rents & Royalties \$13,021,207 4% Other Revenues \$4.619.026

Sales & Use Taxes: Sales tax includes the voter approved 1% sales tax (approved in 1981), 0.5% mass transit tax (approved in 1995), marijuana sales and excise tax (approved in 2017) and tobacco and nicotine tax (approved in 2019). It also includes the specific ownership tax (enacted in 1937) levied on motor vehicles in Colorado.

Property Taxes: The revenue budget reflects net property tax, which is the total levied minus uncollectible amounts. The calculation of levied property tax is based on the December 2020 assessed valuation and reflects the county's 13% share of total property tax collections (<u>Where Do My Property Taxes Go?</u>).

Charges for Services and Licences, Fees & Permits: This includes fees charged for the services provided by the county. Major revenue sources include Treasurer's fees, landfill fees, airport fees, bus fares, building permits, and motor vehicle and recording fees.

Grants and Intergovernmental: These revenues include federal, state, and local grants as well as revenue from other governments. It also includes the payments in lieu of property tax that we receive from the federal government.

Internal Service Fund Charges: The Fleet fund, Insurance Reserve fund, and Health Insurance fund account for the related county-wide programs. These revenues are offset by expenditures in other county funds.

Rents & Royalties: Rents are collected primarily within the affordable and workforce housing entities and at the airport. Rents are charged to occupants of these facilities.

Other Revenues: Other revenues include investment earnings, interfund transfers, other sources of financing, and miscellaneous income.

Eagle County Expenditures - 2021 Budgeted Expenditures \$133,606,521



Eagle County Fund Balance - 2021 Projected Fund Balance \$169,975,767



The table below shows the trends in actual fund balances for Eagle County in 2017 - 2019 and the projected fund balances for 2020 and 2021.

- We are budgeting to reduce our fund balance across all funds in 2021 by \$1.1 million.
- Detailed information on the changes in fund balance for each fund can be found in the <u>Fund</u> <u>Balances and Net Position</u> section of this report.

Revenue Trends

The tables below show the trends in total revenues and major revenues collected by Eagle County in 2017 - 2019, the estimated revenue for 2020, and the budgeted revenue for 2021.



Revenues for 2021 are budgeted to decrease by 12%, or \$19 million as compared to 2020. The primary reasons for this decline are:

- \$3 million decrease in sales and use taxes. The primary decrease is due to the COVID-19 pandemic and uncertainty around the 2020-2021 ski season. We are projecting a 15% decline in the 1% sales tax and 0.5% mass transit tax as compared to actual 2019 revenue. This decrease is offset by an increase to the marijuana tax due to both an increase in the tax rate and increased sales.
- \$15 million decrease in grants and intergovernmental revenue. This decrease is primarily due to the number and amount of grants that were received by the organization in 2020 related to the COVID-19 pandemic which equated to \$9.1 million. We do not currently anticipate that these grants will be repeated in 2021. Should the federal government offer additional grant funding in 2021, we will incorporate them into the 2021 budget through the budget amendment process.
- \$326 thousand increase in property taxes. 2020 was the last reassessment year, and the results of that reassessment will impact county revenue in 2022. The increase in 2021 is a result of new construction and valuation changes since the last reassessment period.
- \$1.3 million decrease in internal service fund charges which include the move of several vehicles that were in specific departments into a county-wide car share program with the intent of saving overall vehicle costs by reducing the number of vehicles and a reduction in the payments by departments to the health insurance fund which funds are then used to pay health insurance claims.
- \$2 million reduction in other revenues, most notably the decrease in investment earnings because of lower expected short and long-term interest rates.

Expenditure Trends

The tables below show the trends in total expenditures and major expenditures of Eagle County in 2017 - 2019, the estimated expenditures for 2020, and the budgeted expenditures for 2021.



Expenditures for 2021 are budgeted to decrease by 13%, or \$19.5 million as compared to 2020. The primary reasons for this decline are:

- \$2.5 million decrease in salaries and benefits. The decrease is primarily due to the elimination of a total of 11 FTE. Additionally, department contributions to the health insurance fund were decreased due to better than expected health insurance claims. Additional information can be found in the <u>Personnel Summary</u> and <u>Health Insurance Fund</u> sections.
- \$2.4 million decrease in purchased services. This decrease is due to decreases in services at the airport, a decrease in one-time expenditures such as the land use regulations re-write, fewer mental health contracts, and a reduction of health insurance administrative costs.
- \$10.3 million decrease in capital outlay. Eagle County finished up the 22-unit workforce housing
 project in Eagle and the de-icing facility at the airport in 2020. Additionally, three new electric buses
 and the Ridgway property adjacent to the Brush Creek Valley Ranch and Open Space were
 purchased in 2020. None of these projects will be repeated in 2021. Capital projects in 2021 are
 planned at a level consistent with previous years and include the projects outlined in the <u>Capital
 Expenditures</u> section.
- \$2.1 million decrease in other expenditures. County-wide training benefits are reduced in this budget along with interdepartmental services related to vehicles and health insurance. Departmental decreases were offset by the addition of a \$2 million contribution to economic recovery efforts related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Capital Expenditures

An asset is classified as a capital asset if it is used in operations, the cost is greater than \$10,000, and it has a useful life of three years or longer. Total budgeted capital expenditures, including capital and operating leases, for Eagle County in 2021 are \$14.6 million and are distributed across several funds and departments as shown below.

Fund/Department	2021 Amount	Brief Description	Ongoing Costs/Impacts
Capital Improvements Fund	\$ 3,844,090	See CIP Fund description.	Nominal ongoing costs, however climate improvements and cost savings from renewable energy sources.
ECO Transit	\$ 2,645,037	5 diesel bus replacements	Nominal, as vehicles are replacing existing vehicles.
Fleet Services	\$ 2,309,951	Light and heavy vehicle replacement	Nominal costs, however vehicles are typically replaced with more fuel efficient vehicles with safety improvements.
Road & Bridge	\$ 1,463,637	Overlay and chip seal	N/A
ECO Trails	\$ 1,180,000	Horn Ranch to Edwards trail design	Nominal until construction.
Open Space	\$ 982,000	Property acquisition	Nominal, land only.
Airport	\$ 751,090	Taxiway overlay and the purchase of a paint machine.	There will be ongoing costs for the paint machine. Costs are included in the airport operating budget.
Eagle County Air Terminal	\$ 355,000	Gutter drainage system and baggage system upgrades.	Should reduce ongoing costs as both systems currently take significant manual labor to operate.
Landfill Fund	\$ 330,000	Heating system and solar, Hwy 131 Design, upgrades to Eagle and Edwards drop sites	Costs are included in the landfill's operating budget.
911 Authority	\$ 257,394	New phone system	Nominal, will replace existing equipment.
ECHDA	\$ 250,000	West Eagle Due Diligence	Potential large capital cost in future years, but will also generate revenue in future years.
Housing Fund	\$ 225,000	West Eagle Due Diligence	Potential large capital cost in future years, but will also generate revenue in future years.
General Fund/Facilities & Sheriff	\$ 35,569	Ongoing lease of airport property	Included in the operating budget.
	\$ 14,628,768		

Many of the above expenditures are significant and recurring capital expenditures that are based on a standard replacement schedule, most notably the Fleet Services Fund vehicle replacements and ECO bus purchases. We plan for these replacements and, in the case of Fleet Services, charge users a monthly replacement fee which accumulates and is utilized to purchase replacement vehicles. For ECO Transit, buses are scheduled for replacement years in advance and we seek grant opportunities for funding the vehicle purchases.

The capital expenditures are shown in this budget book in the appropriate county fund or department in the capital outlay and leases classification. Many of the expenditures are listed in the <u>ECO Transit</u>, <u>Fleet</u> <u>Services</u>, <u>Road and Bridge</u>, <u>ECO Trails</u> and <u>Open Space</u> and Airport sections of this document. Those funded from the <u>Capital Improvements fund</u> are more fully described in that section of this budget document.

Current Debt Obligations

Per C.R.S. 30-35-201, a county's general obligation debt may not exceed 3% of the valuation for assessment. Eagle County has no general obligation bonded debt; therefore, it is within its legal debt limits. Eagle County does not plan, nor has it budgeted, to issue any general obligation debt in 2021.

	Total Outstanding (12/31/2020)	2021 Principal	2021 Interest		Primary Purpose
Governmental Activities		·			
2015 Justice Center Certificates of Participation	\$ 11,230,000	\$ 1,015,000	\$ 561,500		To fund the 2008-2010 construction of the Eagle County Justice Center.
2019 Two10 Certificates of Participation	\$ 7,650,000	\$ 695,000	\$ 382,500		To fund the construction of Two10 at Castle Peak, a 22-unit workforce housing complex.
Business-Type Activities					·
Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation Revenue Bonds	\$ 32,030,000	\$ 880,000	\$ 1,579,884		To fund the airport terminal renovation project.
Lake Creek Village Apartments Debt	\$ 31,788,471	\$ 792,439	\$ 1,076,273	*	To fund the acquisition and renovation of Lake Creek Village Apartments.
Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation Debt	\$ 1,295,561	\$ 12,841	\$ 63,624		To fund the acquisition and renovation of Golden Eagle Apartments.
Total	\$ 83,994,032	\$ 3,395,280	\$ 3,663,781		

* Lake Creek Village interest payment includes a mortgage insurance payment.

In December 2015, the county, through Eagle Lease Financing Corporation and Eagle County Justice Center Financing Corporation, issued \$19,215,000 in refunding certificates of participation to 1) advance refund all outstanding series 2005 refunding certificates of participation, and 2) to redeem on December 1, 2018 all series 2008 certificates of participation maturing on or after December 1, 2019 and pay principal and interest on the outstanding series 2008 certificates of participation until that redemption date. The series 2015 refunding certificates of participation bear interest at 2% to 5% per annum and mature in annual increments from December 2016 through December 2029. Eagle County has an issuer rating of Aa1 from Moody's Investor Service.

In June 2019, Eagle County issued \$8,310,000 in certificates of participation to finance the construction of a 22-unit workforce housing building located in Eagle, Colorado and to pay costs relating to the execution and delivery of the series 2019 certificates. The series 2019 certificates of participation bear interest at 5% per annum and mature in annual increments from December 2020 through December 2029.

In June 2011, Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation (ECAT) issued Airport Terminal Project Revenue Refunding Bonds in the total principal amount of \$10,070,000. These bonds bear interest from 2.05% to 6% and mature through May 1, 2027. In September 2017, Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation issued Airport Terminal Project Revenue Refunding Bonds in the principal amount of \$29,980,000. The bonds bear interest from 2% to 5% and mature through May 2041. Proceeds from these issues were used to refund all outstanding bonds issued in 2006 as well as fund the airport terminal addition and renovation project. ECAT Bonds are rated Baa2 with a stable outlook by Moody's Investors Service.

In December 2012 and in connection with the acquisition of the Lake Creek Village Apartments, Lake Creek Village LLC entered into a mortgage note agreement with Wells Fargo Bank in the principal amount of \$29,360,000. This mortgage is insured by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under section 223(f). This note bears interest of 2.5% and matures on January 1, 2048. In August 2017, and in connection with the renovation of the apartments, Lake Creek Village entered into an additional mortgage

note agreement with Wells Fargo Bank in the final principal amount of \$7,292,200. This mortgage is insured by HUD under section 241(a). Interest accrues at 4.18% and the note matures on January 1, 2048.

When Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation acquired the Golden Eagle Apartments in March 2003, it assumed a promissory note payable to Rural Housing Service (RHS), a division of the U.S. Department of Agriculture in the amount of \$1,063,478. The note bears interest at 6% and matures on March 14, 2033. In December 2006, the corporation executed another promissory note with Rural Housing Service for \$362,870, the proceeds of which were used to fund capital improvements at the property. The 2006 note bears interest at 5.875% and matures on January 1, 2037. RHS offers an interest subsidy to the corporation for both notes.

Personnel Summary

Positions are approved by the board of county commissioners and are monitored and controlled by human resources and finance department staff. Eagle County's total approved and budgeted full-time equivalent (FTE) count for 2021 is 510.6, which is a decrease of 8.8 positions from the 2020 adopted budget. The following table shows the past three years in budgeted personnel as counted by FTE positions.

The following tables show details about the number of staff within each fund along with a longer term trend of both the General Fund and all other funds.

	2019	2020	2021
General Fund	269.1	252.8	244.5
Public Trustee	1.6	1.6	1.6
Road & Bridge	23.0	23.0	22.0
Human Services	39.3	59.6	60.6
ECO Transit	67.5	67.5	65.0
ECO Trails	2.1	2.1	2.1
Airport	27.4	26.7	23.7
800 MHz	1.0	1.0	1.0
Public Health	30.2	37.2	43.2
Housing	14.5	14.5	14.5
Open Space	3.7	3.7	3.7
Landfill	12.9	12.9	12.9
Fleet	16.0	17.0	16.0
Total (All Funds)	508.0	519.4	510.6
Annual Growth	21.01	11.4	-8.8
Annual Growth %	4.31%	2.25%	-1.70%

- General fund staff reductions were primarily the result of the early retirement incentive program that the county offered in 2020.
- The increase in the Human Services fund is a full-time temporary position that was approved to manage the surge in applications received as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
- The reduction in staffing at ECO Transit reflects one administrative position and several part-time bus operator positions. ECO is operating at a reduced schedule because of the COVID-19 pandemic.
- The reduction in positions at the airport are administrative and maintenance positions. As the airline industry stabilizes, we will review staffing at the airport.
- The largest increase in staffing is in the Public Health Fund. These positions are all full-time temporary positions that were approved in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and expire on December 31, 2021. The majority of these positions are grant funded and directly related to the county's COVID-19 response.



of FTE - General Fund and All Other Funds

Fund Structure

Eagle County Government provides budgets for 28 funds of different types, including its component units. Its funds are divided into eight fund types: general fund, special revenue funds, capital improvements fund, enterprise fund, internal service funds, blended component units, custodial fund, and discretely presented component units. The county has two other custodial funds which account for monies held on behalf of other entities that use the county as a depository, for property taxes collected on behalf of other governments or agencies, and for monies held by the Sheriff's office for inmates. The Public Trustee Fund is the only custodial fund that adopts a budget and is therefore included in this document.

The following table shows all funds of Eagle County Government, each of which is presented in this budget:

General Fund	Special Revenue Funds
Capital Improvements Fund	 Road and Bridge Fund Human Services Fund Offsite Road Improvement Fund
Enterprise Fund	ECO Transit Fund
Landfill Fund	ECO Trails Fund
	Airport Fund
Internal Service Funds	 Conservation Trust Fund
Fleet Fund	• 800 MHz Fund
 Insurance Reserve Fund 	 Emergency Reserve/TABOR Fund
Health Insurance Fund	Public Health Fund
	Mental Health Fund
Blended Component Units	 Housing Loan Fund
 Eagle County Housing and Development 	 Housing Operations Fund
Authority	 Workforce Housing Rentals Fund
The Valley Home Store	Open Space Fund
 Lake Creek Village Apartments 	
Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation	Discretely Presented Component Units
	E911 Authority
Custodial Fund	Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation
Public Trustee Fund	

Eagle County, like many governments, has many individual funds. The county defines its major funds both here below and in its comprehensive annual financial report by looking at both quantitative and qualitative materiality, including comparing relative size of funds as well as considering other qualitative factors. Funds that are considered to be major funds are described below:

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary fund from which the ongoing expenditures of Eagle County Government are paid. Revenues to the General Fund primarily come from the collection of property tax, sales tax, and grants along with charges for services provided by General Fund departments. More than half of the fund's expenditures are for salaries and benefits of employees who work in General Fund departments. All elected offices are funded from the General Fund.

Road and Bridge Fund - This special revenue fund is authorized by C.R.S. 43-2-202 for the purposes of road and bridge construction, maintenance, and administration of all monies received by the county from the state or federal government for expenditure on roads and bridges, and any other monies that may become available for such purpose. This fund's primary revenue sources are property tax, specific ownership tax, highway users tax funding, and payment in lieu of tax dollars from the federal government.

ECO Transit Fund - Pursuant to C.R.S. 29-2-103.5, counties are authorized to levy a county sales tax for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating and maintaining a mass transportation system within the county. In 1995, Eagle County voters approved a one-half of one percent sales tax to be dedicated to this

special revenue fund, the ECO Transit fund. Ten percent of all revenue collected pursuant to this transportation tax are dedicated to trails within Eagle County (**ECO Trails fund**). Additionally, sales tax collected within the Basalt and El Jebel areas is used to fund the Roaring Fork Transportation Authority and that pass-through activity is shown in a separate department within the ECO Transit Fund. Other revenue for the ECO Transit fund consists of federal grants and fare sales.

Airport Fund - C.R.S. 41-4-102 authorized counties to establish special revenue funds through which county owned airports are operated. Revenue sources for this fund consist of rents and charges paid by airlines and other tenants at the airport along with federal and state grants.

Open Space Fund - Eagle County resolution 2003-097 established the Open Space fund. In 2002, Eagle County voters approved a 1.5 mill increase in property taxes to fund this special revenue fund for the purpose of acquiring, maintaining, or permanently preserving open space in Eagle County. Other revenue sources for this fund include federal and state grants.

Landfill Fund - This enterprise fund was authorized pursuant to C.R.S. 30-20-101 by Eagle County Resolution 86-46. The Landfill fund revenue sources are user tipping fees and sales of materials. This fund is classified as an enterprise fund because it reports activity for which a fee is charged to external users and the pricing policy indicates that fees and charges are set to recover all costs of operating the facility.

Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation (ECAT) - Eagle County resolution 1996-40 authorized the formation of this fund and separate legal corporation for the purpose of constructing, owning, and operating a passenger terminal to serve the Eagle County Regional Airport. ECAT's revenues come from airline and vendor rents and charges for services.

Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (ECHDA) - Eagle County resolution 2008-085 authorized the formation of the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority, a statutory housing authority and body corporate and politic, pursuant to C.R.S. 29-4-503. ECHDA was formed to increase the supply of housing that is affordable to those of low income who live or work in Eagle County. ECHDA's revenue comes from property management fees and surplus cash from its housing properties.

Major Funds and Departments

The matrix below shows the relationship between the major county funds and the departments within those funds.

			<u>Fund</u>					
Department	Airport Fund	Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation	EC Housing and Development Authority	ECO Transit Fund	General Fund	Landfill Fund	Open Space Fund	Road & Bridge Fund
Airport & Capital	х							
Animal Services					х			
Assessor					х			
Attorney					х			
Building Inspection					х			
Communications & ECGTV					х			
Coroner					х			
CSU Extension					х			
Eagle County Transportation				х				
Elected Officials/Surrendered					х			
Emergency Incident Response					х			
Emergency Management					х			
Engineering					х	х		
Facilities Management	х			х	х	х	х	
Fair & Rodeo					х			
Finance					х			
Finance Administrative	х	х		х	х	х	х	х
GIS					х			
Housing			Х					
Human Resources					х			
Innovation & Technology					х			
Planning					х			
Project Management	х				х			
Sheriff					х			
Surveyor					х			
Sustainable Communities					х			
Treasurer	х			х	х	х	х	
Vegetation Management					х			

Budget by Fund and by Department

The following table shows a summary of all revenues and expenditures that make up the 2021 Eagle County budget. Actual results are included for 2017-2019. 2020 estimate is the amended budget and represents our best estimate of actual results. Each fund and department is further described in the following pages.

	202	21 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use p	er Capita
\$1,149,316		510.5			.98
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 20		2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Property Taxes	\$ 24,974,491	\$ 26,341,526	\$ 26,231,686	\$ 28,094,683	\$ 28,421,018
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 24,562,233	\$ 26,837,127	\$ 33,088,196		\$ 29,666,676
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 2,418,109	\$ 2,463,263	\$ 2,350,298	\$ 2,271,775	\$ 2,295,192
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 4,292,911	\$ 4,899,280	\$ 5,146,047	\$ 4,535,047	\$ 4,574,893
Federal Grants	\$ 14,358,550	\$ 8,583,215	\$ 25,600,046	\$ 20,322,586	\$ 9,458,158
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 8,298,695	\$ 7,531,972	\$ 11,276,251	\$ 9,346,146	\$ 5,553,960
Charges for Services	\$ 19,990,400	\$ 22,497,515	\$ 21,959,147	\$ 19,204,497	\$ 19,886,577
Internal Service Fund Charges	\$ 16,974,872	\$ 16,533,382	\$ 14,803,695	\$ 16,226,823	\$ 14,960,498
Investment Earnings	\$ 1,408,338	\$ 3,052,049	\$ 4,410,072	\$ 2,584,512	\$ 1,713,175
Rents & Royalties	\$ 12,874,294	\$ 11,942,050	\$ 12,566,816	\$ 11,581,009	\$ 13,021,207
Miscellaneous	\$ 1,028,334	\$ 1,574,512	\$ 1,225,628	\$ 483,803	\$ 301,851
Insurance Premiums & Proceeds	\$ 222,720	\$ 254,632	\$ 502,480	\$ 270,000	\$ 270,000
Other Financing Sources	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 9,715,679	\$ -	\$ -
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 14,241,419	\$ 6,025,963	\$ 6,233,524	\$ 3,305,117	\$ 2,334,000
Total Revenues	\$ 145,645,364	\$ 138,536,486	\$ 175,109,565	\$ 151,165,497	\$ 132,457,205
% Inc/Dec		-5%	26%	-14%	-12%
Expenditures					
FTEs	471.9	489.0	507.5	517.9	510.5
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 52,449,145	\$ 53,955,453	\$ 55,608,262	\$ 59,501,893	\$ 56,956,232
Training Benefits	\$ 502,878	\$ 526,539	\$ 590,783	\$ 521,402	\$ 612,318
Purchased Services	\$ 18,581,166	\$ 20,717,931	\$ 24,067,964	\$ 30,451,218	\$ 28,048,178
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 5,472,254	\$ 5,928,665	\$ 5,865,338	\$ 6,339,840	\$ 6,519,809
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 5,534,779	\$ 7,060,001	\$ 9,535,539	\$ 9,485,348	\$ 8,403,169
Supplies	\$ 5,545,982	\$ 6,348,547	\$ 6,694,728	\$ 7,108,262	\$ 6,082,736
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 33,194,758	\$ 13,249,779	\$ 34,579,117	\$ 24,969,130	\$ 14,628,768
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 3,775,645	\$ 4,048,068	\$ 5,516,083	\$ -	\$ -
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 1,471,635	\$ 1,956,495	\$ 8,308,736	\$ 4,410,679	\$ 2,962,250
Principal Payments	\$ 2,015,000	\$ 2,065,000	\$ 940,000	\$ 3,402,418	\$ 3,395,280
Debt Issuance Cost	\$ 689,391	\$ -	\$ 215,679	\$ -	\$ -
Interest Expense	\$ 2,201,666	\$ 3,209,986	\$ 3,514,140	\$ 3,631,493	\$ 3,663,781
Transfers Out	\$ 13,495,880	\$ 5,982,616	\$ 6,086,327	\$ 3,305,117	\$ 2,334,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 144,930,178	\$ 125,049,080	\$ 161,522,695	\$ 153,126,800	\$ 133,606,521
% Inc/Dec		-14%	29%	-5%	-13%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 715,186	\$ 13,487,405	\$ 13,586,870	\$ (1,961,303)	\$ (1,149,316)
% Inc/Dec		1785.86%	0.74%	-114.44%	-41.40%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 144,792,262	\$ 145,543,670	\$ 159,499,516	\$ 173,086,386	\$ 171,125,083
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 145,507,448	\$ 159,031,075	\$ 173,086,386	\$ 171,125,083	\$ 169,975,767

The following descriptions and tables show the actual and budgeted revenues and expenditures for each county fund. As the county's General Fund operates a variety of programs and activities, it is further broken down by department.

General Fund - Summary of All Departments

The following table shows a summary of all activities included within the county's General Fund. Departments are shown separately on the following pages.

	2	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs	Net Use per Capita			
\$1,867,346		244.46		\$34.09		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues	2017 Actual	2016 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Buuget	
Property Taxes	\$ 15,530,152	\$ 16,380,079	\$ 16,311,773	\$ 15,166,380	\$ 14,998,031	
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 9,156,335	\$ 9,873,870	\$ 13,516,740	\$ 12,915,173	\$ 14,998,031	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines			\$ 2,081,441		\$ 1,851,992	
	\$ 2,040,899	\$ 2,120,584		\$ 1,823,975	\$ 1,767,056	
Intergovernmental Revenue Federal Grants	\$ 1,429,178	\$ 1,531,467	\$ 1,670,522	\$ 1,708,650		
	\$ 3,614,660	\$ 4,503,922	\$ 4,676,181	\$ 6,194,537	\$ 3,084,563	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 1,685,877	\$ 944,723	\$ 5,272,595	\$ 1,002,252	\$ 418,591	
Charges for Services	\$ 7,389,011	\$ 8,122,274	\$ 8,007,159	\$ 7,725,579	\$ 7,966,552	
Investment Earnings	\$ 668,706	\$ 1,703,126	\$ 3,108,518	\$ 1,900,024	\$ 1,243,122	
Rents & Royalties	\$ 99,539	\$ 140,782	\$ 113,886	\$ 86,243	\$ 95,360	
Miscellaneous	\$ 208,971	\$ 146,662	\$ 242,615	\$ 72,700	\$ 73,000	
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 2,790,000	\$ 2,600,000	\$ 1,020,000	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 44,613,328	\$ 48,067,490	\$ 56,021,430	\$ 48,595,513	\$ 43,025,512	
% Inc/Dec	11%	8%	17%	-13%	-11%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	250.56	264.19	270.08	252.79	244.46	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 26,196,310	\$ 26,784,778	\$ 27,162,861	\$ 27,703,501	\$ 25,885,790	
Training Benefits	\$ 323,233	\$ 353,200	\$ 430,197	\$ 337,399	\$ 375,168	
Purchased Services	\$ 4,008,064	\$ 4,259,630	\$ 5,367,125	\$ 5,985,014	\$ 5,464,147	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,680,080	\$ 1,867,389	\$ 1,961,334	\$ 2,119,509	\$ 2,120,821	
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 3,042,746	\$ 4,423,230	\$ 6,773,756	\$ 6,707,439	\$ 5,251,308	
Supplies	\$ 1,138,126	\$ 1,245,711	\$ 1,611,172	\$ 1,473,275	\$ 1,215,305	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 2,573,354	\$ 200,046	\$ 238,891	\$ 50,722	\$ 35,569	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 624,663	\$ 1,036,399	\$ 7,634,599	\$ 3,151,082	\$ 2,694,750	
Interest Expense	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Transfers Out	\$ 6,545,380	\$ 2,862,073	\$ 2,389,687	\$ 2,310,000	\$ 1,850,000	
Total Expenditures	\$ 46,131,958	\$ 43,032,455	\$ 53,569,622	\$ 49,837,941	\$ 44,892,858	
% Inc/Dec	20%	-7%	24%	-7%	-10%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (1,518,629)	\$ 5,035,035	\$ 2,451,807	\$ (1,242,428)	\$ (1,867,346)	
% Inc/Dec	-189%	-432%	-51%	-151%	50%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 28,049,060	\$ 26,530,431	\$ 31,565,465	\$ 34,017,272	\$ 32,774,844	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 26,530,431	\$ 31,565,465	\$ 34,017,272	\$ 32,774,844	\$ 30,907,498	

General Fund - Board of County Commissioners (Elected Office)

Eagle County is governed by a three member board of commissioners (BoCC). The commissioners are elected at large to four-year staggered terms. This board is the county government's main policy making body and serves in an administrative, budgetary and at times a quasi-judicial capacity. The BoCC enacts policies such as the establishment of the property tax rate and the adoption of the budget as well as adopts resolutions or local laws that affect citizens living in unincorporated Eagle County.

	2	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs	Net Use per Capita		
\$1,058,063		3.00		\$19	.32
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 49,041	\$ 50,451	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 49,041	\$ 50,451	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
% Inc/Dec	-5%	3%	-100%		
Expenditures					
FTEs	4.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 484,758	\$ 400,821	\$ 395,252	\$ 384,551	\$ 429,884
Training Benefits	\$ 8,969	\$ 10,394	\$ 20,791	\$ 4,680	\$ 9,275
Purchased Services	\$ 390,093	\$ 300,077	\$ 482,211	\$ 459,351	\$ 492,054
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 472	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 4,050	\$ 9,974	\$ 8,034	\$ 9,070	\$ 7,850
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 100,000	\$ 100,000	\$ 107,500	\$ 921,250	\$ 119,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 988,343	\$ 821,265	\$ 1,013,788	\$ 1,778,902	\$ 1,058,063
% Inc/Dec	0%	-17%	23%	75%	-41%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (939,302)	\$ (770,814)	\$ (1,013,788)	\$ (1,778,902)	\$ (1,058,063)
% Inc/Dec	0%	-18%	32%	75%	-41%

- Prior to 2019, cigarette tax was recorded in this budget. In 2019, that tax was recorded in the finance administrative department budget, and in 2020, with the passage of the county's tobacco tax, these dollars are no longer collected from the state.
- Included in the salaries and benefits classification are both salaries and other employee benefits. The increase in this item represents statutorily required increases in elected salaries.
- Purchased services includes funding for strategic priorities. It also includes memberships in organizations such as Northwest Colorado Council of Governments
- Grants and contributions issued includes the county's non-profit funding. The county makes grants to United Way (\$100k) and Basalt Gives (\$10k), who in turn leverage those dollars to make grants throughout the community.
- The 2020 budget included several capital donations, which will not be funded again in 2021.

General Fund - Assessor (Elected Office)

The Assessor's office is responsible for identifying, classifying and valuing all taxable real and personal property in Eagle County in accordance with statutory provisions. The equitable assessment of property ensures a fair tax distribution relative to the value of similar properties.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs	Net Use per Capita		
\$2,153,804		21.00		\$39.	32
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Charges for Services	\$ 7,184	\$ 1,541	\$ 8,525	\$ 6,540	\$ 7,990
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 19,465	\$ 20,989	\$ 22,174	\$ 20,000	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 26,648	\$ 22,530	\$ 30,698	\$ 26,540	\$ 7,990
% Inc/Dec	9%	-15%	36%	-14%	-70%
Expenditures					
FTEs	22.00	21.00	22.00	22.00	21.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 2,014,583	\$ 1,916,238	\$ 1,986,279	\$ 2,102,996	\$ 1,966,099
Training Benefits	\$ 18,438	\$ 19,560	\$ 17,455	\$ 12,150	\$ 23,598
Purchased Services	\$ 141,550	\$ 139,465	\$ 148,647	\$ 109,218	\$ 138,739
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 9,346	\$ 6,735	\$ 4,368	\$ 7,559	\$ 13,684
Supplies	\$ 10,675	\$ 4,499	\$ 9,048	\$ 17,604	\$ 19,674
Total Expenditures	\$ 2,194,592	\$ 2,086,498	\$ 2,165,796	\$ 2,249,527	\$ 2,161,794
% Inc/Dec	1%	-5%	4%	4%	-4%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (2,167,943)	\$ (2,063,968)	\$ (2,135,098)	\$ (2,222,987)	\$ (2,153,804)
% Inc/Dec	1%	-5%	3%	4%	-3%

• The county Assessor waived personal property declaration late filing penalties in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. These fines are charged on the tax bills and payable in the following year, so there will be no revenue in 2021.

- We eliminated one vacant position in this office, explaining much of the decrease in the salaries and benefits classification.
- 2021 is a reappraisal year, so we are budgeting an increased cost in purchased services for items such as notice of valuations that will be sent to property owners.
- Inderpartmental services increased due to vehicle replacement costs for a car that was replaced.
- Supplies include an increase in operating supplies for the purchase of display monitors and scanners which are needed as CBOE activity is moving to a paperless system and all documentation needs to be scanned.

General Fund - Clerk and Recorder (Elected Office)

The Clerk and Recorder's office provides motor vehicle titling and registration, document recording, election administration, voter registration, liquor licensing, and marriage licenses issuance to the citizens of Eagle County. The clerk's office also serves as the clerk to the board of county commissioners.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use p	Net Use per Capita	
\$693,830		22.73		\$12	.67	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 113,034	\$ 120,438	\$ 154,120	\$ 95,100	\$ 118,800	
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 114,452	\$ -	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ 32,536	\$ 835	\$ 30,660	\$ -	
Charges for Services	\$ 1,364,395	\$ 1,386,677	\$ 1,413,014	\$ 1,717,900	\$ 1,368,900	
Miscellaneous	\$ 52,943	\$ 4,192	\$ 70,269	\$ -	\$ 500	
Total Revenues	\$ 1,530,371	\$ 1,543,841	\$ 1,638,237	\$ 1,958,112	\$ 1,488,200	
% Inc/Dec	2%	1%	6%	20%	-24%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	20.50	21.00	22.21	24.68	22.73	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 1,876,373	\$ 1,918,696	\$ 1,890,248	\$ 2,109,593	\$ 1,902,098	
Training Benefits	\$ 12,218	\$ 17,710	\$ 13,201	\$ 1,700	\$ 14,800	
Purchased Services	\$ 144,208	\$ 252,096	\$ 171,842	\$ 562,088	\$ 224,373	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 3,572	\$ 4,235	\$ 5,650	\$ 6,486	\$ 6,409	
Supplies	\$ 37,567	\$ 58,350	\$ 36,458	\$ 41,920	\$ 34,350	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ (388)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 2,073,550	\$ 2,251,087	\$ 2,117,399	\$ 2,721,787	\$ 2,182,030	
% Inc/Dec	1%	9%	-6%	29%	-20%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (543,178)	\$ (707,246)	\$ (479,162)	\$ (763,675)	\$ (693,830)	
% Inc/Dec	-3%	30%	-32%	59%	-9%	

- We expect document recording and motor vehicle registration fees to decrease from 2020 revenues, which set records in both areas. We expect 2021 to be comparable to 2017-2019 revenues.
- One vacant full-time staff position was eliminated for the 2021 budget and the number of hours budgeted for election judges was also reduced.
- The clerk and recorder's office will administer 1 election in 2021, down from 3 in 2020, which explains the majority of the other expenditure reductions.



General Fund - Coroner (Elected Office)

The duty of the elected Coroner is to conduct comprehensive investigations of all unattended deaths in the county. The Coroner complies with statutory reporting requirements by establishing manner of death, providing scene investigation and identification of the deceased, notification of next of kin and death certificate preparation.

	20	021 Overview					
Net Use of Funds	FTEs			Net Use p	Net Use per Capita		
\$357,158		2.50		\$6.	52		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues							
Charges For Services	\$ 10	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Revenues	\$10	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0		
% Inc/Dec	-	100%					
Expenditures							
FTEs	2.50	2.50	2.50	2.50	2.50		
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 192,775	\$ 205,585	\$ 200,914	\$ 233,195	\$ 225,144		
Training Benefits	\$ 1,999	\$ 4,931	\$ 2,863	\$ 5,000	\$ 5,000		
Purchased Services	\$ 91,626	\$ 81,740	\$ 71,097	\$ 107,437	\$ 107,314		
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 3,107	\$ 10,087	\$ 10,565	\$ 12,035	\$ 11,640		
Supplies	\$ 4,359	\$ 4,535	\$ 4,781	\$ 16,510	\$ 8,060		
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 62,484	\$ 3,593	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Expenditures	\$ 356,350	\$ 310,470	\$ 290,219	\$ 374,177	\$ 357,158		
% Inc/Dec	44%	-13%	-7%	29%	-5%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (356,340)	\$ (310,470)	\$ (290,219)	\$ (374,177)	\$ (357,158)		
% Inc/Dec	44%	-13%	-7%	29%	-5%		

• Coroner operations are expected to remain stable for 2021 with the primary savings coming from the reduction in the contribution to the health insurance fund.

General Fund - Sheriff's Office (Elected Office)

Patrol deputies provide law enforcement services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week to the residents of unincorporated Eagle County including EagleVail, Burns, Edwards, El Jebel, Bond, McCoy, and Dotsero, as well as to the towns of Minturn, Gypsum, and Redcliff. The detention facility is the central holding location for all law enforcement agencies in Eagle County, including local police departments. The facility houses inmates and pre-trial detainees who have been committed to the custody of the Sheriff.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use p	er Capita
\$10,003,794		86.00		\$182.64	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues	2017 Actual	2016 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Buuget
	¢ 1 107 011	¢ 1 240 CC2	¢ 1 270 270	¢ 1 400 CEO	¢ 1 ⊑ 40 € 40
Intergovernmental Revenue Federal Grants	\$ 1,197,011	\$ 1,249,663	\$ 1,378,378	\$ 1,488,650	\$ 1,549,648
	\$ 15,749	\$ 12,629	\$ 137,476	\$ 34,625	\$ 135,063
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 78,669	\$ 68,979	\$ 221,669	\$ 423,533	\$ 350,241
Charges for Services	\$ 260,521	\$ 508,521	\$ 378,957	\$ 340,500	\$ 329,500
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 76,249	\$ 58,782	\$ 55,325	\$ 50,000	\$ 50,000
Investment Earnings	\$ 29	\$ 34	\$ 32	\$ -	\$ -
Rents & Royalties	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 24,000
Miscellaneous	\$ 76,417	\$ 66,260	\$ 67,424	\$ 50,000	\$ 50,000
Total Revenues	\$ 1,704,644	\$ 1,964,869	\$ 2,239,260	\$ 2,387,308	\$ 2,488,452
% Inc/Dec	12%	15%	14%	7%	4%
Expenditures					
FTEs	84.00	88.50	88.97	88.97	86.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 8,654,134	\$ 9,060,320	\$ 9,077,810	\$ 9,534,558	\$ 8,744,115
Training Benefits	\$ 102,360	\$ 93,156	\$ 100,898	\$ 161,000	\$ 121,000
Purchased Services	\$ 958,980	\$ 842,708	\$ 1,061,711	\$ 1,490,849	\$ 1,448,622
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 739,357	\$ 840,791	\$ 896,989	\$ 1,048,846	\$ 1,048,192
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 588,413	\$ 604,833	\$ 618,778	\$ 640,030	\$ 640,030
Supplies	\$ 459,795	\$ 546,134	\$ 769,975	\$ 596,750	\$ 469,105
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 71,991	\$ 17,176	\$ 105,560	\$ 25,682	\$ 5,682
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 23,467	\$ 434,745	\$ 36,132	\$ 21,500	\$ 15,500
Total Expenditures	\$ 11,598,498	\$ 12,439,863	\$ 12,667,852	\$ 13,519,215	\$ 12,492,246
% Inc/Dec	2%	7%	2%	7%	-8%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (9,893,854)	\$ (10,474,994)	\$ (10,428,592)	\$ (11,131,907)	\$ (10,003,794)
% Inc/Dec	0%	6%	0%	7%	-10%

• The Sheriff's office is split between two primary departments: operations (which includes administration, patrol, victims services, and town contracts) and detentions.

- Operations has 58 FTE, revenues of \$2,352,452 and expenditures of \$8,876,117.
- Detentions has 28 FTE, revenues of \$136,000 and expenditures of \$3,616,129.
- Salaries and benefits decreased due to the elimination of 4 full-time positions, offset by the increase of two part-time positions to full-time.
- All other expenditures remained relatively stable for 2021.

General Fund - Surveyor (Elected Office)

The duties of the Surveyor include representing the county in boundary disputes, accepting and indexing land survey plats deposited in the Clerk and Recorder's office, examining survey plats and maps before they are recorded to ensure proper content and form, and performing surveys to establish boundaries of county property, including road rights of way, and any other surveys necessary to the county.

	2	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs	Net Use per Capita		
\$15,550		1.00		\$0.	28
	0017.1.1				
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Expenditures					
FTEs	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 38,479	\$ 35,101	\$ 14,828	\$ 15,518	\$ 14,630
Purchased Services	\$ 749	\$ 751	\$ 531	\$ 920	\$ 920
Supplies	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 39,228	\$ 35,852	\$ 15,359	\$ 16,438	\$ 15,550
% Inc/Dec	0%	-9%	-57%	7%	-5%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (39,228)	\$ (35,852)	\$ (15,359)	\$ (16,438)	\$ (15,550)
% Inc/Dec	0%	-9%	-57%	7%	-5%

• Surveyor operations are expected to remain stable for 2021.

General Fund - Treasurer (Elected Office)

The Treasurer is responsible for mailing property tax notices, collecting and disbursing taxes to the taxing authorities, receiving and depositing all monies for Eagle County, disbursing monies upon order of the board of county commissioners, and investing all excess county funds.

	20	21 Overview					
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita		
\$4,298,890		7.45		\$78.	49		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues							
Charges for Services	\$ 4,101,893	\$ 4,375,631	\$ 4,506,565	\$ 4,340,522	\$ 4,551,450		
Investment Earnings	\$ 668,677	\$ 1,703,092	\$ 3,108,486	\$ 1,900,000	\$ 1,243,098		
Miscellaneous	\$ 3,218	\$ 3,746	\$ 3,821	\$ 3,500	\$ 3,500		
Total Revenues	\$ 4,773,788	\$ 6,082,469	\$ 7,618,872	\$ 6,244,022	\$ 5,798,048		
% Inc/Dec	3%	27%	25%	-18%	-7%		
Expenditures							
FTEs	6.50	6.95	7.15	7.45	7.45		
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 681,332	\$ 660,692	\$ 646,367	\$ 726,622	\$ 707,917		
Training Benefits	\$ 473	\$ 1,572	\$ 687	\$ 1,750	\$ -		
Purchased Services	\$ 116,432	\$ 90,482	\$ 92,321	\$ 99,016	\$ 93,266		
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 630,123	\$ 686,910	\$ 739,799	\$ 690,000	\$ 690,000		
Supplies	\$ 6,805	\$ 11,697	\$ 6,076	\$ 9,550	\$ 7,975		
Interest Expense	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Expenditures	\$ 1,435,164	\$ 1,451,352	\$ 1,485,251	\$ 1,526,938	\$ 1,499,158		
% Inc/Dec	13%	1%	2%	3%	-2%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 3,338,624	\$ 4,631,117	\$ 6,133,621	\$ 4,717,084	\$ 4,298,890		
% Inc/Dec	0%	39%	32%	-23%	-9%		

• Charges for services include statutory fees earned by the Treasurer for the collection of property tax and other revenues.

• Investment earnings are budgeted to decrease by \$650,000 due to lower interest rates on liquid and longer term investments.

General Fund - Public Trustee (Elected Office)

The Public Trustee's office provides services relating to real estate foreclosures and releases of deeds of trust.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds	FTEs			Net Addition per Capita		
\$0 Account Classification		0.00		\$0.	00	
	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 59,228	\$ 74,219	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Charges for Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Investment Earnings	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Total Revenues	\$ 59,228	\$ 74,219	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
% Inc/Dec	-43%	25%	-100%			
Expenditures						
FTEs	1.50	1.55	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 55,947	\$ 72,907	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Purchased Services	\$ 3,119	\$ 1,535	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Supplies	\$ 70	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
Total Expenditures	\$ 59,136	\$ 74,442	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
% Inc/Dec	-44%	26%	-100%			
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 92	\$ (223)	\$ -	\$ -	\$	
% Inc/Dec	-118%	-343%	-100%			

- Public Trustee activity was moved from the General Fund to a separate custodial fund in 2019 in connection with the implementation of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 84.
- You can find information for years 2019 to 2021 in the <u>Public Trustee Fund</u> section of this book.

General Fund - District Attorney

The Office of the District Attorney (DA), Fifth Judicial District, operates the district attorney function for the counties of Clear Creek, Eagle, Lake, and Summit. The overall cost of the DA's office is split between each of the counties based on a formula that considers population, assessed valuation, taxable sales, and caseload of each county.

	2	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			er Capita	
\$1,717,236		N/A		\$31.35		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Expenditures						
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 1,626,352	\$ 1,733,950	\$ 1,957,129	\$ 1,968,358	\$ 1,717,236	
Total Expenditures	\$ 1,626,352	\$ 1,733,950	\$ 1,957,129	\$ 1,968,358	\$ 1,717,236	
% Inc/Dec	-3%	7%	13%	1%	-13%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (1,626,352)	\$ (1,733,950)	\$ (1,957,129)	\$ (1,968,358)	\$ (1,717,236)	
% Inc/Dec	-3%	7%	13%	1%	-13%	

• In Colorado, District Attorneys are elected for each of the 22 judicial districts in the state. The DA's office maintains its own books and records and is responsible for approving its budget.

- The 5th Judicial District DA's office has total budgeted expenditures of \$4.4 million for 2021 (a 7% reduction from \$4.7 million in 2020). The majority of the decrease is due to lower staffing.
- These expenditures are paid for by a combination of contributions from each of the four counties, grant revenue, and mandated costs. The contributions from each of the four counties is determined using a formula based upon the following factors within each county: population, assessed valuation, net taxable sales and actual caseload within each county.
- This budget represents Eagle County's contribution to the DA's office.

General Fund - Board of Equalization

The Board of Equalization (CBOE) reviews the valuations of all taxable property appearing in the assessment roll of the county. The board may correct any errors made by the assessor by raising, lowering, or adjusting any valuation so that it is just and equalized within the county. Pursuant to C.R.S. 39-8-102, the CBOE appoints independent hearing officers who are experienced in property valuation to conduct hearings, make findings, and submit recommendations to the CBOE for final decision.

2021 Overview							
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita		
\$84,157		0.22		\$1.	54		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Expenditures							
FTEs	0.30	0.30	0.22	0.10	0.22		
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 19,886	\$ 1,542	\$ 21,930	\$ 16,472	\$ 37,707		
Purchased Services	\$ 13,102	\$ 1,127	\$ 63,734	\$ 14,700	\$ 45,850		
Supplies	\$ 335	\$ -	\$ 621	\$ 500	\$ 600		
Total Expenditures	\$ 33,324	\$ 2,669	\$ 86,285	\$ 31,672	\$ 84,157		
% Inc/Dec	772%	-92%	3133%	-63%	166%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (33,324)	\$ (2,669)	\$ (86,285)	\$ (31,672)	\$ (84,157)		
% Inc/Dec	772%	-92%	3133%	-63%	166%		

• 2021 is a reappraisal year, so we expect increased costs for hearing officers in 2021 compared to the prior year.

General Fund - Elected Officials/Surrendered Funds

This department was created in 2020 to account for all found, abandoned, and donated money collected by the Sheriff's office. The money in this fund can be used by any elected official for recognizing and rewarding employees or for reinvesting into the local community.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$54,976		N/A		\$1.	00	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Estimate 2021 Bu \$ - \$ - \$ 24 \$ - \$ - \$ 24 \$ - \$ - \$ 10,000 \$ 0 \$ 0 \$ 10,024 \$ 0 \$ 0 \$ 0%	2021 Budget		
Revenues	2017740000	201071000	20197/0000	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Investment Earnings	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 24	\$ 24	
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 10,000	\$ 10,000	
Total Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$10,024	\$10,024	
% Inc/Dec					0%	
Expenditures						
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 16,250	\$ 16,250	
Purchased Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 16,250	\$ 16,250	
Supplies	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 16,250	\$ 16,250	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 16,250	\$ 16,250	
Total Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 65,000	\$ 65,000	
% Inc/Dec					0%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ (54,976)	\$ (54,976)	
% Inc/Dec					0%	

• We expect expenditures from this department to be consistent with 2020 budgeted expenditures.

General Fund - Administration

It is the duty of the county manager to assist all elected officials and department heads in the performance of their duties. The county manager is one of two positions appointed by the BoCC. The other is the county attorney.

	20	21 Overview			
Net Use of Funds	FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$1,483,457		6.00		\$27	.08
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 80,539	\$ 60,000	\$ 60,000
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 55,000	\$ -
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 18,250	\$ 34,040	\$ -
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 12,500	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$111,289	\$149,040	\$60,000
% Inc/Dec				34%	-60%
Expenditures					
FTEs	3.00	6.00	6.00	6.00	6.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 660,614	\$ 932,936	\$ 1,055,441	\$ 1,095,015	\$ 1,135,657
Training Benefits	\$ 5,308	\$ 7,437	\$ 19,715	\$ 5,441	\$ 8,320
Purchased Services	\$ 27,714	\$ 112,785	\$ 135,820	\$ 158,680	\$ 134,655
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 3,953	\$ 11,780	\$ 12,333	\$ 6,209	\$ 3,525
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 87,500	\$ 87,500	\$ 211,220	\$ 207,500	\$ 207,500
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 200,000	\$ 226,000	\$ 229,476	\$ 60,800	\$ 53,800
Total Expenditures	\$ 985,089	\$ 1,378,438	\$ 1,664,006	\$ 1,533,645	\$ 1,543,457
% Inc/Dec	27%	40%	21%	-8%	1%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (985,089)	\$ (1,378,438)	\$ (1,552,717)	\$ (1,384,605)	\$ (1,483,457)
% Inc/Dec	27%	40%	13%	-11%	7%

• The \$34k state grant to fund the Eagle River Valley Complete Count Committee programming related to the 2020 United States Census has been removed from the 2021 budget.

• Purchased services includes \$125,000 for consulting and strategic plan priorities.

• Intergovernmental expenditures include contributions to the Front County Range program (\$120,000) and Vail Pass safety (\$87,500).

• Grants issued includes a contribution to the Mountain Family Health Center (\$53,800).
General Fund - Economic Development

The economic development department was formed in 2019 to host the newly created Northwest Small Business Development Center along with other economic development activity funded by Eagle County Government.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds	FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$125,837		1.31		\$2.	30
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 80,000	\$ 115,000	\$ 150,000
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 100,870	\$ 55,000	\$ 45,000
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 6,000	\$ 6,000
Total Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$180,870	\$176,000	\$201,000
% Inc/Dec				-3%	14%
Expenditures					
FTEs	0.00	0.00	1.00	1.00	1.31
Salaries & Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 43,148	\$ 109,965	\$ 107,188
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 5,000	\$ 5,000
Purchased Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 27,309	\$ 208,126	\$ 209,649
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,695	\$ 7,500	\$ 5,000
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 5,000	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 73,152	\$ 335,591	\$ 326,837
% Inc/Dec				359%	-3%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 107,718	\$ (159,591)	\$ (125,837)
% Inc/Dec				-248%	-21%

- The primary funding for the Small Business Development Center (SBDC) comes from the United States Small Business Administration and is shown in the federal grants revenue classification. Additionally, CARES Act funding is expected for this work in both 2020 and 2021.
- Other grants include grants from neighboring communities that fund programs offered by the SBDC.
- Purchased services include funding to operate the SBDC, including business consulting services and marketing for the SBDC programs. It also includes \$125,000 for the Vail Valley Partnership and \$15,000 to the Basalt Chamber, both of which provide services to further the BoCC strategic goal of promoting a diverse and resilient economy.

General Fund - Attorney

The county attorney is appointed by the board of county commissioners to provide legal services to all elected county officials, departments, boards and commissions. The attorney's office represents the BoCC in all legal matters including the preparation of contracts and the prosecution and defense of lawsuits by and against the county.

	20	21 Overview					
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita		
\$1,284,625		6.00		\$23	45		
	2017.4	2010 4 / 1		2020 5 11 1	2024 5		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues							
Miscellaneous	\$ 1,123	\$ 3,938	\$ 2,261	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Revenues	\$ 1,123	\$ 3,938	\$ 2,261	\$ -	\$ -		
% Inc/Dec	-42%	251%	-43%	-100%			
Expenditures							
FTEs	5.40	5.20	6.00	6.00	6.00		
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 765,028	\$ 879,503	\$ 997,274	\$ 1,041,723	\$ 1,030,606		
Training Benefits	\$ 5,578	\$ 8,191	\$ 3,064	\$ 10,000	\$ 5,000		
Purchased Services	\$ 149,923	\$ 254,674	\$ 290,413	\$ 452,619	\$ 245,619		
Supplies	\$ 3,296	\$ 2,545	\$ 5,806	\$ 3,400	\$ 3,400		
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Expenditures	\$ 923,825	\$ 1,144,913	\$ 1,296,556	\$ 1,507,742	\$ 1,284,625		
% Inc/Dec	-6%	24%	13%	16%	-15%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (922,703)	\$ (1,140,975)	\$ (1,294,295)	\$ (1,507,742)	\$ (1,284,625)		
% Inc/Dec	-6%	24%	13%	16%	-15%		

• Purchased services for 2021 reflects the ongoing, but lower than 2020, need of litigation support for tax appeals.

General Fund - Finance

The finance department is responsible for preparing and monitoring the county's annual budget, compiling financial information, and contracting for and assisting with annual audits of all county financials. It also manages all borrowings for the county. The department performs the accounting duties for all funds, processes invoices and payroll, and monitors grants received by the county.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs	Net Use per Capita		
\$1,135,628		8.00		\$20	.73
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Expenditures					
FTEs	7.00	7.00	6.50	7.00	8.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 838,191	\$ 714,474	\$ 741,534	\$ 834,109	\$ 914,339
Training Benefits	\$ 16,343	\$ 9,036	\$ 13,689	\$ 1,862	\$ 6,950
Purchased Services	\$ 100,665	\$ 87,108	\$ 88,159	\$ 92,890	\$ 109,889
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 6,657	\$ 3,691	\$ 2,646	\$ 20,151	\$ 104,450
Total Expenditures	\$ 961,855	\$ 814,308	\$ 846,029	\$ 949,012	\$ 1,135,628
% Inc/Dec	3%	-15%	4%	12%	20%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (961,855)	\$ (814,308)	\$ (846,029)	\$ (949,012)	\$ (1,135,628)
% Inc/Dec	3%	-15%	4%	12%	20%

• A need was identified to more carefully consider and plan for the management of risk across the county organization, so a new Risk Manager position was added to this department.

- The county audit and cost allocation plan are budgeted in this department within the purchased services classification.
- A need to more efficiently identify strategic priorities throughout the budget has been identified and software to assist with this priority is budgeted for 2021.

General Fund - Finance Administrative

The purpose of this department is to collect revenue that impacts several General Fund departments, including property tax and sales tax revenue as well as the charge and collection of administrative fees to other county funds.

	20	21 Overview					
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita		
\$27,761,048		N/A		\$506	.85		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues							
Property Taxes	\$ 15,530,152	\$ 16,380,079	\$ 16,311,773	\$ 15,166,380	\$ 14,998,031		
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 9,156,335	\$ 9,873,870	\$ 13,516,740	\$ 12,915,173	\$ 11,527,245		
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 123,899	\$ 157,134	\$ 211,605	\$ 160,000	\$ 157,408		
Federal Grants	\$ 2,445,898	\$ 3,439,769	\$ 3,001,732	\$ 3,414,562	\$ 2,725,000		
Charges for Services	\$ 278	\$ 1,047	\$ 478	\$ -	\$ -		
Rents & Royalties	\$ 31,762	\$ 49,964	\$ 10,384	\$ -	\$ -		
Miscellaneous	\$ 71,234	\$ 63,505	\$ 63,835	\$ -	\$ -		
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 2,790,000	\$ 2,600,000	\$ 1,020,000	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Revenues	\$ 30,149,557	\$ 32,565,367	\$ 34,136,548	\$ 31,656,115	\$ 29,407,684		
% Inc/Dec	11%	8%	5%	-7%	-7%		
Expenditures							
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 156,264	\$ 14,553	\$ (59,758)	\$ 239,727	\$ 25,000		
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Purchased Services	\$ (3,095,908)	\$ (3,164,408)	\$ (3,263,156)	\$ (3,396,391)	\$ (2,933,887)		
Supplies	\$ 21,004	\$ 16,210	\$ 18,379	\$ 22,000	\$ 18,000		
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,288	\$ 1,334	\$ 734	\$ 818	\$ 981		
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 640,482	\$ 1,586,845	\$ 3,214,583	\$ 3,560,988	\$ 2,686,542		
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Transfers Out	\$ 6,545,380	\$ 2,862,073	\$ 2,389,687	\$ 2,310,000	\$ 1,850,000		
Total Expenditures	\$ 4,268,510	\$ 1,316,606	\$ 2,300,470	\$ 2,737,142	\$ 1,646,636		
% Inc/Dec	237531%	-69%	75%	19%	-40%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 25,881,047	\$ 31,248,761	\$ 31,836,077	\$ 28,918,973	\$ 27,761,048		
% Inc/Dec	-5%	21%	2%	-9%	-4%		

- In the <u>Revenue Trends</u> section of this document we talk in detail about our projections for property tax and sales and use tax revenues.
- The federal grant revenue includes payment in lieu of taxes which is split between the general fund and road and bridge fund as well as the National Forest payment that will be paid to the school districts through the Secure Rural Schools program. The payment of the SRS funds shows up in the intergovernmental expense classification.
- The decrease in federal grants and intergovernmental expenditures relates to a pass-through grant for the Northwest Loan Fund which is not budgeted in 2021. The Northwest Loan Fund intends to apply for additional grant funding in 2021, but it is not yet secured.
- The negative amount in purchased services represents the collection of an administrative fee from other county funds.
- The transfer out is to the public health fund. Costs related to water quality were moved from the public health fund to the general fund, explaining the decrease in the transfer from 2020.

General Fund - Human Resources

Every employee is an integral part of the success of Eagle County. The human resources department is responsible for maintaining the personnel function for the county, including competitive compensation and benefits programs, training and development, and employee recognition, motivation, and wellness programs.

2021 Overview									
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use per Capita					
\$1,148,749		6.00		\$20	.97				
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget				
Expenditures									
FTEs	4.50	4.50	6.00	6.00	6.00				
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 616,179	\$ 622,489	\$ 716,547	\$ 794,463	\$ 812,549				
Training Benefits	\$ 52,177	\$ 76,853	\$ 109,433	\$ 66,500	\$ 83,500				
Purchased Services	\$ 185,216	\$ 212,756	\$ 228,416	\$ 231,600	\$ 250,550				
Supplies	\$ 1,627	\$ 2,386	\$ 1,795	\$ 5,250	\$ 2,150				
Total Expenditures	\$ 855,200	\$ 914,483	\$ 1,056,191	\$ 1,097,813	\$ 1,148,749				
% Inc/Dec	4%	7%	15%	4%	5%				
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (855,200)	\$ (914,483)	\$ (1,056,191)	\$ (1,097,813)	\$ (1,148,749)				
% Inc/Dec	4%	7%	15%	4%	5%				

• Salaries & benefits includes the cost of the human resources staff as well as \$50,000 for a spot bonus program and \$16,650 for service awards to be used throughout the organization.

- Training benefits include both human resource staff training and organization wide training like tuition reimbursement and leadership development.
- Purchased services include recruiting expenses, and the ongoing costs of our human resource management software, which includes payroll processing.

General Fund - Communications and ECGTV

The communications department is responsible for facilitating transparency in Eagle County Government. It focuses on four core areas; public outreach, media relations, crisis communications and internal communications.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use per Capita		
\$531,591		6.00		\$9.	71	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges for Services	\$ 452,477	\$ 443,945	\$ 431,305	\$ 410,000	\$ 410,000	
Miscellaneous	\$ 75	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 452,552	\$ 443,945	\$ 431,305	\$ 410,000	\$ 410,000	
% Inc/Dec		-2%	-3%	-5%	0%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	5.00	5.00	5.00	6.00	6.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 575,844	\$ 576,914	\$ 537,665	\$ 751,986	\$ 727,301	
Training Benefits	\$ 3,151	\$ 576	\$ 8,089	\$ 1,000	\$ 1,000	
Purchased Services	\$ 44,399	\$ 56,830	\$ 70,885	\$ 189,335	\$ 148,835	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,551	\$ 5,304	\$ 5,354	\$ 6,553	\$ 7,619	
Supplies	\$ 36,392	\$ 45,184	\$ 90,081	\$ 79,210	\$ 56,836	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ 15,217	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 661,338	\$ 700,024	\$ 712,075	\$ 1,028,084	\$ 941,591	
% Inc/Dec	-5%	6%	2%	44%	-8%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (208,786)	\$ (256,079)	\$ (280,770)	\$ (618,084)	\$ (531,591)	
% Inc/Dec		23%	10%	120%	-14%	

• Charges for services are the amounts paid by cable companies for franchise fees.

• Purchased services increased in 2020 and 2021 for digital transformation expenditures, including web redesign, content management system, and integrated services functionality.

General Fund - Innovation and Technology

The innovation and technology (IT) department has overall responsibility for planning and implementing technology solutions and infrastructure within Eagle County Government. It supports county IT customers and protects county assets and data from harm.

	20	21 Overview					
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita		
\$2,427,734		11.00		\$44.	32		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues					0		
Miscellaneous	\$ 1,688	\$ 81	\$ 700	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Revenues	\$ 1,688	\$ 81	\$ 700	\$ -	\$ -		
% Inc/Dec		-95%	764%	-100%			
Expenditures							
FTEs	10.00	10.00	11.16	11.16	11.00		
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 1,106,203	\$ 1,136,163	\$ 1,236,653	\$ 1,305,013	\$ 1,283,391		
Training Benefits	\$ 25,236	\$ 18,197	\$ 24,238	\$ 18,000	\$ 22,730		
Purchased Services	\$ 883,463	\$ 893,055	\$ 919,097	\$ 995,825	\$ 1,010,923		
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,363	\$ 1,391	\$ 905	\$ 965	\$ -		
Supplies	\$ 119,390	\$ 119,160	\$ 184,691	\$ 140,421	\$ 110,690		
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ 99,383	\$ 16,320	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Expenditures	\$ 2,135,654	\$ 2,267,349	\$ 2,381,903	\$ 2,460,224	\$ 2,427,734		
% Inc/Dec	-1%	6%	5%	3%	-1%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (2,133,966)	\$ (2,267,268)	\$ (2,381,203)	\$ (2,460,224)	\$ (2,427,734)		
% Inc/Dec	-1%	6%	5%	3%	-1%		

• The IT department pays for many of the organization's business application software products within the purchased services classification. These software applications include Collectware, Eagle Assessor, Energov, GIS, and New World. The price of these contracts typically increases between 1-3% each year. Additionally, IT infrastructure costs are included in this classification, and these products include data connectivity services, workstation licensing, cyber security, and support.

• Supplies include personal computers and applications for new staff members as well as replacement costs for existing staff. With fewer staff members expected in 2021, these costs have decreased.

General Fund - GIS

The geographic information system (GIS) department generates and maintains spatial information which aids in the creation of maps and data analysis to support county departments and their customers. The department provides strategic GIS support to departments while offering data dissemination and display, map production, and property queries to the public through the GIS Viewer.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$242,832		1.85		\$4.	43	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges for Services	\$ 19,035	\$ 11,208	\$ 4,595	\$ 5,000	\$ 5,000	
Total Revenues	\$ 19,035	\$ 11,208	\$ 4,595	\$ 5,000	\$ 5,000	
% Inc/Dec	38%	-41%	-59%	9%	0%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	1.85	1.85	1.85	1.85	1.85	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 244,315	\$ 232,048	\$ 242,282	\$ 249,675	\$ 244,627	
Training Benefits	\$ 4,284	\$ 5,866	\$ 4,976	\$ 265	\$ 1,295	
Purchased Services	\$ 948	\$ 663	\$ 1,067	\$ 569	\$ 540	
Supplies	\$ 5,802	\$ 1,424	\$ 1,885	\$ 1,457	\$ 1,370	
Total Expenditures	\$ 255,348	\$ 240,001	\$ 250,210	\$ 251,966	\$ 247,832	
% Inc/Dec	1%	-6%	4%	1%	-2%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (236,313)	\$ (228,793)	\$ (245,615)	\$ (246,966)	\$ (242,832)	
% Inc/Dec	-1%	-3%	7%	1%	-2%	

• We expect costs in this department to remain stable in 2021.

General Fund - Planning

The planning department processes land use files, provides customer service for zoning inquiries, and develops and implements long range planning.

	2	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$862,805		9.00		\$15	.75	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 31,663	\$ 71,237	\$ 60,728	\$ 63,000	\$ 63,000	
Charges for Services	\$ 102,005	\$ 77,840	\$ 86,769	\$ 66,800	\$ 66,800	
Total Revenues	\$ 133,668	\$ 149,077	\$ 147,498	\$ 129,800	\$ 129,800	
% Inc/Dec	22%	12%	-1%	-12%	0%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	6.97	7.00	7.00	9.00	9.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 838,800	\$ 824,275	\$ 739,226	\$ 977,611	\$ 929,919	
Training Benefits	\$ 1,472	\$ 8,008	\$ 14,890	\$ 2,062	\$ 3,200	
Purchased Services	\$ 156,914	\$ 91,457	\$ 55,408	\$ 377,889	\$ 49,480	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 10,871	\$ 12,310	\$ 12,887	\$ 15,666	\$ 8,306	
Supplies	\$ 4,615	\$ 1,717	\$ 16,492	\$ 2,300	\$ 1,700	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 1,012,672	\$ 937,767	\$ 838,902	\$ 1,375,528	\$ 992,605	
% Inc/Dec	15%	-7%	-11%	64%	-28%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (879,003)	\$ (788,690)	\$ (691,405)	\$ (1,245,728)	\$ (862,805)	
% Inc/Dec	14%	-10%	-12%	80%	-31%	

• Purchased services in 2018-2020 includes a full land use regulations revision and an update of the county's comprehensive plan. Purchased services for 2021 includes \$15,000 for the Mid-Valley Trails committee administration and \$10,000 for additional support for the completion of the land use regulations revision and comprehensive plan.

General Fund - Facilities Management

Facilities management provides property management services for all county buildings, fairgrounds and meeting room rental programs, security, risk management, maintenance, and planning and development for county facilities.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$3,198,244		12.15		\$58.	39	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges for Services	\$ 17,451	\$ 26,036	\$ 36,164	\$ 37,793	\$ 50,000	
Rents & Royalties	\$ 67,776	\$ 90,819	\$ 103,502	\$ 86,243	\$ 71,360	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 7,093	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 12,000	\$ -	
Miscellaneous	\$ 622	\$ 269	\$ 17,154	\$ 200	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 92,943	\$ 117,123	\$ 156,821	\$ 136,236	\$ 121,360	
% Inc/Dec	-5%	26%	34%	-13%	-11%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	11.90	13.40	13.15	14.15	12.15	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 1,222,150	\$ 1,318,170	\$ 1,337,753	\$ 1,437,850	\$ 1,180,718	
Training Benefits	\$ 6,160	\$ 5,853	\$ 9,374	\$ 4,000	\$ 6,000	
Purchased Services	\$ 1,608,841	\$ 1,534,927	\$ 1,676,229	\$ 1,794,090	\$ 1,817,091	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 114,624	\$ 126,836	\$ 113,263	\$ 146,230	\$ 163,308	
Supplies	\$ 167,667	\$ 128,924	\$ 155,160	\$ 135,300	\$ 122,600	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 14,953	\$ 29,666	\$ 29,121	\$ 29,887	\$ 29,887	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 3,134,396	\$ 3,144,377	\$ 3,320,901	\$ 3,547,357	\$ 3,319,604	
% Inc/Dec	5%	0%	6%	7%	-6%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (3,041,453)	\$ (3,027,254)	\$ (3,164,080)	\$ (3,411,121)	\$ (3,198,244)	
% Inc/Dec	5%	0%	5%	8%	-6%	

- Total revenue decreased because we expect lower usage of the fairgrounds and other county properties due to the ongoing pandemic and limits on group events.
- Two full-time positions were eliminated from this department for 2021.
- The facilities department budgets for the majority of the utilities and service contracts across county properties. The department assumed more responsibility for El Jebel campus, reducing contracted services for that facility by \$10K, as well as a large portion of the Eagle campus landscaping contract to reduce the budget by another \$20K. There is a 3% increase in service contracts for cleaning and security contracted services. Additional reductions totalling \$71K from 2020 include removal of special one time purchase of directory signage and chairs.

General Fund - Project Management

The project management department provides construction management for all phases of capital improvement projects, such as remodeling, renovation and new construction.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs	Net Use per Capita		
\$295,916		2.00		\$5.4	40
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2010 Astual	2010 Astual	2020 Fatimata	2021 Dudget
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Charges for Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
% Inc/Dec					
Expenditures					
FTEs	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 319,764	\$ 239,434	\$ 234,790	\$ 243,297	\$ 239,883
Training Benefits	\$ 9,175	\$ 4,673	\$ 9,766	\$ 3,000	\$ 5,000
Purchased Services	\$ 36,624	\$ 12,590	\$ 3,049	\$ 25,176	\$ 33,960
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 11,763	\$ 12,044	\$ 12,336	\$ 15,515	\$ 13,923
Supplies	\$ 4,121	\$ 2,319	\$ 2,250	\$ 1,300	\$ 3,150
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 14,555	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 396,001	\$ 271,059	\$ 262,191	\$ 288,288	\$ 295,916
% Inc/Dec	33%	-32%	-3%	10%	3%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (396,001)	\$ (271,059)	\$ (262,191)	\$ (288,288)	\$ (295,916)
% Inc/Dec	33%	-32%	-3%	10%	3%

• Purchased services includes a contract for architectural and engineering services which is utilized to determine project feasibility.

General Fund - Emergency Management

The emergency management department works to protect lives and property in Eagle County through effective emergency management practices and procedures. The department coordinates with local response agencies to prevent, prepare for, mitigate, respond to and recover from natural or human caused emergency situations.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		Net Use per Capita			
\$156,780		1.00		\$2.	86
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Federal Grants	\$ 64,500	\$ 64,500	\$ 60,000	\$ 60,000	\$ 60,000
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 8,800	\$ -	\$ 5,000
Miscellaneous	\$ (875)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 63,625	\$ 64,500	\$ 68,800	\$ 60,000	\$ 65,000
% Inc/Dec	-21%	1%	7%	-13%	8%
Expenditures					
FTEs	0.95	0.95	1.00	1.00	1.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 134,312	\$ 139,905	\$ 118,564	\$ 134,222	\$ 144,946
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ 129	\$ 1,500	\$ 50	\$ 50
Purchased Services	\$ 75,395	\$ 77,660	\$ 151,850	\$ 72,690	\$ 63,527
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 9,904	\$ 9,529	\$ 8,073	\$ 9,614	\$ 9,757
Supplies	\$ 755	\$ 6,192	\$ 1,708	\$ 4,838	\$ 3,500
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 220,366	\$ 233,415	\$ 281,696	\$ 221,414	\$ 221,780
	-6%	6%	21%	-21%	0%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (156,741)	\$ (168,915)	\$ (212,896)	\$ (161,414)	\$ (156,780)
% Inc/Dec	3%	8%	26%	-24%	-3%

• The largest items within the purchased services category are the contribution into the state's Emergency Fire Fund, for which we have budgeted a \$46,000 contribution in 2021, and the ongoing costs of a post-wildfire alert system.

General Fund - Emergency Incident Response

This department was created in 2018 for budgeting and tracking the costs of any emergency incidents that occur in Eagle County. The county manager authorizes the use of funds budgeted in this department.

	2	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use per Capita	
\$2,500,000		N/A		\$45.	64
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
	2017 Actual	2016 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Buuget
Revenues					
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,306,898	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,306,898	\$ -
% Inc/Dec					-100%
Expenditures					
Salaries & Benefits	\$ -	\$ 72,889	\$ -	\$ 50,000	\$ -
Purchased Services	\$ -	\$ 71,197	\$ 13,569	\$ 1,145,000	\$ 500,000
Supplies	\$ -	\$ 6,629	\$ -	\$ 205,000	\$ -
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,500,000	\$ 2,000,000
Total Expenditures	\$ -	\$ 150,715	\$ 13,569	\$ 2,900,000	\$ 2,500,000
% Inc/Dec			-91%	21272%	-14%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ -	\$ (150,715)	\$ (13,569)	\$ (593,102)	\$ (2,500,000)
% Inc/Dec			-91%	4271%	322%

• We have budgeted \$2,500,000 in this department to fund ongoing needs related to the COVID-19 pandemic response. Costs may include the distribution of vaccinations, emergency assistance, and economic recovery efforts.

General Fund - Animal Services

Animal services provides care and shelter to stray animals in need while maintaining a safe community and promoting responsible pet ownership through outreach, education, and enforcement.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds	FTEs			Net Use per Capita		
\$579,442		8.63		\$10.	58	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 19,595	\$ 18,950	\$ 21,250	\$ 22,000	\$ 22,000	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 14,259	\$ 17,793	\$ 11,268	\$ 17,000	\$ 7,000	
Charges for Services	\$ 118,986	\$ 186,405	\$ 205,518	\$ 240,792	\$ 248,480	
Miscellaneous	\$ 2,526	\$ 4,416	\$ 4,502	\$ 3,000	\$ 3,000	
Total Revenues	\$ 155,366	\$ 227,564	\$ 242,538	\$ 282,792	\$ 280,480	
% Inc/Dec	9%	46%	7%	17%	-1%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	6.00	8.50	8.50	8.63	8.63	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 488,434	\$ 645,501	\$ 692,389	\$ 710,906	\$ 687,189	
Training Benefits	\$ 525	\$ 5,573	\$ 9,104	\$ 1,555	\$ 15,750	
Purchased Services	\$ 73,659	\$ 83,588	\$ 83,821	\$ 81,476	\$ 73,126	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 33,262	\$ 37,881	\$ 39,857	\$ 44,500	\$ 47,307	
Supplies	\$ 31,042	\$ 39,324	\$ 34,888	\$ 29,500	\$ 36,550	
Total Expenditures	\$ 626,921	\$ 811,868	\$ 860,058	\$ 867,937	\$ 859,922	
% Inc/Dec	-13%	30%	6%	1%	-1%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (471,555)	\$ (584,304)	\$ (617,520)	\$ (585,145)	\$ (579,442)	
% Inc/Dec	-18%	24%	6%	-5%	-1%	

• Charges for services have increased slightly for 2021 due primarily to an increase in the number of adoption fees expected to be collected and slightly offset by a decrease in municipal contracts.

• Expenditures are expected to remain stable for 2021.

General Fund - Environmental Health

Environmental health works to protect Eagle County citizens and visitors by assessing environmental risks and providing effective service and education programs. Program areas include on-site wastewater treatment, consumer protection, code enforcement, and land use review.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds		Net Addition per Capita			
\$0		0.00		\$0.	00
	2047.4.4	2010 4 4	2040 4 4		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 294,252	\$ 147,912	\$ 206,562	\$ -	\$ -
Federal Grants	\$ 55,929	\$ 15,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 30,000	\$ 15,000	\$ 30,000	\$ -	\$ -
Charges for Services	\$ 17,875	\$ 19,820	\$ 13,410	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 398,056	\$ 197,732	\$ 249,972	\$ -	\$ -
% Inc/Dec	90%	-50%	26%	-100%	
Expenditures					
FTEs	6.50	5.50	6.50	0.00	0.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 612,010	\$ 512,602	\$ 545,779	\$ -	\$ -
Training Benefits	\$ 1,671	\$ 5,819	\$ 2,994	\$ -	\$ -
Purchased Services	\$ 145,658	\$ 60,782	\$ 52,849	\$ -	\$ -
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 16,489	\$ 10,167	\$ 7,860	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 2,388	\$ 1,486	\$ 5,204	\$ -	\$ -
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 139,300	\$ 102,500	\$ 112,500	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 917,515	\$ 693,356	\$ 727,186	\$ -	\$ -
% Inc/Dec	5%	-24%	5%	-100%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (519,459)	\$ (495,624)	\$ (477,214)	\$ -	\$ -
% Inc/Dec	-21%	-5%	-4%	-100%	

• Beginning in 2020, the environmental health department has been moved to the <u>Public Health fund</u> to more closely align the departments working within the Public Health and Environment division of Eagle County Government. We will continue to show actual expenditures prior to 2020 in the General Fund.

General Fund - Sustainable Communities

Sustainable communities works to implement the Eagle County environmental policy and the Climate Action Plan in county operations and within the larger community. Our shared community goal is to reduce greenhouse emissions 25% by 2025.

	20	21 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			er Capita
\$1,569,544		5.00		\$28.	66
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 177,613	\$ 82,896	\$ 289,362	\$ 181,553	\$ 209,000
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 89,000	\$ -
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 10,692	\$ 366,362	\$ 822,045	\$ 330,563	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 188,305	\$ 449,258	\$ 1,111,407	\$ 601,116	\$ 209,000
% Inc/Dec	89%	139%	147%	-46%	-65%
Expenditures					
FTEs	2.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	5.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 338,309	\$ 485,297	\$ 465,471	\$ 606,523	\$ 586,119
Training Benefits	\$ 644	\$ 3,077	\$ 1,524	\$ 2,000	\$ 5,000
Purchased Services	\$ 184,474	\$ 251,705	\$ 263,302	\$ 480,056	\$ 666,396
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 2,657	\$ 6,563	\$ 6,755	\$ 8,297	\$ 7,529
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ -	\$ 310,102	\$ 772,045	\$ 330,563	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 56,181	\$ 53,527	\$ 62,682	\$ 22,500	\$ 24,500
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		\$ -
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 149,395	\$ 171,408	\$ 227,167	\$ 300,286	\$ 489,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 731,660	\$ 1,281,679	\$ 1,798,947	\$ 1,750,225	\$ 1,778,544
% Inc/Dec	20%	75%	40%	-3%	2%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (543,354)	\$ (832,421)	\$ (687,539)	\$ (1,149,109)	\$ (1,569,544)
% Inc/Dec	6%	53%	-17%	67%	37%

- The other grants line item for both 2018 2020 represents a pass-through grant from Great Outdoors Colorado (GOCO) for Walking Mountain Science Center's (WMSC) Outdoor Movement grant. Eagle County received the grant revenue and then passed it through to WMSC.
- When the Natural Resources Policy Manager position was approved, it was housed in the Public Health Fund. During 2020, it was determined that the position more closely aligned with this department. The department now has 5.0 FTE.
- The sustainable communities department works very closely with the Walking Mountains Science Center. In the 2021 budget, we will partner with WMSC on many programs that help to implement the county's environmental policy. We are budgeting for a greenhouse gas inventory and Realfire assessments.
- We are partnering with agencies to protect wildlife and water resources. Programs include river monitoring and gauge, conservation districts and projects and other preservation projects. Many of these projects were previously budgeted in the environmental health department.
- \$15,000 is budgeted for monitoring the usage of utilities across Eagle County Government locations. The result of this project would be to respond to high usage areas with a goal of reducing energy usage across the organization.
- Bike sharing programs both in the Eagle River and Roaring Fork valleys are funded through this department.

General Fund - Engineering

The engineering department oversees the planning and design of public works projects. Engineers review development applications; provide construction, traffic and support engineering; oversee county floodplain administration; and issue floodplain development, road cut, grading and access permits.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds	FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$838,833		7.00		\$15.	31
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 14,991	\$ 18,733	\$ 17,142	\$ 16,230	\$ 13,100
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 408,980	\$ -	\$ -
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 1,145,167	\$ 4,546	\$ 3,534,386	\$ 99,456	\$ 11,350
Charges for Services	\$ 1,272	\$ 1,580	\$ 1,100	\$ 750	\$ 750
Total Revenues	\$ 1,161,430	\$ 24,858	\$ 3,961,608	\$ 116,436	\$ 25,200
% Inc/Dec	2728%	-98%	15837%	-97%	-78%
Expenditures					
FTEs	6.90	7.00	7.00	7.00	7.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 908,422	\$ 821,832	\$ 804,606	\$ 848,518	\$ 838,525
Training Benefits	\$ 3,975	\$ 5,408	\$ 5,490	\$ 3,884	\$ 5,000
Purchased Services	\$ 13,640	\$ 23,361	\$ 68,128	\$ 21,098	\$ 14,013
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 12,180	\$ 9,446	\$ 3,509	\$ 5,639	\$ 2,845
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 100,000	\$ 100,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 3,320	\$ 1,402	\$ 9,268	\$ 4,488	\$ 3,650
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 2,398,644	\$ 35,011	\$ 87,890	\$ (4,847)	\$ -
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 11,854	\$ -	\$ 6,920,689	\$ 324,296	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 3,452,035	\$ 996,459	\$ 7,899,579	\$ 1,203,076	\$ 864,033
% Inc/Dec	213%	-71%	693%	-85%	-28%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (2,290,604)	\$ (971,601)	\$ (3,937,971)	\$ (1,086,640)	\$ (838,833)
% Inc/Dec	116%	-58%	305%	-72%	-23%

- Funding of the I-70 Edwards Interchange Upgrade Phase 2 project wrapped up in 2020 and the county's contributions to this project show up in the grants and contributions issued line.
- Other activity within this department is expected to remain stable.

General Fund - Building Inspection

The building department ensures construction of safe structures for the enjoyment of citizens and visitors in unincorporated Eagle County. Staff implements construction codes through plan review and inspections.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita	
\$1,060,575		7.00		\$19	.36	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues	2017 Actual	2016 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Buuget	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 1,294,038	\$ 1,570,948	\$ 1,243,984	\$ 1,361,092	\$ 1,361,092	
Charges for Services	\$ 539,463	\$ 693,697	\$ 520,483		\$ 523,982	
Total Revenues	\$ 1,833,501	\$ 2,264,645	\$ 1,764,468			
% Inc/Dec	-2%	24%	-22%	7%	0%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	6.95	7.00	8.00	8.00	7.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 699,733	\$ 733,297	\$ 795,961	\$ 862,721	\$ 738,145	
Training Benefits	\$ 4,197	\$ 5,113	\$ 5,028	\$ 6,000	\$ 7,000	
Purchased Services	\$ 42,680	\$ 40,654	\$ 38,379	\$ 41,360	\$ 41,060	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 26,856	\$ 26,476	\$ 29,979	\$ 35,117	\$ 31,544	
Supplies	\$ 2,624	\$ 5,365	\$ 6,094	\$ 1,672	\$ 6,750	
Total Expenditures	\$ 776,090	\$ 810,905	\$ 875,441	\$ 946,870	\$ 824,499	
% Inc/Dec	-1%	4%	8%	8%	-13%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 1,057,411	\$ 1,453,741	\$ 889,026	\$ 938,204	\$ 1,060,575	
% Inc/Dec	-2%	37%	-39%	6%	13%	

• We are budgeting for building permit and related revenue to remain stable in 2021 as compared to 2020.

• One vacant building inspector position was eliminated from this department for 2021.

• Purchased services for this department includes the credit card fees that the county is charged when community members pay for permits using a credit card.

General Fund - Vegetation Management

The vegetation management department works to mitigate the harmful impacts of undesirable plants on agriculture, natural resources and properties within unincorporated Eagle County.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use per Capita		
\$203,610		1.70		\$3.	72	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Federal Grants	\$ 15,000	\$ 7,781	\$ 7,074	\$ 5,000	\$ 14,500	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ ·	
Charges for Services	\$ 45,447	\$ 18,944	\$ 3,017	\$ 35,000	\$ 10,000	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ -	\$ 9,700	\$ 10,794	\$ 15,000	\$ 15,000	
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 60,447	\$ 36,425	\$ 20,885	\$ 55,000	\$ 39,500	
% Inc/Dec	52%	-40%	-43%	163%	-28%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	2.50	2.70	1.70	1.70	1.70	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 165,793	\$ 165,929	\$ 97,050	\$ 108,465	\$ 106,994	
Training Benefits	\$ 1,129	\$ 110	\$ 793	\$ 3,500	\$ 3,500	
Purchased Services	\$ 11,176	\$ 12,987	\$ 8,177	\$ 23,089	\$ 28,592	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 47,634	\$ 52,471	\$ 52,279	\$ 59,120	\$ 56,424	
Supplies	\$ 40,738	\$ 42,873	\$ 29,059	\$ 54,491	\$ 47,600	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 11,115	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 277,586	\$ 274,369	\$ 187,358	\$ 248,665	\$ 243,110	
% Inc/Dec	20%	-1%	-32%	33%	-2%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (217,139)	\$ (237,944)	\$ (166,472)	\$ (193,665)	\$ (203,610)	
% Inc/Dec	13%	10%	-30%	16%	5%	

• Charges for services include a contract with the Colorado Department of Transportation to do weed mitigation work on CDOT rights of way.

• Licenses, permits, sales and fines classification includes sales of weed reducing chemicals to the public.

General Fund - Human Services

Human services supports overall well-being to make sure that everyone can reach their potential and fully contribute to our communities. The department's mission is to build safe, stable, hopeful futures.

2021 Overview									
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget				
Revenues									
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$				
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$				
Federal Grants	\$ 1,017,585	\$ 964,243	\$ 980,920	\$ -	\$				
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 399,997	\$ 439,508	\$ 524,471	\$ -	\$				
Charges for Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$				
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ 255	\$ 148	\$ -	\$				
Total Revenues	\$ 1,417,582	\$ 1,404,006	\$ 1,505,539	\$ -	\$				
% Inc/Dec	-13%	-1%	7%	-100%					
Expenditures									
FTEs	16.05	17.00	18.05	0.00	0.00				
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 1,299,295	\$ 1,278,477	\$ 1,415,464	\$ -	\$				
Training Benefits	\$ 36,060	\$ 35,108	\$ 29,850	\$ -	\$				
Purchased Services	\$ 1,095,267	\$ 1,435,076	\$ 1,910,844	\$ -	\$				
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,708	\$ 1,559	\$ 4,446	\$ -	\$				
Supplies	\$ 27,529	\$ 42,256	\$ 23,416	\$ -	\$				
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$				
Total Expenditures	\$ 2,459,860	\$ 2,792,477	\$ 3,384,020	\$ -	\$				
% Inc/Dec	4%	14%	21%	-100%					
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (1,042,278)	\$ (1,388,470)	\$ (1,878,481)	\$ -	\$				
% Inc/Dec	41%	33%	35%	-100%					

• In an effort of transparency and ease of understanding, all programs offered by the Eagle County Department of Human Services were moved to the <u>Human Services fund</u> beginning in 2020. We will continue to show actual expenditures prior to 2020 in the General Fund.

General Fund - CSU Extension

Extension agents are specialists in the areas of youth development, consumer and family education, and horticulture and small acreage management. Colorado State University expertise and research based information is brought to the county's citizens through their extension agent.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$139,439		0.14		\$2.	55	
	2017 A + 1	2010 4 4	2010 4 4			
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges for Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
% Inc/Dec						
Expenditures						
FTEs	1.13	1.13	1.14	1.14	0.14	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 74,577	\$ 61,410	\$ 58,462	\$ 68,898	\$ 6,063	
Training Benefits	\$ 1,496	\$ 851	\$ 785	\$ 750	\$ 950	
Purchased Services	\$ 115,210	\$ 93,027	\$ 112,879	\$ 114,358	\$ 120,710	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,954	\$ 5,320	\$ 5,726	\$ 6,549	\$ 696	
Supplies	\$ 7,230	\$ 8,579	\$ 16,871	\$ 9,998	\$ 11,020	
Total Expenditures	\$ 200,466	\$ 169,188	\$ 194,723	\$ 200,553	\$ 139,439	
% Inc/Dec	12%	-16%	15%	3%	-30%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (200,466)	\$ (169,188)	\$ (194,723)	\$ (200,553)	\$ (139,439)	
% Inc/Dec	12%	-16%	15%	3%	-30%	

• The majority of the CSU Extension programs are funded by Colorado State University. Eagle County funds a portion of the cost of staff and programs offered by CSU Extension.

• The administrative position previously budgeted in this department has been eliminated and the duties will be spread among other county staff for 2021.

General Fund - Fair and Rodeo

The fair and rodeo department is responsible for the annual production of the Eagle County Fair and Rodeo in conjunction with CSU Extension and the Pro Rodeo Cowboys Association. The department also manages the Eagle River Center which is used for community and equestrian events, trade shows, and tournaments.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$124,225		1.47		\$2.	27	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges For Services	\$ 340,720	\$ 369,384	\$ 397,258	\$ -	\$ 393,700	
Total Revenues	\$ 340,720	\$ 369,384	\$ 397,258	\$ -	\$ 393,700	
% Inc/Dec	6%	8%	8%	-100%		
Expenditures						
FTEs	1.66	1.66	1.47	1.47	1.47	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 113,806	\$ 104,776	\$ 112,934	\$ 109,309	\$ 119,037	
Training Benefits	\$ 195	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Purchased Services	\$ 292,248	\$ 307,177	\$ 338,538	\$ 15,650	\$ 312,031	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 657	
Supplies	\$ 68,139	\$ 67,553	\$ 92,775	\$ 8,136	\$ 85,000	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 647	\$ 1,746	\$ 1,136	\$ 1,700	\$ 1,200	
Total Expenditures	\$ 475,035	\$ 481,252	\$ 545,383	\$ 134,795	\$ 517,925	
% Inc/Dec	0%	1%	13%	-75%	284%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (134,315)	\$ (111,868)	\$ (148,125)	\$ (134,795)	\$ (124,225)	
% Inc/Dec	-14%	-17%	32%	-9%	-8%	

• The 2020 Eagle County Fair and Rodeo was canceled due to the COVID-19 pandemic. We are expecting to hold the Fair and Rodeo in 2021 and have budgeted accordingly.

• Purchased services includes renting equipment, advertising, entertainment and all other costs of the event. It also includes costs of producing the rodeo, including judges, stock contractor, and the rodeo purse.

Public Trustee Fund (Custodial Fund)

The Public Trustee's office provides services relating to real estate foreclosures and releases of deeds of trust.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs				
\$1,993		1.55		\$0.	04	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges for Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 107,984	\$ 122,056	\$ 118,346	
Investment Earnings	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,662	\$ 2,000	\$ 2,000	
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 110,646	\$ 124,056	\$ 120,346	
% Inc/Dec				12%	-3%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	0.00	0.00	1.55	1.55	1.55	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 73,576	\$ 98,738	\$ 78,189	
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Purchased Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 42,963	\$ 47,886	\$ 44,150	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Supplies	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 116,539	\$ 146,624	\$ 122,339	
% Inc/Dec				26%	-17%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ (5,893)	\$ (22,568)	\$ (1,993)	
% Inc/Dec				283%	-91%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 144,561	\$ 138,668	\$ 116,100	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 138,668	\$ 116,100	\$ 114,107	

- Public Trustee activity was moved from the General Fund to a separate custodial fund in 2019 in connection with the implementation of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 84.
- Revenue received by the Public Trustee is from statutorily required fees related to real estate foreclosures and releases of deeds of trusts.
- Revenue for the Public Trustee is market based, and we expect that revenues will be relatively flat as compared to 2020 estimates. Expenditures are related to publishing of foreclosure notices and the releases of foreclosure related documents.

Road and Bridge Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

The road and bridge department provides maintenance on more than 500 miles of county road and snow removal on 260 miles. Field crews make bridge repairs, grade dirt roads, fill potholes, and perform small scale resurfacing and construction projects to provide safe, efficient roadways.

	2	021 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita	
\$230,399		22.00		\$4.	21	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Property Taxes	\$ 3,993,277	\$ 4,212,017	\$ 4,194,454	\$ 4,495,748	\$ 4,544,553	
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 1,369,762	\$ 1,423,414	\$ 1,543,555	\$ 1,500,000	\$ 1,500,000	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 125,486	\$ 123,522	\$ 127,994	\$ 128,000	\$ 128,000	
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 2,391,996	\$ 2,791,584	\$ 2,991,770	\$ 2,479,172	\$ 2,310,177	
Federal Grants	\$ 473,274	\$ 450,000	\$ 488,121	\$ 450,000	\$ 450,000	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Charges For Services	\$ 55,156	\$ 35,346	\$ 25,945	\$ 53,000	\$ 72,920	
Internal Service Fund Charges	\$ 7,570	\$ 11,205	\$ -	\$ 10,000	\$ 10,000	
Miscellaneous	\$ 2,886	\$ 306	\$ 211	\$ -	\$ -	
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 25,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 8,444,407	\$ 9,047,394	\$ 9,372,051	\$ 9,115,920	\$ 9,015,650	
% Inc/Dec	-27%	7%	4%	-3%	-1%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	21.00	21.50	23.00	23.00	22.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 2,006,421	\$ 1,997,296	\$ 2,075,277	\$ 2,224,930	\$ 1,923,585	
Training Benefits	\$ 2,220	\$ 2,839	\$ 2,422	\$ 2,800	\$ 2,200	
Purchased Services	\$ 891,364	\$ 866,027	\$ 698,423	\$ 858,341	\$ 785,402	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 1,938,929	\$ 2,003,149	\$ 1,879,874	\$ 1,878,428	\$ 2,117,328	
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 1,060,881	\$ 1,147,737	\$ 1,156,491	\$ 1,236,692	\$ 1,318,837	
Supplies	\$ 990,415	\$ 1,066,612	\$ 972,384	\$ 1,144,303	\$ 1,174,262	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 1,958,245	\$ 1,219,732	\$ 1,188,309	\$ 1,578,280	\$ 1,463,637	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Transfers Out	\$ 225,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 9,073,475	\$ 8,303,392	\$ 7,973,179	\$ 8,923,774	\$ 8,785,251	
% Inc/Dec	-25%	-8%	-4%	12%	-2%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (629,068)	\$ 744,002	\$ 1,398,872	\$ 192,146	\$ 230,399	
% Inc/Dec	45%	-218%	88%	-86%	20%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 6,502,846	\$ 5,873,778	\$ 6,617,781	\$ 8,016,653	\$ 8,208,799	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 5,873,778	\$ 6,617,781	\$ 8,016,653	\$ 8,208,799	\$ 8,439,198	

- Property tax revenue was increased as discussed in the <u>Revenue Trends</u> section.
- This fund receives 100% of the county's specific ownership tax and highway users tax fund contributions from the state of Colorado as well as a portion of payment in lieu of taxes funds that the county receives.
- We expect that the highway users tax fund will generate less revenue in 2021. We are budgeting all other revenues of the road and bridge fund to remain relatively stable for 2021.
- Charges for services includes agreements with the US Forest Service and Garfield and Routt counties to maintain certain roads.
- We plan to overlay much of the Blue Lake subdivision and potentially some portions of Upper Cattle Creek and Summit Drive. We also plan to chip seal the Highland Meadows subdivision.

Human Services Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

Human services supports overall well-being to make sure that everyone can reach their potential and fully contribute to our communities. The department's mission is to build safe, stable, hopeful futures.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds	inds FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$275,999		60.55		\$5.	04
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Property Taxes	\$ 705,238	\$ 743,849	\$ 740,746	\$ 3,089,928	\$ 3,410,924
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 16,209	\$ 9,129	\$ 6,832	\$ 2,500	\$ 3,000
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 2,628	\$ 3,255	\$ 5,143	\$ 665	\$ 2,400
Federal Grants	\$ 528,618	\$ 538,623	\$ 584,822	\$ 1,951,262	\$ 1,531,196
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 2,711,586	\$ 2,833,348	\$ 2,867,767	\$ 3,090,603	\$ 2,993,957
Charges For Services	\$ 279	\$ 408	\$ 456	\$ 600	\$ 800
Miscellaneous	\$ 34,584	\$ 5,421	\$ 2,151	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 3,999,141	\$ 4,134,033	\$ 4,207,917	\$ 8,135,558	\$ 7,942,277
% Inc/Dec	-1%	3%	2%	93%	-2%
Expenditures					
FTEs	39.80	40.05	39.25	59.55	60.55
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 3,444,504	\$ 3,516,589	\$ 3,407,245	\$ 5,328,750	\$ 5,214,251
Training Benefits	\$ 29,132	\$ 51,220	\$ 31,508		
Purchased Services	\$ 605,659	\$ 529,103	\$ 510,426	\$ 2,789,075	\$ 2,870,577
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 14,144	\$ 20,508	\$ 18,256	\$ 26,402	
Supplies	\$ 14,987	\$ 20,065	\$ 21,341		
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 399,306	
Total Expenditures	\$ 4,108,425	\$ 4,137,486	\$ 3,988,776		
% Inc/Dec	-1%	1%	-4%	118%	-6%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (109,284)	\$ (3,452)	\$ 219,141	\$ (563,749)	\$ (275,999)
% Inc/Dec	-2%	-97%	-6448%	-357%	-51%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 2,633,217	\$ 2,523,933	\$ 2,520,481	\$ 2,739,621	\$ 2,175,872
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 2,523,933	\$ 2,520,481	\$ 2,739,621	\$ 2,175,872	\$ 1,899,873

• In an effort of transparency and ease of understanding, all programs offered by the Eagle County Department of Human Services (DHS) were moved to the Human Services fund beginning in 2020. We will continue to show actual expenditures prior to 2020 in the General Fund.

The next page includes a summary of changes within the Department of Human Services.

Human Services Fund (continued)

Human Services Departments - All programs and funds combined (For comparison purpose only)									
	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget				
General Fund - Revenues	\$ 1,417,582	\$ 1,404,006	\$ 1,505,539	\$ -	\$ -				
Human Service Fund - Revenues	\$ 3,999,141	\$ 4,134,033	\$ 4,207,917	\$ 8,135,558	\$ 7,942,277				
Total Revenues	\$ 5,416,723	\$ 5,538,040	\$ 5,713,456	\$ 8,135,558	\$ 7,942,277				
% Inc/Dec	-5%	2%	3%	42%	-2%				
FTEs	55.85	57.05	57.30	59.55	60.55				
General Fund - Expenditures	\$ 2,459,860	\$ 2,792,477	\$ 3,384,020	\$ -	\$ -				
Human Service Fund - Expenditures	\$ 4,108,425	\$ 4,137,486	\$ 3,988,776	\$ 8,699,307	\$ 8,218,276				
Total Expenditures	\$ 6,568,285	\$ 6,929,962	\$ 7,372,796	\$ 8,699,307	\$ 8,218,276				
% Inc/Dec	1%	6%	6%	18%	-6%				
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (1,151,562)	\$ (1,391,923)	\$ (1,659,340)	\$ (563,749)	\$ (275,999)				
% Inc/Dec	36%	21%	19%	-66%	-51%				

This table shows a comparison of revenues and expenditures as if the departments had been combined.

- The Human Service Fund received a portion of the Coronavirus Relief Fund grant dollars, which explains the higher than typical Federal grant revenue in 2020. The proceeds of the grant were used to provide emergency assistance grants to community members impacted by COVID-19.
- The Early Head Start program receives the majority (\$1 million) of the federal grants budgeted for this fund. Other federal grants include the Employment First, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, and Child Support Services programs.
- State and local grants fund a portion of the following programs: Child Welfare, Child Care Assistance, Adult Protection Services, Fraud Prevention, Veterans Services, Collaborative Management, Community Prevention Initiative, and Family Sufficiency.
- In addition to the grant funded programs outlined above, the county also funds other programs through this fund, including implementation of the Early Childhood Roadmap and strategic priorities related to improvements to the early childhood system within Eagle County (\$1.5 million).
- In 2021 the Two Generation grant funding and offsetting expenditures are not being continued, and the Colorado Health Foundation will be contributing \$120,000 for an early learning hub program.

Offsite Road Improvement Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

The Offsite Road Improvement fund accounts for the management of fees dedicated to perform traffic studies near new developments, constructs new roadways, and provides recommendations of necessary road improvements.

	20	21 Overview					
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita		
\$149,000		N/A		\$2.	72		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues	2017 / (ctddi	20107/(((dd)	20197/0000	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Charges For Services	\$ 223,660	\$ 526,823	\$ 52,225	\$ -	\$ -		
Investment Earnings	\$ 14,022	\$ 16,762	\$ 16,664		\$ -		
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 213,820	\$ 112,098	\$ 30,084		\$ 150,000		
Total Revenues	\$ 451,501	\$ 655,684	\$ 98,973		\$ 150,000		
% Inc/Dec	362%	45%	-85%	36%	11%		
Expenditures							
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 2,324	\$ 5,312	\$ 800	\$ 5,000	\$ 1,000		
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 122,449	\$ 665,102	\$ 82,209	\$ 252,791	\$ -		
Transfers Out	\$ 365,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Expenditures	\$ 489,774	\$ 670,414	\$ 83,009	\$ 257,791	\$ 1,000		
% Inc/Dec	1202%	37%	-88%	211%	-100%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (38,272)	\$ (14,730)	\$ 15,965	\$ (122,875)	\$ 149,000		
% Inc/Dec	-164%	-62%	-208%	-870%	-221%		
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 984,957	\$ 946,685	\$ 931,955	\$ 947,919	\$ 825,044		
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 946,685	\$ 931,955	\$ 947,919	\$ 825,044	\$ 974,044		

• We do not expect that any road projects will be funded from this fund in 2021 and will save all revenue received by this fund for future projects.

ECO Transit Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

ECO Transit provides multi-modal, environmentally sensitive public transportation choices that are safe, efficient, and reliable. ECO provides bus service 21 hours per day, with a total fleet of 31 buses.

	20	21 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			er Capita
\$1,307,002		65.02			86
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 7,431,308	\$ 7,989,522	\$ 9,183,525	\$ 9,064,366	\$ 7,907,962
Federal Grants	\$ 993,000	\$ 1,149,402	\$ 1,539,843	\$ 5,224,620	\$ 1,620,790
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 105,962	\$ 4,623	\$ -	\$ 1,582,700	\$ 400,000
Charges For Services	\$ 2,195,473	\$ 2,055,605	\$ 2,316,400	\$ 1,192,395	\$ 1,357,108
Internal Service Fund Charges	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 5,499
Investment Earnings	\$ 81,947	\$ 84,521	\$ 98,314	\$ 75,092	\$ 82,878
Rents & Royalties	\$ 16,500	\$ (5,400)	\$ 7,200	\$ 7,200	\$ 7,200
Miscellaneous	\$ 15,984	\$ 26,981	\$ 3,797	\$ -	\$ ·
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 550,000	\$ -	\$ 1,365,128	\$ 399,117	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 11,390,174	\$ 11,305,254	\$ 14,514,207	\$ 17,545,490	\$ 11,381,437
% Inc/Dec	4%	-1%	28%	21%	-35%
Expenditures					
FTEs	60.37	60.52	67.52	67.52	65.02
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 5,177,103	\$ 5,405,118	\$ 5,526,318	\$ 5,767,382	\$ 5,231,493
Training Benefits	\$ 17,903	\$ 10,869	\$ 17,408	\$ 4,300	\$ 23,300
Purchased Services	\$ 2,564,715	\$ 2,703,989	\$ 2,973,356	\$ 3,139,268	\$ 2,819,115
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 757,208	\$ 894,951	\$ 810,545	\$ 1,031,310	\$ 824,422
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 484,079	\$ 566,879	\$ 639,407	\$ 528,300	\$ 679,772
Supplies	\$ 385,958	\$ 527,632	\$ 410,952	\$ 653,141	\$ 465,300
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 1,604,749	\$ 1,315,950	\$ 1,621,952	\$ 3,652,789	\$ 2,645,037
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 87,650	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 445,000	\$ -
Transfers Out	\$ 1,550,000	\$ -	\$ 1,385,128	\$ 102,664	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 12,629,365	\$ 11,425,388	\$ 13,385,067	\$ 15,324,154	\$ 12,688,439
% Inc/Dec	31%	-10%	17%	14%	-17%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (1,239,192)	\$ (120,134)	\$ 1,129,140	\$ 2,221,336	\$ (1,307,002)
% Inc/Dec	-195%	-90%	-1040%	97%	-159%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 7,072,982	\$ 5,833,790	\$ 5,713,657	\$ 6,842,797	\$ 9,064,133
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 5,833,790	\$ 5,713,657	\$ 6,842,797	\$ 9,064,133	\$ 7,757,131

• Sales tax revenue was decreased as discussed in the <u>Revenue Trends</u> section.

• ECO obtained grants to fund a portion of the purchase of five diesel buses. The purchase price of \$2.6 million is funded by \$1.6 million in grants. The remainder will be funded by ECO Transit and is shown within this budget.

- Charges for services are expected to decrease in 2021 due to lower capacity and ridership primarily caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
- We expect to operate the 2020-2021 winter season with a more limited than usual service schedule due to the pandemic and lower expected revenues. We plan to hire a total of 2.5 FTE fewer bus operators for 2021 compared to previous years.
- After discussions with our independent auditors, we have moved all activity from the Roaring Fork Transportation and Roaring Fork Trails Funds to the ECO Transit Fund. We will track the receipt and distribution of transit tax collected in Basalt and El Jebel within a separate department in this fund. The change was made for administrative ease. All past activity has been consolidated above and the special revenue funds will be closed in 2021.

ECO Trails Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

ECO Trails oversees a multi-use trail system through the Eagle River valley. The ECO Trails partnership includes county government and the towns of Gypsum, Eagle, Avon, Vail, Red Cliff, and Minturn. The regional trail system encompasses 63 miles from Vail Pass to Glenwood Canyon with a connection to Red Cliff.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds	FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$947,687	2.10		\$17.30		
	2017 Astro-1	2010 Astruct	2010 Astro-1		2021 Dudest
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 748,634	\$ 823,651	\$ 944,861	\$ 897,480	\$ 803,133
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 9,652	\$ 2,210,125	\$ 15,210		
Investment Earnings	\$ 15,097	\$ 21,780	\$ 34,927	\$ 30,773	\$ 16,575
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 2,000,000	\$ 1,000,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 2,773,383	\$ 4,055,556	\$ 994,998	\$ 944,253	\$ 826,708
% Inc/Dec	248%	46%	-75%	-5%	-12%
Expenditures					
FTEs	2.10	2.10	2.10	2.10	2.10
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 218,137	\$ 211,020	\$ 215,459	\$ 229,880	\$ 218,053
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 250	\$ 1,000
Purchased Services	\$ 7,275	\$ 14,375	\$ 114,320	\$ 153,493	\$ 239,330
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 7,581	\$ 10,174	\$ 9,167	\$ 21,108	\$ 24,412
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 48,820	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 100,000
Supplies	\$ 6,408	\$ 7,953	\$ 9,824	\$ 7,200	\$ 11,600
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 1,925,633	\$ 3,444,474	\$ 628,806	\$ 354,087	\$ 1,180,000
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Transfers Out	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,000,000	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$2,213,854	\$3,687,996	\$1,977,577	\$766,018	\$1,774,395
% Inc/Dec	61%	67%	-46%	-61%	132%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 559,529	\$ 367,560	\$ (982,578)	\$ 178,235	\$ (947,687)
% Inc/Dec	-197%	-34%	-367%	-118%	-632%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 1,192,910	\$ 1,752,439	\$ 2,119,999	\$ 1,137,421	\$ 1,315,656
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 1,752,439	\$ 2,119,999	\$ 1,137,421	\$ 1,315,656	\$ 367,969

- Sales tax revenue and investment earnings were decreased as discussed in the <u>Revenue Trends</u> section.
- We have made the completion of the Eagle Valley Trail an organizational priority in 2021 and will be funding the design and construction of the remaining sections of the trail from the ECO Trails fund and the <u>Capital Improvements fund</u>. The construction of each section will be budgeted when we are ready to begin construction and funds are available.
- The design of the Horn Ranch to Edwards section of the trail (\$1.2 million) is budgeted in this fund.
- \$130,000 for marketing is budgeted for 2021.

Airport Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

Just minutes from Vail, Beaver Creek and other world class destinations, the Eagle County Regional Airport (EGE) gets you directly to the heart of the Colorado Rockies.

	2	021 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs		Net Addition per Capita	
\$2,179,569		23.69		\$39	.79
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues	2017 / (ctuu)	2010/10100	20197/0000	2020 Estimate	2021 Dudget
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 77,461	\$ 98,180	\$ 93,025	\$ 102,480	\$ 102,480
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 447,009	\$ 535,781	\$ 434,072	\$ 300,000	\$ 450,000
Federal Grants	\$ 7,600,230	\$ 1,221,353	\$ 17,711,568		\$ 1,930,269
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 215,463	\$ 76,165	\$ 956,388	\$ 603,091	\$ 44,980
Charges For Services	\$ 2,731,875	\$ 2,878,301	\$ 3,165,424		\$ 2,686,827
Rents & Royalties	\$ 2,085,518	\$ 2,281,698	\$ 2,946,402	\$ 2,421,165	\$ 2,647,839
Miscellaneous	\$ 15,967	\$ 10,047	\$ 36,462	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 13,173,523	\$ 7,101,525	\$ 25,343,342	\$ 11,186,086	\$ 7,862,395
% Inc/Dec	-8%	-46%	257%	-56%	-30%
Expenditures					
FTEs	24.86	25.86	27.36	26.69	23.69
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 2,483,591	\$ 2,415,343	\$ 2,479,764	\$ 2,734,649	\$ 2,330,790
Training Benefits	\$ 74,407	\$ 52,893	\$ 59,198	\$ 42,670	\$ 81,810
Purchased Services	\$ 1,523,260	\$ 1,605,950	\$ 1,647,307	\$ 2,474,969	\$ 2,056,352
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 76,316	\$ 77,376	\$ 95,569	\$ 89,725	\$ 94,784
Supplies	\$ 274,912	\$ 292,557	\$ 360,717	\$ 326,500	\$ 368,000
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 8,633,451	\$ 1,336,436	\$ 21,645,621	\$ 3,259,609	\$ 751,090
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 833	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 13,065,936	\$ 5,780,556	\$ 26,289,010	\$ 8,928,122	\$ 5,682,826
% Inc/Dec	-6%	-56%	355%	-66%	-36%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 107,587	\$ 1,320,969	\$ (945,668)	\$ 2,257,964	\$ 2,179,569
% Inc/Dec	-80%	1128%	-172%	-339%	-3%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 3,003,218	\$ 3,110,805	\$ 4,431,774	\$ 3,486,107	\$ 5,744,071
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 3,110,805	\$ 4,431,774	\$ 3,486,107	\$ 5,744,071	\$ 7,923,640

- Eagle County Regional Airport has received an allocation of federal CARES Act funding. It collected some in 2020 and expects to collect the remaining amount in 2021.
- No major capital projects are planned for the airport in 2021.
- Rents and charges are expected to be comparable with 2020 collections.

• The salaries and benefits classification decreased due to the elimination of three vacant positions that we do not expect to fill in 2021. As the airline industry stabilizes, we will review staffing needs at the airport.

Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation (Blended Component Unit)

The Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation manages the day to day operations of the terminal at the Eagle County Regional Airport.

	20	21 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds	FTEs			Net Addition per Capita	
\$206,995		N/A		\$3.7	78
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 643,694	\$ -	\$ -
Charges For Services	\$ 957,328	\$ 1,031,554	\$ 1,152,532	\$ 712,101	\$ 705,785
Investment Earnings	\$ 188,732	\$ 809,225	\$ 521,133	\$ 120,000	\$ 36,000
Rents & Royalties	\$ 4,720,312	\$ 4,767,130	\$ 4,660,810	\$ 4,324,320	\$ 4,746,592
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ 9,575	\$ 2,049	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 5,866,373	\$ 6,617,484	\$ 6,980,218	\$ 5,156,421	\$ 5,488,377
% Inc/Dec	1%	13%	5%	-26%	6%
Expenditures					
Salaries & Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Purchased Services	\$ 1,765,236	\$ 1,922,796	\$ 2,365,305	\$ 2,351,797	\$ 2,425,498
Supplies	\$ 7,276	\$ 3,980	\$ 2,138	\$ 19,500	\$ 41,000
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 20,549	\$ 36,188	\$ 3,077,940	\$ 949,330	\$ 355,000
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 1,312,088	\$ 1,299,207	\$ 2,564,168	\$ -	\$ -
Principal Payments	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 840,000	\$ 880,000
Debt Issuance Cost	\$ 689,391	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Interest Expense	\$ 744,136	\$ 1,706,069	\$ 1,661,383	\$ 1,627,950	\$ 1,579,884
Total Expenditures	\$ 4,538,676	\$ 4,968,240	\$ 9,670,934	\$ 5,788,577	\$ 5,281,382
% Inc/Dec	19%	9%	95%	-40%	-9%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 1,327,696	\$ 1,649,244	\$ (2,690,716)	\$ (632,156)	\$ 206,995
% Inc/Dec	-34%	24%	-263%	-77%	-133%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 26,163,234	\$ 27,490,930	\$ 29,140,174	\$ 26,449,458	\$ 25,817,302
Ending Fund Balance	\$27,490,930	\$ 29,140,174	\$ 26,449,458	\$ 25,817,302	\$ 26,024,297

• Revenues for 2021 are budgeted to decrease compared to 2019 actual revenues and be slightly higher than 2020 expectations. The majority of the ECAT revenue comes from airlines and rental car providers.

• The only capital outlay planned for 2021 is a necessary upgrade to the baggage handling system.

Conservation Trust Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

This fund accounts for state of Colorado lottery proceeds that are restricted to parks and recreation expenditures.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs	Net Addition per Capita		
\$56,200		N/A		\$1.0	03
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues	ZOTTACCOOL	2010 Actual	ZOTJ Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Duuget
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 121,352	\$ 125,210	\$ 143,287	\$ 120,000	\$ 130,000
Total Revenues	\$ 121,352	\$ 125,210	\$ 143,287	\$ 120,000	\$ 130,000
% Inc/Dec	-11%	3%	14%	-16%	8%
Expenditures					
Purchased Services	\$ 102,417	\$ 95,356	\$ 110,500	\$ 67,500	\$ 72,600
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 617	\$ 1,200	\$ 1,200
Supplies	\$ -	\$ 4,498	\$ 7,723	\$ -	\$ -
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ 275,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 102,417	\$ 374,854	\$ 118,840	\$ 68,700	\$ 73,800
% Inc/Dec	-9%	266%	-68%	-42%	7%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 18,935	\$ (249,644)	\$ 24,447	\$ 51,300	\$ 56,200
% Inc/Dec	-22%	-1418%	-110%	110%	10%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 318,853	\$ 337,788	\$ 88,144	\$ 112,591	\$ 163,891
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 337,788	\$ 88,144	\$ 112,591	\$ 163,891	\$ 220,091

- This fund is restricted to specific allowable uses and is primarily used to fund maintenance and repairs at Freedom Park in Edwards.
- Savings will be used to fund future priority projects.

800 MHz Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

This fund accounts for revenues received for the maintenance of the county's microwave radio system used in law enforcement.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita	
\$280,513		1.00		\$5.	12	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Charges For Services	\$ 573,143	\$ 581,861	\$ 561,319	\$ 574,891	\$ 574,891	
Rents & Royalties	\$ 10,734	\$ 15,872	\$ 32,061	\$ 16,092	\$ 15,600	
Miscellaneous	\$ 3,893	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 587,770	\$ 597,733	\$ 593,380	\$ 590,983	\$ 590,491	
% Inc/Dec	-7%	2%	-1%	0%	0%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	1.10	1.10	1.00	1.00	1.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 110,812	\$ 104,925	\$ 104,271	\$ 107,834	\$ 105,081	
Training Benefits	\$ 5,017	\$ 2,572	\$ 5,761	\$ 6,000	\$ 6,000	
Purchased Services	\$ 107,677	\$ 117,395	\$ 82,917	\$ 130,820	\$ 103,763	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 10,023	\$ 9,420	\$ 9,983	\$ 17,031	\$ 10,722	
Supplies	\$ 19,345	\$ 8,430	\$ 18,003	\$ 120,412	\$ 84,412	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 364,374	\$ 419,559	\$ 99,562	\$ 200,000	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 617,247	\$ 662,301	\$ 320,495	\$ 582,097	\$ 309,978	
% Inc/Dec	-4%	7%	-52%	82%	-47%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (29,477)	\$ (64,568)	\$ 272,884	\$ 8,886	\$ 280,513	
% Inc/Dec	104%	119%	-523%	-97%	3057%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 1,102,443	\$ 1,072,966	\$ 1,008,398	\$ 1,281,283	\$ 1,290,169	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 1,072,966	\$ 1,008,398	\$ 1,281,283	\$ 1,290,169	\$ 1,570,682	

- The majority of the revenue for this fund comes from users of the 800 MHz radio system. The largest payers include Eagle County (32%), town of Vail (31%), other towns (14%), fire protection districts (9%), Eagle County Paramedic Services (6%) and other users of the system (8%). User rates have not changed for 2021.
- Purchased services include the cost of land leases on which the radio towers are located and utility services for the radio sites.
- No major capital projects are planned for 2021.

Emergency Reserve/TABOR Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

This fund holds emergency funds, which are set aside in compliance with Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado constitution.

	2	021 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs	Net Addition per Capita		
\$0		N/A		\$0.	00
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Investment Earnings	\$ 27,097	\$ 37,817	\$ 45,811	\$ -	\$ -
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 335,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 362,097	\$ 37,817	\$ 45,811	\$ -	\$ -
% Inc/Dec	2111%	-90%	21%	-100%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 362,097	\$ 37,817	\$ 45,811	\$ -	\$ -
% Inc/Dec	2111%	-90%	21%	-100%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 2,301,702	\$ 2,663,799	\$ 2,701,616	\$ 2,747,427	\$ 2,747,427
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 2,663,799	\$ 2,701,616	\$ 2,747,427	\$ 2,747,427	\$ 2,747,427

- The Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR) requires local governments to establish an emergency reserve to be used for declared emergencies only. The reserve is calculated at 3% of fiscal year spending, excluding bonded principal payments and enterprise spending. Each year the amount held in this fund is measured against fiscal year spending and additional dollars are transferred into this fund from the General Fund if necessary.
- Investment earnings are no longer budgeted in this fund, and instead are split between other funds according to the organization's investment policy.

Public Health Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

The Eagle County public health and environment (ECPHE) department aims to improve community health outcomes and reduce health disparities. Programs include: prenatal, nurse family partnership, women, infants and children, family planning, immunizations, emergency preparedness, health promotion, healthy aging, vital statistics and environmental health.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita	
\$71,455		41.17		\$1.3	30	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues	20177100001	201071000	2019710000	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,000,000	\$ 1,000,000	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 194,300	\$ 189,200	
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ -	\$ 11,530	\$ 23,060	\$ 23,060	\$ 23,060	
Federal Grants	\$ 628,268	\$ 491,560	\$ 508,693	\$ 1,211,584	\$ 801,212	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 1,226,639	\$ 1,128,522	\$ 1,210,014	\$ 1,692,684	\$ 1,210,623	
Charges For Services	\$ 194,240	\$ 168,659	\$ 168,057	\$ 160,025	\$ 154,975	
Investment Earnings	\$ 18,553	\$ 18,108	\$ 15,633	\$ -	\$ -	
Miscellaneous	\$ 1,007	\$ 4,862	\$ 1,727	\$ -	\$ -	
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 1,771,375	\$ 1,271,375	\$ 1,800,000	\$ 2,160,000	\$ 1,850,000	
Total Revenues	\$ 3,840,083	\$ 3,094,615	\$ 3,727,184	\$ 6,441,653	\$ 5,229,070	
% Inc/Dec	4%	-19%	20%	73%	-19%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	29.49	29.49	30.17	37.24	41.17	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 2,593,057	\$ 2,789,247	\$ 2,672,549	\$ 3,534,321	\$ 3,815,674	
Training Benefits	\$ 22,855	\$ 22,348	\$ 20,324	\$ 22,930	\$ 27,978	
Purchased Services	\$ 810,308	\$ 679,778	\$ 757,782	\$ 2,017,171	\$ 1,056,882	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 42,881	\$ 36,157	\$ 35,442	\$ 78,277	\$ 91,023	
Supplies	\$ 210,963	\$ 167,280	\$ 173,338	\$ 230,760	\$ 166,058	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 112,500	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 3,680,063	\$ 3,694,810	\$ 3,659,435	\$ 5,995,959	\$ 5,157,615	
% Inc/Dec	2%	0%	-1%	64%	-14%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 160,020	\$ (600,195)	\$ 67,749	\$ 445,694	\$ 71,455	
% Inc/Dec	182%	-475%	-111%	558%	-84%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 943,562	\$ 1,103,582	\$ 503,387	\$ 571,136	\$ 1,016,830	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 1,103,582	\$ 503,387	\$ 571,136	\$ 1,016,830	\$ 1,088,285	

• Beginning in 2020, the environmental health department has been moved to the Public Health fund to more closely align the departments working within the public health and environment departments of Eagle County Government. We will continue to show actual expenditures prior to 2020 in the General Fund.

The next page includes a summary of changes within the public health and environmental health departments.

Public Health Fund (continued)

Public Health Fund - Include	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
General Fund - Revenues	\$ 398,056	\$ 197,732	\$ 249,972	\$ -	\$-
Public Health Fund - Revenues	\$ 3,840,083	\$ 3,094,615	\$ 3,727,184	\$ 6,441,653	\$ 5,229,070
Total Revenues	\$ 4,238,139	\$ 3,292,347	\$ 3,977,156	\$ 6,441,653	\$ 5,229,070
% Inc/Dec	9%	-22%	21%	62%	-19%
FTEs	34.99	36.67	37.24	37.24	41.17
General Fund - Expenditures	\$ 917,515	\$ 693,356	\$ 727,186	\$ -	\$ -
Public Health Fund - Expenditures	\$ 3,680,063	\$ 3,694,810	\$ 3,659,435	\$ 5,995,959	\$ 5,157,615
Total Expenditures	\$ 4,597,579	\$ 4,388,166	\$ 4,386,621	\$ 5,995,959	\$ 5,157,615
% Inc/Dec	2%	-5%	0%	37%	-14%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (359,440)	\$ (1,095,820)	\$ (409,465)	\$ 445,694	\$ 71,455
% Inc/Dec	-41%	205%	-63%	-209%	-84%

This table shows a comparison of revenues and expenditures as if the departments had been combined.

- Revenues for the combined departments decreased by \$1.2 million from 2020 to 2021 primarily due to the amount of grant funding received by this fund related to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and the expected reduction in other grant revenue.
- Federal grants fund a portion of the following programs: Immunization, Public Health Emergency Response, Maternal and Child Health, Women, Infants and Children, and Healthy Aging.
- Other grants fund a portion of the following programs: Healthy Aging, Mi Salud Mi Charco, Immunization, and Nurse Family Partnership.
- Overall combined department expenditures increased by \$770,000 from 2019. This increase is due to the addition of tobacco and vaping prevention and intervention and ongoing staffing and other needs related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Mental Health Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

Eagle County resolution 2018-07 authorized the formation of this fund for the oversight of the marijuana sales and excise tax, which was approved by Eagle County voters in 2017. This fund will provide transparency and accountability with public and private entities along with general oversight and monitoring of activities and contracts funded by this tax.

	2	021 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs		Net Addition per Capita	
\$11,508		N/A		\$0.	21
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ -	\$ 398,170	\$ 658,424	\$ 600,000	\$ 750,000
Investment Earnings	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 13,429	\$ 7,458
Interfund Transfers In	\$ -	\$ 500,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ -	\$ 898,170	\$ 658,424	\$ 613,429	\$ 757,458
% Inc/Dec			-27%	-7%	23%
Expenditures					
Purchased Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 883,730	\$ 1,005,164	\$ 739,450
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ 3,568	\$ 5,842	\$ 6,000	\$ 6,500
Total Expenditures	\$ -	\$ 3,568	\$ 889,572	\$ 1,011,164	\$ 745,950
% Inc/Dec			24829%	14%	-26%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$-	\$ 894,601	\$ (231,147)	\$ (397,735)	\$ 11,508
% Inc/Dec			-126%	72%	-103%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 894,601	\$ 663,454	\$ 265,719
Ending Fund Balance	\$ -	\$ 894,601	\$ 663,454	\$ 265,719	\$ 277,227

• The sales and use taxes in this fund are generated from the sale of marijuana products. Based upon actual collections in 2019 and 2020, we have budgeted this revenue to increase in 2021.

• Purchased services for 2021 include school (\$400k) and jail (\$80k) based mental health counselors, crisis response (\$100k), suicide prevention training (\$50k), and a variety of other related programs recommended by the community based mental health advisory committee.

Open Space Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

Approved by voters in 2002, the Eagle County open space program is funded by a dedicated 1.5 mill levy property tax. The Open Space fund uses these dollars for the express purpose of supporting activities and costs associated with the acquisition and preservation of open space.

	20	21 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita	
\$3,156,676		3.65		\$57.	63	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Property Taxes	\$ 4,407,896	\$ 4,649,153	\$ 4,629,767	\$ 4,962,193	\$ 5,016,064	
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 1,929,460	\$ 50,500	\$ 3,000	\$ 918,200	\$ 3,000	
Charges For Services	\$ 12,688	\$ 5,802	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Investment Earnings	\$ 45,875	\$ 61,653	\$ 109,738	\$ 98,197	\$ 124,310	
Rents & Royalties	\$ 7,225	\$ 15,811	\$ 15,024	\$ 15,700	\$ 15,700	
Miscellaneous	\$ 456,166	\$ 884,479	\$ 426,648	\$ -	\$ -	
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 4,350,000	\$ -	\$ 311,512	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 11,209,310	\$ 5,667,398	\$ 5,495,689	\$ 5,994,290	\$ 5,159,074	
% Inc/Dec	147%	-49%	-3%	9%	-14%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	2.08	2.20	3.65	3.65	3.65	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 295,552	\$ 246,671	\$ 296,082	\$ 335,247	\$ 337,743	
Training Benefits	\$ 1,306	\$ 2,552	\$ 2,782	\$ 897	\$ 3,000	
Purchased Services	\$ 260,829	\$ 360,484	\$ 158,070	\$ 394,455	\$ 398,247	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 146,976	\$ 157,225	\$ 155,843	\$ 177,309	\$ 176,423	
Supplies	\$ 14,855	\$ 27,930	\$ 38,563	\$ 149,930	\$ 104,985	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 13,490,430	\$ 39,701	\$ 147,572	\$ 3,388,000	\$ 982,000	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ 9,954	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Transfers Out	\$ 1,750,000	\$ 2,600,000	\$ 311,512	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Expenditures	\$ 15,959,948	\$ 3,444,517	\$ 1,110,424	\$ 4,445,838	\$ 2,002,398	
% Inc/Dec	378%	-78%	-68%	300%	-55%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (4,750,638)	\$ 2,222,881	\$ 4,385,265	\$ 1,548,452	\$ 3,156,676	
% Inc/Dec	-496%	-147%	97%	-65%	104%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 5,065,116	\$ 314,478	\$ 2,537,358	\$ 6,922,623	\$ 8,471,075	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 314,478	\$ 2,537,358	\$ 6,922,623	\$ 8,471,075	\$ 11,627,751	

• Property tax revenue and investment earnings were increased as discussed in the <u>Revenue Trends</u> section.

• Miscellaneous revenue in 2017-2019 relates to the sale of certain open space properties.

• No major acquisitions are currently planned for 2021. If an acquisition opportunity arises, we will utilize the budget amendment process to gain approval for a purchase.

Capital Improvements (CIP) Fund

This fund receives 35% of the 1% Eagle County sales tax (authorized by voters in 1981) which is dedicated to capital improvements or related debt repayment.

	20	21 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use pe	er Capita
\$523,350		N/A		\$9.5	56
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Property Taxes	\$ 179,251	\$ 189,063	\$ 188,277	\$ -	\$
Sales & Use Taxes	\$ 5,778,733	\$ 6,230,320	\$ 7,148,065	\$ 6,860,000	\$ 6,075,856
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 72,500	\$ -	\$ 34,000
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$
Investment Earnings	\$ 1,998	\$ 3,813	\$ 105,968	\$ 106,028	\$ 140,884
Rents & Royalties	\$ 1,193,250	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$
Miscellaneous	\$ 204	\$ -	\$ 10,873	\$ -	\$
Other Financing Sources	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 9,715,679	\$ -	\$
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 1,585,500	\$ 20,543	\$ -	\$ 96,000	\$ 234,000
Total Revenues	\$ 8,738,936	\$ 6,443,739	\$ 17,241,362	\$ 7,062,028	\$ 6,484,740
% Inc/Dec	0%	-26%	168%	-59%	-8%
Expenditures					
Training Benefits	\$ 3,139	\$ -	\$ 4,951	\$ 6,550	\$
Purchased Services	\$ 413,684	\$ 267,812	\$ 306,322	\$ 471,140	\$ 440,000
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 63,071	\$ 66,738	\$ 77,859	\$ 76,000	\$ 70,000
Supplies	\$ 447,118	\$ 490,602	\$ 493,683	\$ 240,684	\$
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 2,093,513	\$ 4,637,137	\$ 5,657,656	\$ 7,359,229	\$ 3,844,090
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 50,505	\$ -	\$ 643,694	\$ 50,000	\$
Principal Payments	\$ 2,015,000	\$ 2,065,000	\$ 940,000	\$ 1,635,000	\$ 1,710,000
Debt Issuance Cost	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 215,679	\$ -	\$
Interest Expense	\$ 760,500	\$ 700,050	\$ 850,103	\$ 1,016,000	\$ 944,000
Transfers Out	\$ 3,060,500	\$ 20,543	\$ -	\$ -	\$
Total Expenditures	\$ 8,907,029	\$ 8,247,883	\$ 9,189,947	\$ 10,854,603	\$ 7,008,090
% Inc/Dec	-11%	-7%	11%	18%	-35%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (168,094)	\$ (1,804,144)	\$ 8,051,416	\$ (3,792,575)	\$ (523,350
% Inc/Dec	-87%	973%	-546%	-147%	-86%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 8,011,174	\$ 7,843,080	\$ 6,038,937	\$ 14,090,352	\$ 10,297,77
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 7,843,080	\$ 6,038,937	\$ 14,090,352	\$ 10,297,777	\$ 9,774,42

- Principal and interest payments for the Justice Center certificates of participation (COP) payment (\$1,576,500) and Two10 at Castle Peak COP payment (\$1,077,500) as more fully defined in the <u>Current Debt Obligations</u> section of this book are budgeted to be paid from this fund.
- The Eagle County Treasurer collects 1% of all revenue in this fund and \$70,000 has been budgeted for this purpose.

Capital Improvements Fund (continued)

- Other projects included in the 2021 CIP funding are as follows:
 - West Edwards property purchase (\$1,500,000)
 - Eagle Valley Trail projects (\$1,597,600)
 - Dowd Junction Design (\$465,000)
 - Minturn Trail Design (\$145,000)
 - Duck Pond to Dotsero Trail Design (\$420,000)
 - EagleVail Business District Trail Construction (\$567,600)
 - Building maintenance according to capital maintenance plan (\$509,000)
 - Parking lot maintenance (\$150,000)
 - El Jebel Road intersection design (\$250,000)
 - IT Infrastructure capital maintenance (\$189,900)
 - Electric vehicle charging stations (\$87,590)

Landfill Fund (Enterprise Fund)

The landfill provides a solid waste facility for Eagle County residents and an environmentally safe containment area for all acceptable refuse while ensuring compliance with federal, state, and county regulations. This fund is classified as an enterprise fund because it reports activity for which a fee is charged to external users and the pricing policy indicates that fees and charges are set to recover all costs of operating the facility.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			Net Use per Capita	
\$328,089		12.85		\$5.	\$5.99	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
	2017 Actual	2018 ACTUAL	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues	+ 225 545	t 210 020	+ 124 024	+ 100 000	+ 400 000	
Licenses, Permits, Sales & Fines	\$ 235,515	\$ 210,028	\$ 134,031	\$ 123,000	\$ 123,000	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 41,082	\$ 43,610	\$ 30,311	\$ -	\$ -	
Charges For Services	\$ 3,274,587	\$ 4,397,868	\$ 3,639,315		\$ 3,175,100	
Miscellaneous	\$ 10,352	\$ 5,016	\$ 479	\$ -	\$ -	
Interfund Transfers In	\$ 834,544	\$ 90,698	\$ 89,687	\$ -	\$ -	
Total Revenues	\$ 4,396,080	\$ 4,747,219	\$ 3,893,822	\$ 3,304,100	\$ 3,298,100	
% Inc/Dec	20%	8%	-18%	-15%	0%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	11.50	11.50	12.85	12.85	12.85	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 969,444	\$ 1,054,781	\$ 1,016,189	\$ 1,108,309	\$ 1,035,402	
Training Benefits	\$ 3,335	\$ 5,174	\$ 3,243	\$ 1,759	\$ 9,200	
Purchased Services	\$ 104,175	\$ 1,461,867	\$ 1,062,496	\$ 892,162	\$ 992,653	
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 629,335	\$ 665,907	\$ 680,931	\$ 637,992	\$ 745,653	
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 126,693	\$ 147,593	\$ 149,433	\$ 167,887	\$ 108,646	
Supplies	\$ 85,238	\$ 81,167	\$ 110,137	\$ 87,135	\$ 128,135	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 831,598	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 465,000	\$ 330,000	
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 384,145	\$ 382,037	\$ 374,466	\$ -	\$ -	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 86,368	\$ 245,041	\$ 3,000	\$ -	\$ 276,500	
Total Expenditures	\$ 3,220,331	\$ 4,043,567	\$ 3,399,895	\$ 3,360,244	\$ 3,626,189	
% Inc/Dec	7%	26%	-16%	-1%	8%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 1,175,749	\$ 703,652	\$ 493,927	\$ (56,144)	\$ (328,089)	
% Inc/Dec	80%	-40%	-30%	-111%	484%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 13,721,750	\$ 14,897,499	\$ 15,601,151	\$ 16,095,078	\$ 16,038,934	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 14,897,499	\$ 15,601,151	\$ 16,095,078	\$ 16,038,934	\$ 15,710,845	

- Revenues budgeted for 2021 are projected to be flat with 2020 estimates. Visitors to the community and construction and demolition projects impact this fund's revenue collection.
- Capital outlays include the relocation and upgrade of the Edwards recycling site. It will be moved from its current site at the CDOT rest area to the west side of the Mountain Recreation fieldhouse. Users of this new site will benefit from easier access, larger containers, a compactor, and additional security. Additionally, some improvements are scheduled to be made at the recycling site in the town of Eagle. Finally we are budgeting for the installation of a new heating system and the addition of a rooftop solar system at the Household Hazardous Waste facility.
- Grants issued includes a \$70,000 contribution to Walking Mountains as described in the <u>Sustainable</u> <u>Communities</u> section and \$200,000 for the design of an acceleration and deceleration lane on Highway 131 leading up to the landfill.

Fleet Fund (Internal Service Fund)

The Fleet fund provides all county departments with vehicles and other equipment, and performs repairs and maintenance of the vehicles and equipment.

	20	21 Overview					
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			Net Addition per Capita		
\$368,068		16.00		\$6.	72		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget		
Revenues				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -		
Charges For Services	\$ 47,074	\$ 60,234	\$ 61,537	\$ 74,667	\$ 61,620		
Internal Service Fund Charges	\$ 5,889,760	\$ 6,259,797	\$ 6,267,567	\$ 6,838,635	\$ 6,742,262		
Miscellaneous	\$ 191,785	\$ 388,591	\$ 276,018	\$ 293,303	\$ 225,851		
Interfund Transfers In	\$ -	\$ 43,347	\$ 147,197	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Revenues	\$ 6,128,619	\$ 6,751,969	\$ 6,752,319	\$ 7,206,605	\$ 7,029,733		
% Inc/Dec	20%	10%	0%	7%	-2%		
Expenditures							
FTEs	15.00	16.00	16.00	17.00	16.00		
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 1,496,647	\$ 1,421,036	\$ 1,438,087	\$ 1,502,295	\$ 1,406,290		
Training Benefits	\$ 11,527	\$ 7,964	\$ 2,261	\$ 17,445	\$ 13,270		
Purchased Services	\$ 495,866	\$ 554,088	\$ 552,994	\$ 641,590	\$ 557,269		
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 98,636	\$ 105,773	\$ 113,675	\$ 143,494	\$ 177,330		
Supplies	\$ 1,864,424	\$ 2,307,917	\$ 2,381,742	\$ 2,469,476	\$ 2,197,555		
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ (301,378)	\$ 282,554	\$ 243,355	\$ 3,210,084	\$ 2,309,951		
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 1,149,923	\$ 1,317,853	\$ 1,446,202	\$ -	\$ -		
Total Expenditures	\$ 4,815,645	\$ 5,997,183	\$ 6,178,317	\$ 7,984,384	\$ 6,661,665		
% Inc/Dec	18%	25%	3%	29%	-17%		
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 1,312,974	\$ 754,786	\$ 574,003	\$ (777,779)	\$ 368,068		
% Inc/Dec	29%	-43%	-24%	-236%	-147%		
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 14,712,357	\$ 16,025,331	\$ 16,780,117	\$ 17,354,120	\$ 16,576,341		
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 16,025,331	\$ 16,780,117	\$ 17,354,120	\$ 16,576,341	\$ 16,944,409		

- Revenue has decreased because of rate increases charged to other county funds. Five department specific vehicles have moved into the county's care share program with the long term goal of decreasing the overall number of vehicles and increasing each vehicle's usage thereby lowering overall costs.
- The cost of the car share program is being covered by this fund.
- Rates charged to departments are calculated annually based upon actual costs for the previous year. Future vehicle replacement costs are also included in this fund's revenue.
- An administrative position has been eliminated from the 2021 budget.
- Supplies include the purchase of fuel for all county vehicles and equipment as well as parts for repair and maintenance of vehicles.
- Capital outlay and leases represent the replacement of vehicles to which other county departments have contributed.

Insurance Reserve Fund (Internal Service Fund)

The Insurance Reserve fund has been established to accumulate funds to pay the county's annual casualty and property contribution to the Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool, as well as all deductibles resulting from claims. A property tax mill levy provides a source of revenue for this fund.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			oer Capita
\$82,385		N/A		\$1.	.50
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Property Taxes	\$ 158,677	\$ 167,365	\$ 166,669	\$ 380,434	\$ 451,446
Internal Service Fund Charges	\$ 196,730	\$ 196,730	\$ 292,570	\$ 351,084	\$ 359,154
Insurance Premiums & Proceeds	\$ 222,720	\$ 254,632	\$ 502,480	\$ 270,000	\$ 270,000
Interfund Transfers In	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 250,000	\$ 150,000	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 578,126	\$ 618,727	\$ 1,211,719	\$ 1,151,518	\$ 1,080,600
% Inc/Dec	24%	7%	96%	-5%	-6%
Expenditures					
Purchased Services	\$ 540,515	\$ 696,216	\$ 1,013,492	\$ 942,113	\$ 1,150,985
Interdepartmental Services	\$ 4,750	\$ 5,020	\$ 5,001	\$ 18,200	\$ 12,000
Transfers Out	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 296,453	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 545,264	\$ 701,236	\$ 1,018,492	\$ 1,256,766	\$ 1,162,985
% Inc/Dec	16%	29%	45%	23%	-7%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 32,862	\$ (82,509)	\$ 193,226	\$ (105,248)	\$ (82,385)
% Inc/Dec	-753%	-351%	-334%	-154%	-22%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 289,989	\$ 322,851	\$ 240,342	\$ 433,569	\$ 328,321
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 322,851	\$ 240,342	\$ 433,569	\$ 328,321	\$ 245,936

• Property tax revenue budget has increased for 2021 because we have adjusted the mill levy as explained in the <u>Mill Levy</u> discussion.

• Purchased services is estimated to be significantly higher in 2021 than we expect in 2020 given the state of the insurance market and increased costs of coverage.

Health Insurance Fund (Internal Service Fund)

The Health Insurance fund has been established to account for the health insurance plans provided by the county to its employees. The premiums charged are allocated to the county funds that employ those covered by the health insurance plans.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use per Capita	
\$2,116,327		N/A		\$38.	.64
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Internal Service Fund Charges	\$ 10,880,812	\$ 10,065,650	\$ 8,243,558	\$ 9,027,104	\$ 7,843,583
Miscellaneous	\$ 84,578	\$ 60,328	\$ 13,534	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 10,965,390	\$ 10,125,979	\$ 8,257,092	\$ 9,027,104	\$ 7,843,583
% Inc/Dec	-1%	-8%	-18%	9%	-13%
Expenditures					
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 6,373,811	\$ 6,699,252	\$ 7,876,464	\$ 7,401,634	\$ 7,949,069
Purchased Services	\$ 1,524,439	\$ 1,428,744	\$ 2,122,344	\$ 2,381,448	\$ 2,010,841
Total Expenditures	\$ 7,898,250	\$ 8,127,996	\$ 9,998,808	\$ 9,783,082	\$ 9,959,910
% Inc/Dec	-26%	3%	23%	-2%	2%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 3,067,139	\$ 1,997,983	\$ (1,741,716)	\$ (755,978)	\$ (2,116,327)
% Inc/Dec	613%	-35%	-187%	-57%	180%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 5,256,565	\$ 8,323,704	\$ 10,321,687	\$ 8,579,971	\$ 7,823,993
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 8,323,704	\$ 10,321,687	\$ 8,579,971	\$ 7,823,993	\$ 5,707,666

- Revenue for this fund is budgeted to be 13% lower than the 2020 estimate. This amount represents a strategic use of the health insurance fund balance which is budgeted to decrease by \$756,000 in 2020 and another \$2.1 million in 2021. The county's health insurance consultant recommends a fund balance of between 16%-30% of net claims. Eagle County's net claims have averaged \$7.2 million over the past 5 years, so a fund balance of between \$1.1 million and \$2.2 million is appropriate. The utilization of fund balance in 2019 2021 will bring this closer to our targeted balance. The decreased revenue for this fund equates to lower expenditures in the other county funds with employees who participate in the county's health insurance plan.
- The salaries and benefits classification includes the cost of the county's claims and purchased services represent the administrative costs of the program.

Housing Operations Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

The Housing Operations fund is utilized primarily to fund salaries and benefits for housing staff, much of which is reimbursed from the related housing properties. The revenue from this fund comes from reimbursements from the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (ECHDA) and its affiliated housing projects and programs where staff perform property management and maintenance and other housing related duties.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		FTEs			er Capita
\$225,000		5.39		\$4.11	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Charges For Services	\$ 633,468	\$ 977,658	\$ 915,731	\$ 996,539	\$ 1,050,197
Miscellaneous	\$ 614	\$ 4,094	\$ 10,406	\$ -	\$ -
Interfund Transfers In	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 634,082	\$ 981,752	\$ 926,138	\$ 996,539	\$ 1,050,197
% Inc/Dec	-62%	55%	-6%	8%	5%
Expenditures					
FTEs	4.83	5.28	5.28	5.28	5.39
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 373,922	\$ 602,340	\$ 571,190	\$ 674,512	\$ 671,215
Purchased Services	\$ 250,561	\$ 339,780	\$ 344,214	\$ 322,027	\$ 378,982
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Supplies	\$ 33	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ 500,000	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 225,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 1,124,516	\$ 942,120	\$ 915,405	\$ 996,539	\$ 1,275,197
% Inc/Dec	62%	-16%	-3%	9%	28%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (490,434)	\$ 39,632	\$ 10,733	\$ -	\$ (225,000)
% Inc/Dec	-149%	-108%	-73%	-100%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 1,383,317	\$ 892,883	\$ 932,515	\$ 943,249	\$ 943,249
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 892,883	\$ 932,515	\$ 943,249	\$ 943,249	\$ 718,249

• Charges for services include wage reimbursements and a payment from the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority for work that Eagle County staff does for ECHDA.

• Purchased services is the administrative fee paid by this fund to the General Fund.

• Capital outlay includes cost for the development of a housing project on land owned by Eagle County located in west Eagle.

Housing Loan Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

The county's down payment assistance loan program was established in 1997 to make loans to citizens of Eagle County to assist them in becoming homeowners. Loans were made from this fund from 1998 to 2010, after which time all new loans were made by the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (ECHDA).

2021 Overview									
Net Use of Funds		FTEs		Net Use per Capita					
\$165,000		N/A		\$3.	01				
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget				
Expenditures									
Purchased Services	\$ 221,084	\$ 204,049	\$ 252,819	\$ 200,000	\$ 165,000				
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -				
Total Expenditures	\$ 221,084	\$ 204,049	\$ 252,819	\$ 200,000	\$ 165,000				
% Inc/Dec	-36%	-8%	24%	-21%	-18%				
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ (221,084)	\$ (204,049)	\$ (252,819)	\$ (200,000)	\$ (165,000)				
% Inc/Dec	-36%	-8%	24%	-21%	-18%				
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 1,533,871	\$ 1,312,787	\$ 1,108,738	\$ 855,919	\$ 655,919				
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 1,312,787	\$ 1,108,738	\$ 855,919	\$ 655,919	\$ 490,919				

• Activity in this fund relates to the repayment of existing down payment assistance loans. Cash proceeds from the repayment of these loans goes to ECHDA to make new down payment assistance loans.

• The reduction in this fund's fund balance represents repayment of loans made by the program prior to 2010.

Workforce Housing Rental Fund (Special Revenue Fund)

The Workforce Housing Rental fund was created in 2019 to track the revenues and expenditures related to workforce housing rental properties that the county owns.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs		Net Addition per Capita		
\$24,930		0.61		\$0.4	46	
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Federal Grants	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Investment Earnings	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 24	\$ 48	
Rents & Royalties	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 194,414	\$ 441,108	
Total Revenues	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 194,438	\$ 441,156	
% Inc/Dec					127%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.61	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 5,748	\$ 45,024	
Training Benefits	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Purchased Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 65,236	\$ 131,302	
Supplies	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 3,750	\$ 5,900	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Principal Payments	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Transfers Out	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 96,000	\$ 234,000	
Total Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 170,734	\$ 416,226	
% Inc/Dec					144%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 23,704	\$ 24,930	
% Inc/Dec					5%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 23,704	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 23,704	\$ 48,634	

- Two10 at Castle Peak is a 22-unit workforce housing rental property in the town of Eagle. The property was completed and available for rent in August 2020. The Eagle County Housing and Development Authority manages this property for Eagle County. All excess revenues from the operation of this property will be transferred to the CIP fund to assist in the repayment of the debt associated with the construction of the property.
- 431 Broadway is a 5 bedroom home located in Eagle and owned by Eagle County. We have budgeted to operate this facility as housing for Eagle County employees.

Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (Blended Component Unit)

The mission of the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (ECHDA) is to provide innovative, affordable housing solutions to the working people, elderly and disadvantaged members of the Eagle County community. The county commissioners serve ex officio as the board of ECHDA.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Use of Funds		Net Use p	er Capita		
\$367,514		N/A		\$6.	71
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 2,500	\$ 2,500	\$ 30,000	\$ 172,500	\$ 2,500
Charges For Services	\$ 501,915	\$ 497,163	\$ 449,124	\$ 460,943	\$ 473,650
Investment Earnings	\$ 340,553	\$ 286,712	\$ 341,129	\$ 233,512	\$ 53,500
Rents & Royalties	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Interfund Transfers In	\$ -	\$ 500,000	\$ 1,250,000	\$ 500,000	\$ 250,000
Total Revenues	\$ 844,968	\$ 1,286,375	\$ 2,070,253	\$ 1,366,955	\$ 779,650
% Inc/Dec	-10%	52%	61%	-34%	-43%
Expenditures					
Training Benefits	\$ 5,025	\$ 10,095	\$ 8,183	\$ 4,500	\$ 5,000
Purchased Services	\$ 683,551	\$ 817,416	\$ 887,609	\$ 831,838	\$ 828,940
Supplies	\$ 2,891	\$ 3,118	\$ 3,229	\$ 3,024	\$ 2,224
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ 240	\$ 43,001	\$ 29,453	\$ 500,000	\$ 250,000
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ (55,600)	\$ -	\$ 61,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 691,707	\$ 873,629	\$ 872,875	\$ 1,339,362	\$ 1,147,164
% Inc/Dec	-12%	26%	0%	53%	-14%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 153,261	\$ 412,746	\$ 1,197,378	\$ 27,593	\$ (367,514)
% Inc/Dec	0%	169%	190%	-98%	-1432%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 14,745,695	\$ 14,898,956	\$ 15,635,582	\$ 16,832,960	\$ 16,860,553
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 14,898,956	\$ 15,311,702	\$ 16,832,960	\$ 16,860,553	\$ 16,493,039

- In the county's comprehensive annual financial report, Eagle County Housing and Development Authority is consolidated with The Valley Home Store and Lake Creek Village Apartments, collectively referred to as ECHDA. This chart shows only the authority activity. The Valley Home Store and Lake Creek Village Apartments are shown separately.
- Charges for services include property management fees.
- Investment earnings include interest on loans made to other entities as well as bank and down payment assistance loans.
- Interfund transfers in represent excess cash flow from Lake Creek Village apartments which will be utilized to fund other housing projects.
- Purchased services includes a \$765k payment to Eagle County Government to cover the cost of the housing staff (budgeted in the Housing Operations fund) and to pay the department administrative fee.

The Valley Home Store (Blended Component Unit)

The Valley Home Store LLC's creation was authorized by Eagle County Housing and Development Authority Resolution 2009-043 to administer a variety of housing programs, including the sale of deed-restricted housing stock and down payment assistance loan programs.

	20	021 Overview			
Net Addition of Funds		FTEs			per Capita
\$8,414		2.00		\$0.	15
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Fatimata	2021 Dudget
	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget
Revenues					
Intergovernmental Revenue	\$ 22,100	\$ 25,662	\$ 21,480		
Charges for Services	\$ 218,349	\$ 225,302	\$ 269,151	\$ 196,350	\$ 196,350
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 1,078	\$ 549	\$ 1,400	\$ 1,200	\$ 1,200
Miscellaneous	\$ 1,341	\$ 122	\$ 21,499	\$ 14,800	\$ -
Total Revenues	\$ 242,868	\$ 251,635	\$ 313,530	\$ 235,850	\$ 219,750
% Inc/Dec	44%	4%	25%	-25%	-7%
Expenditures					
FTEs	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 156,286	\$ 170,881	\$ 158,287	\$ 169,349	\$ 184,706
Training Benefits	\$ 2,618	\$ 2,621	\$ 1,565	\$ 3,500	\$ 1,700
Purchased Services	\$ 13,650	\$ 24,325	\$ 34,349	\$ 31,692	\$ 20,350
Supplies	\$ 7,454	\$ 9,050	\$ 2,258	\$ 4,580	\$ 4,580
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Transfers Out	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 200,000	\$ -	\$ -
Total Expenditures	\$ 180,009	\$ 206,875	\$ 396,459	\$ 209,121	\$ 211,336
% Inc/Dec	10%	15%	92%	-47%	1%
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 62,859	\$ 44,760	\$ (82,929)	\$ 26,729	\$ 8,414
% Inc/Dec	1346%	-29%	-285%	-132%	-69%
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 53,713	\$ 116,572	\$ 161,332	\$ 78,403	\$ 105,132
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 116,572	\$ 161,332	\$ 78,403	\$ 105,132	\$ 113,546

• The Valley Home Store budgeted slightly reduced revenue for 2021. Most revenue for this entity comes from administrative fees earned through the sale of deed restricted housing units. We believe real estate sales will remain stable in 2021, as demand continues to be high.

• The Valley Home Store is consolidated into the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority in the county's comprehensive annual financial report.

Lake Creek Village Apartments (Blended Component Unit)

Lake Creek Village Apartments is a 270-unit apartment complex located along the Eagle River in the west Edwards area. It offers 1, 2, and 3 bedroom units to Eagle County residents and offers below market rents. The apartments are owned by Lake Creek Village LLC whose sole member is the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Addition of Funds	Net Addition per Capita					
\$376,496		5.50	\$6.	87		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Federal Grants	\$ 500,000	\$ 175,355	\$ 39,915	\$ -	\$ -	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ 34,224	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Investment Earnings	\$ 286	\$ 1,283	\$ 3,659	\$ 1,200	\$ 1,200	
Rents & Royalties	\$ 4,495,101	\$ 4,479,709	\$ 4,546,009	\$ 4,269,835	\$ 4,799,864	
Miscellaneous	\$ -	\$ 28,029	\$ 177,158	\$ 103,000	\$ 3,000	
Total Revenues	\$ 5,029,612	\$ 4,684,375	\$ 4,766,741	\$ 4,374,035	\$ 4,804,064	
% Inc/Dec	12%	-7%	2%	-8%	10%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	6.50	6.50	6.50	6.50	5.50	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 514,479	\$ 483,828	\$ 480,541	\$ 517,942	\$ 450,201	
Training Benefits	\$ 1,009	\$ 690	\$ 320	\$ 1,500	\$ 1,500	
Purchased Services	\$ 1,386,485	\$ 1,430,990	\$ 1,443,625	\$ 1,811,491	\$ 1,793,245	
Supplies	\$ 68,000	\$ 74,493	\$ 69,616	\$ 78,910	\$ 63,910	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 805,448	\$ 923,108	\$ 1,001,028	\$ -	\$ -	
Grants & Contributions Issued	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Principal Payments	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 915,320	\$ 792,439	
Interest Expense	\$ 671,973	\$ 722,288	\$ 929,892	\$ 963,298	\$ 1,076,273	
Transfers Out	\$ -	\$ 500,000	\$ 800,000	\$ 500,000	\$ 250,000	
Total Expenditures	\$ 3,447,393	\$ 4,135,397	\$ 4,725,021	\$ 4,788,461	\$ 4,427,568	
% Inc/Dec	3%	20%	14%	1%	-8%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 1,582,218	\$ 548,978	\$ 41,720	\$ (414,426)	\$ 376,496	
% Inc/Dec	39%	-65%	-92%	-1093%	-191%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ (1,077,034)	\$ 505,184	\$ 1,054,162	\$ 1,095,882	\$ 681,456	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 505,184	\$ 1,054,162	\$ 1,095,882	\$ 681,456	\$ 1,057,952	

• Rental revenue represents the rent paid by tenants at Lake Creek Village Apartments. Rents are budgeted to remain stable, however collections in 2020 were lower due to rent forgiveness that was provided to residents due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

- The transfer out line item includes a budgeted contribution of funds from Lake Creek Village to the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority.
- Interest expense went up in 2020 and 2021 because Lake Creek Village now has additional debt as explained in the <u>Current Debt Obligations</u> section of this report.
- Lake Creek Village Apartments is consolidated into the Eagle County Housing and Development Authority in the county's comprehensive annual financial report.

Golden Eagle Apartments (Discretely Presented Component Unit)

The 36-unit apartment complex located in the town of Eagle offers 1 bedroom apartments designated for senior citizens and disabled persons. Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation, whose board members are appointed by the board of county commissioners, purchased the facility in 2003.

	20	021 Overview				
Net Use of Funds	Net Use per Capita					
\$12,555		1.00	\$0.	23		
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget	
Revenues						
Federal Grants	\$ 20,500	\$ 53,000	\$ 50,902	\$ -	\$ 40,128	
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 12,000	\$ 70,000	
Investment Earnings	\$ 152	\$ 1,102	\$ 1,427	\$ 1,200	\$ 1,200	
Rents & Royalties	\$ 246,115	\$ 246,447	\$ 245,424	\$ 246,040	\$ 251,944	
Total Revenues	\$ 266,767	\$ 300,549	\$ 297,753	\$ 259,240	\$ 363,272	
% Inc/Dec	9%	13%	-1%	-13%	40%	
Expenditures						
FTEs	0.72	0.72	0.72	0.72	1.00	
Salaries & Benefits	\$ 39,068	\$ 52,349	\$ 54,102	\$ 56,872	\$ 73,676	
Training Benefits	\$ 152	\$ 1,502	\$ 660	\$ 720	\$ 600	
Purchased Services	\$ 109,904	\$ 116,081	\$ 138,058	\$ 205,998	\$ 218,076	
Supplies	\$ 5,080	\$ 3,874	\$ 7,908	\$ 8,090	\$ 7,010	
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 84,181	\$ 84,181	\$ 84,894	\$ -	\$ -	
Principal Payments	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 12,098	\$ 12,841	
Interest Expense	\$ 25,056	\$ 81,579	\$ 72,762	\$ 24,245	\$ 63,624	
Total Expenditures	\$ 263,441	\$ 339,567	\$ 358,384	\$ 308,023	\$ 375,827	
% Inc/Dec	-10%	29%	6%	-14%	22%	
Revenues less Expenditures	\$ 3,327	\$ (39,018)	\$ (60,631)	\$ (48,783)	\$ (12,555)	
% Inc/Dec	-107%	-1273%	55%	-20%	-74%	
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 318,373	\$ 321,700	\$ 282,682	\$ 222,051	\$ 173,268	
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 321,700	\$ 282,682	\$ 222,051	\$ 173,268	\$ 160,713	

- Rents are budgeted to remain stable for 2021.
- Grants are expected to help cover the debt costs as well as to fund a portion of the egress patio door conversion project.
- Purchased services increased for concrete work and the finalization of the egress patio door conversion.
- The increase in FTE in 2021 reflects the addition of a maintenance employee and a split of the maintenance employee and property manager between this property, Seniors on Broadway, and the newly completed Two10 at Castle Peak.

E911 Fund (Discretely Presented Component Unit)

The E911 Authority board members are appointed by the board of county commissioners. It is funded from a surcharge on local phone bills and its responsibility is to provide E911 dispatchers with a visual display of the address, phone number and jurisdictional agencies for calls to the emergency 911 phone number. The E911 Authority works closely with the town of Vail, which operates the dispatch center for the county.

	20	021 Overview							
Net Use of Funds	Net Use per Capita								
\$49,292		N/A		\$0.90					
Account Classification	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Budget				
Revenues									
Other Grants & Contributions	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 88,109				
Charges For Services	\$ 982,153	\$ 932,656	\$ 1,066,788	\$ 1,285,484	\$ 1,291,456				
Investment Earnings	\$ 5,320	\$ 6,148	\$ 4,490	\$ 3,033	\$ 4,000				
Total Revenues	\$ 987,473	\$ 938,804	\$ 1,071,278	\$ 1,288,517	\$ 1,383,565				
% Inc/Dec	4%	-5%	14%	20%	7%				
Expenditures									
Purchased Services	\$ 190,450	\$ 221,680	\$ 197,418	\$ 239,530	\$ 285,022				
Interdepartmental Services	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 4,599	\$ 12,855	\$ 13,835				
Intergovernmental Expenditures	\$ 771,559	\$ 774,562	\$ 816,453	\$ 845,030	\$ 874,606				
Supplies	\$ 2,500	\$ 5,677	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,000				
Depreciation & Amortization	\$ 39,860	\$ 41,682	\$ 45,324	\$ -	\$ -				
Capital Outlay & Leases	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 2,000	\$ 257,394				
Total Expenditures	\$ 1,004,369	\$ 1,043,601	\$ 1,063,794	\$ 1,099,415	\$ 1,432,857				
% Inc/Dec	2%	4%	2%	3%	30%				
Revenues less Expenditures	-\$16,896	-\$104,797	\$7,484	\$189,102	-\$49,292				
% Inc/Dec	-50%	520%	-107%	2427%	-126%				
Beginning Fund Balance	\$ 508,392	\$ 527,718	\$ 422,921	\$ 430,406	\$ 619,508				
Ending Fund Balance	\$ 491,496	\$ 422,921	\$ 430,406	\$ 619,508	\$ 570,216				

- Revenues for 2021 are projected to increase by 7%. This is due to an increase in the telephone surcharge rate from \$1.65 per line to \$1.72 per line.
- The largest expenditure line item for this authority is its payment to the town of Vail which runs the 911 dispatch center.
- The increase in capital outlay is due to the purchase of an updated phone system for the 911 service.

Fund Balances and Net Position

Eagle County defines fund balance as the difference between fund assets and fund liabilities and uses the term fund balance for all of its governmental funds. For other fund types, we use the term net position to indicate the difference between the sum of assets and deferred outflows of resources and the sum of liabilities and the deferred inflows of resources. The following table shows a summary of 2017 - 2019 audited fund balance or net position for each fund included in the Eagle County budget, along with the estimates for 2020 and 2021 balances. For the purpose of this table, fund balance and net position are added and considered together as the government's overall equity position.

Fund	2017 Actual	2018 Actual	2019 Actual	2020 Estimate	2021 Estimate
Beginning Fund Balance/Net Position	\$ 144,792,262	\$ 145,507,448	\$ 159,031,075	\$ 173,086,386	\$ 171,125,083
General Fund	\$ 26,530,431	\$ 31,565,465	\$ 34,017,272	\$ 32,774,844	\$ 30,907,498
Public Trustee Fund	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 138,668	\$ 116,100	\$ 114,107
Road & Bridge Fund	\$ 5,873,778	\$ 6,617,781	\$ 8,016,653	\$ 8,208,799	\$ 8,439,198
Human Services Fund	\$ 2,523,933	\$ 2,520,481	\$ 2,739,621	\$ 2,175,872	\$ 1,899,873
Offsite Road Improvement Fund	\$ 946,685	\$ 931,955	\$ 947,919	\$ 825,044	\$ 974,044
ECO Transit Fund (includes RFV Transit & Trails)	\$ 5,833,790	\$ 5,713,657	\$ 6,842,797	\$ 9,064,133	\$ 7,757,131
ECO Trails Fund	\$ 1,752,439	\$ 2,119,999	\$ 1,137,421	\$ 1,315,656	\$ 367,969
Airport Fund	\$ 3,110,805	\$ 4,431,774	\$ 3,486,107	\$ 5,744,071	\$ 7,923,640
* Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation	\$ 27,490,930	\$ 29,140,174	\$ 26,449,458	\$ 25,817,302	\$ 26,024,297
Conservation Trust Fund	\$ 337,788	\$ 88,144	\$ 112,591	\$ 163,891	\$ 220,091
800 MHz Fund	\$ 1,072,966	\$ 1,008,398	\$ 1,281,283	\$ 1,290,169	\$ 1,570,682
Emergency Reserve/TABOR Fund	\$ 2,663,799	\$ 2,701,616	\$ 2,747,427	\$ 2,747,427	\$ 2,747,427
Public Health Fund	\$ 1,103,582	\$ 503,387	\$ 571,136	\$ 1,016,830	\$ 1,088,285
Mental Health Fund	\$ -	\$ 894,601	\$ 663,454	\$ 265,719	\$ 277,227
Open Space Fund	\$ 314,478	\$ 2,537,358	\$ 6,922,623	\$ 8,471,075	\$ 11,627,751
Capital Improvements Fund	\$ 7,843,080	\$ 6,038,937	\$ 14,090,352	\$ 10,297,777	\$ 9,774,427
* Landfill Fund	\$ 14,897,499	\$ 15,601,151	\$ 16,095,078	\$ 16,038,934	\$ 15,710,845
* Fleet Fund	\$ 16,025,331	\$ 16,780,117	\$ 17,354,120	\$ 16,576,341	\$ 16,944,409
* Insurance Reserve Fund	\$ 322,851	\$ 240,342	\$ 433,569	\$ 328,321	\$ 245,936
* Health Insurance Fund	\$ 8,323,704	\$ 10,321,687	\$ 8,579,971	\$ 7,823,993	\$ 5,707,666
Housing Operations Fund	\$ 892,883	\$ 932,515	\$ 943,249	\$ 943,249	\$ 718,249
Housing Loan Fund	\$ 1,312,787	\$ 1,108,738	\$ 855,919	\$ 655,919	\$ 490,919
Workforce Housing Rentals Fund	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 23,704	\$ 48,634
* EC Housing and Development Authority	\$ 14,898,956	\$ 15,311,702	\$ 16,832,960	\$ 16,860,553	\$ 16,493,039
* The Valley Home Store	\$ 116,572	\$ 161,332	\$ 78,403	\$ 105,132	\$ 113,546
* Lake Creek Village Apartments	\$ 505,184	\$ 1,054,162	\$ 1,095,882	\$ 681,456	\$ 1,057,952
* Golden Eagle Apartments	\$ 321,700	\$ 282,682	\$ 222,051	\$ 173,268	\$ 160,713
* E911 Fund	\$ 491,496	\$ 422,921	\$ 430,406	\$ 619,508	\$ 570,216
Ending Fund Balance/Net Position	\$ 145,507,448	\$ 159,031,075	\$ 173,086,386	\$ 171,125,083	\$ 169,975,767
Annual Change in Fund Balance/Net Position	\$ 715,186	\$ 13,523,627	\$ 14,055,311	\$ (1,961,303)	\$ (1,149,316)

* These funds are presented on the full accrual basis of accounting in the county's CAFR so will likely have an adjustment between budget basis and GAAP basis.

- Eagle County is expected to end 2021 with a total fund balance/net position of \$170 million, which is \$1.1 million less than its estimated beginning fund balance/net position of \$171 million. This represents a 0.7% decrease.
- The fund balance of the General Fund is budgeted to decrease by \$1.9 million (5.7%) in 2021. The fund balance remains significantly higher than the current minimum reserve policy target of \$13.1 million.

Fund Balances and Net Position (continued)

Changes in estimated fund balance of greater than 10% are described below:

- The Human Services fund balance is expected to decrease by \$276,000 (13%) in 2021. The use of fund balance in this fund is because reimbursements from the state mandated programs that are housed within this fund are decreasing at a higher rate than the costs of operating these programs.
- The Offsite Road Improvements, Airport, Conservation Trust Fund, 800 MHz Fund, Open Space, Workforce Housing Rentals, and Lake Creek Village fund balances/net positions are all expected to increase by more than 10%. The increases will be used for projects in future years.
- The ECO Transit fund balance is budgeted to decrease \$1.3 million (14%). The operating revenue in this fund is from two primary sources sales tax and passenger fares. We are budgeting for both sources to decrease in 2021 due to uncertainty around the COVID-19 pandemic. We will closely monitor the financial condition of this fund and will make appropriate adjustments as we better understand the economic reality of 2021.
- The ECO Trails fund balance is budgeted to decrease \$948,000 (72%) in 2021. The fund has been saving money for the past two years in preparation for this capital expenditure.
- The Insurance Reserve fund balance is projected to decrease by \$82,000 (25%). With the addition of the risk management position, we will be carefully reviewing how we plan and budget for all insurance needs across the organization and will implement a long-term solution to this use of fund balance in 2021.
- The Health Insurance fund balance is budgeted to decrease by \$2.1 million (27%) in 2021. This is a purposeful, yet short term, decrease. The county's health insurance consultant recommends a fund balance of between 16%-30% of net claims. Eagle County's net claims have averaged \$7.2 million over the past 5 years, so a fund balance of between \$1.1 million and \$2.2 million is appropriate. The utilization of fund balance in 2019 2021 will bring this closer to our targeted balance.
- The Housing Operations fund is budgeted to reduce its fund balance by \$225,000 (24%) in 2021. These funds will be used to pay for a portion of the West Eagle planning and due diligence a one-time capital project.
- The Housing Loan fund is budgeted to reduce its fund balance by \$165,000 (25%) in 2021. The purpose of this fund is to hold existing down payment assistance loans. As loans are repaid, the fund balance (which consists of down payment loans receivable) is reduced and the cash from repayment of loans goes to ECHDA who revolves the cash into new down payment assistance loans.
- The Golden Eagle Apartments net position is budgeted to decrease by \$49,000 (18%) to \$223,000. Golden Eagle is planning some extensive landscaping work and concrete replacement in 2020. Neither of these projects are planned to recur in future years.

Mill Levy

Each December, the BoCC is tasked with passing a resolution allocating and approving the county's portion of property tax revenue for the following year. The total property tax revenue budget for the various funds is determined by the county mill levy multiplied by the final assessed valuation of property within the county and then reduced by any tax increment financing obligations. The BoCC may redistribute portions of the total 8.499 mills to different funds, as allowed by law, but may not raise the total mill levy without voter approval. Further, as required by voter approval, the Open Space fund must receive 1.5 mills and this cannot be reduced without voter approval.

The following chart shows the county's current mill levy that was approved by the BoCC on December 15, 2020 (the 2021 Mill Levy) as compared to the 2020 Mill Levy.

	2020 Mill Levy	2021 Mill Levy
General Fund	4.590	4.485
Road and Bridge	1.359	1.359
Human Services	0.935	1.020
Open Space	1.500	1.500
Insurance Reserve	0.115	0.135
Total Mill Levy	8.499	8.499
% of Increase		0.00%

• The Human Services fund mill increased by 0.085 to 1.020 mills. Additionally, the Insurance Reserve fund mill levy increased by 0.020 mills to 0.135 mills. The General Fund's mill was decreased by that same amount.

Where Do My Property Taxes Go?

All property tax is collected by the Eagle County Treasurer and then disbursed to taxing districts. A summary of distributions is shown in the graph below:



Long Range Financial Plan

The purpose of Eagle County's long range financial planning is to help decision makers understand and evaluate the current position of county funds as well as the long-term sustainability of each fund and annual operating budget. It also provides a starting point for future decision making by balancing potential spending needs and projected revenue outlook.

We are including an example of our Capital Improvements (CIP) fund financial forecasting models in this document. The CIP fund's primary revenue source is sales tax, which is a volatile source, as well as the relatively minor amounts for interest on investments, contributions from a rental housing project that was funded from this fund, and transfers in from other funds. Projected revenue sources are analyzed utilizing trends as well as economic expectations into the future. The county's sales taxes have steadily rebounded after having declined due to the 2008 recession. Most economists predict a mild recession in the next 2 to 5 years. The set of assumptions below indicate a 10% decline in sales tax revenues in 2021, another decline in 2022 and then a slow rebound. The exercise of long range planning includes a best case, worst case, and expected case analysis for all revenues.

After reviewing revenue projections, we reviewed all requested expenditures. The table below shows a summary of all requests that were ranked either as needs, or high or medium priority wants. It was determined that to do all of these projects, we need additional funding sources, so transfers in from the General Fund are shown. This request of funds from the General Fund ties in with the General Fund's long term plan.

			Capital Imp	rovements Fun	d - Revenue Ass	sumptions (Ex	pected)				
	Actual	Expected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected	Projected
	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
Revenues											
Sales Tax Revenue	\$ 6,230,320	\$ 6,723,142	\$6,884,775	\$ 6,196,298	\$ 5,886,483	\$ 5,945,347	\$6,004,801	\$6,064,849	\$6,125,497	\$6,186,752	\$6,248,620
Property Tax Revenue	\$ 189,063	\$ 188,313	\$-	s -	s -	s -	s -	s -	s -	s -	s -
Sales Tax % Growth	7.81%	7.91%	2.40%	-10.00%	-5.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%
Prop Tax % Growth	5.47%	-1009696	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Transfer In	\$ 20,543			\$ 500,000		\$ 500,000			\$1,500,000		\$1,000,000
Other Revenue	\$ 3,811	\$ 9,745,679	\$ 225,732	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000	\$ 225,000
Total Revenue	\$ 6,443,737	\$16,657,134	\$7,110,507	\$ 6,921,297	\$ 6,111,483	\$6,670,347	\$6,229,801	\$6,289,849	\$7,850,497	\$6,411,752	\$7,473,620
Expenditures											
Needs	\$ 3,514,689	\$ 3,556,193	\$3,295,000	\$ 3,809,000	\$ 4,379,000	\$3,843,500	\$3,968,500	\$3,884,000	\$4,082,250	\$3,963,500	\$4,192,500
Wants - High Priority	\$ 1,407,051	\$11,053,364	\$ 378,220	\$ 7,550,000	\$ 1,550,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000	\$1,550,000
Wants - Medium Priority	\$ 3,305,600	\$ 4,172,606	\$ 327,000	\$ 2,050,000	s -	\$1,500,000	\$ 500,000		\$3,500,000		\$2,500,000
Total Expenditures	\$ 8,227,340	\$18,782,163	\$4,000,220	\$ 13,409,000	\$ 5,929,000	\$6,893,500	\$6,018,500	\$5,434,000	\$9,132,250	\$5,513,500	\$8,242,500
Net use of funds	\$(1,783,603)	\$ (2,125,029)	\$3,110,287	\$ (6,487,703)	\$ 182,483	\$ (223,153)	\$ 211,301	\$ 855,849	\$ (1,281,753	\$ 898,252	\$ (768,880)
Beginning Balance	\$ 7,822,540	\$ 6,038,937	\$3,913,908	\$ 7,024,195	\$ 536,493	\$ 718,975	\$ 495,823	\$ 707,124	\$1,562,973	\$ 281,220	\$1,179,473
Ending Balance	\$ 6,038,937	\$ 3,913,908	\$7,024,195	\$ 536,493	\$ 718,975	\$ 495,823	\$ 707,124	\$1,562,973	\$ 281,220	\$1,179,473	\$ 410,592

The results of this long term plan exercise showed that even though some years have more revenue than planned expenditures it is important for decision makers to look at the long-term requests so lower priority projects are not approved instead of saving for future higher priority projects. The plan guides our decisions for the current budget year. Additionally, it showed the need to utilize funding sources outside of the sales tax projections to meet all of the current capital needs and high and medium priority wants.

2021 Budget Process

Planning for the next year's budget is an ongoing process and began in earnest in August 2020 when the county manager's office and the finance department delivered the 2021 budget message.

The finance team met with key stakeholders to discuss short-term factors such as revenue projections, strategic priorities, salary and benefit guidelines and costs, program enhancements, and appropriate use of reserves. In addition, several user groups met to set user fees, allocate staff costs among activities, projects, and grants. In August and September, the county manager's office and finance director met with departments to perform service area reviews. Included in those reviews were discussions regarding the budget process and key budget priorities. Finally, a committee made up of the county manager, deputy county managers, finance director and director of human resources discussed all requests related to personnel. Another committee met to discuss capital improvement project requests.

After all of the information gathered during meetings and workshops was compiled, the finance director and county managers reviewed individual budgets and asked for clarification and changes before presenting the initial draft of the budget to the board of county commissioners. In preparation for the initial budget discussion with the BoCC, the budget was made public and input from the public was considered. Public input was accepted through public (virtual due to the COVID-19 pandemic) meetings, telephone conversations, and email correspondence. After several additional discussions between the board of county commissioners, county management, and staff, the final budget was presented to the BoCC for its consideration on December 8, 2020 and was adopted on December 15, 2020. The following calendar shows the process.

Date	Action Item	Participants
Aug. 13	Deliver budget message, calendar, and forms. Departments can begin input into New World budget module.	CMO, Finance Director, Elected Officials, Directors and other staff involved in the budget process.
Aug. 24	Budget Q&A - Training on how to input your budgets.	Finance department. Anyone interested in attending. <u>Add to your</u> <u>calendar here.</u>
Sept. 23	All budgets input into New World. Department input process closes. All CIP request forms are due.	All offices and departments
Sept. 28	Vacancy Control - Backfilling vacancy requests due	All offices and departments
Oct. 2	CIP committee meets to discuss requests.	CIP committee
Oct. 9	Vacancy Control - Backfill requests discussion	FTE committee
Oct. 15	Submit proposed budget to governing body (CRS 29-1-105) and publish "Notice of Budget" (CRS 29-1-106(1)). DOLA deadline October 15.	Finance Director

2021 Budget Calendar

2021 Budget Process (continued)

Date	Action Item	Participants
Oct. 27	Budget Discussion with BoCC	BoCC, CMO, Finance Director, Elected Officials and Directors
Nov. 13	Vacancy Control personnel requests discussion	FTE committee
Nov. 17	Budget Discussion with BoCC	BoCC, CMO, Finance Director, Elected Officials and Directors
Dec. 8	2021 Budget Presentation to BoCC and public	BoCC, CMO, Finance Director, Elected Officials and Directors Add to your calendar here.
Dec. 15	BoCC adopts 2021 budget and sets and certifies County's mill levy. DOLA deadline December 15.	BoCC, CMO, Finance Director Add to your calendar here.
Dec. 22	County Commissioners to levy taxes and to certify the levies to the assessor. (Special BoCC meeting to be scheduled (CRS 39-1-111(1)) DOLA deadline December 22.	BoCC, Finance Director

Budgetary Level of Control

The level of budgetary control is at the fund level. No spending agency may expend, or contract to expend, any money in excess of the amount appropriated in the budget resolution. Administratively, operating budgets are controlled at the classification level. Departments can appropriate dollars between classifications with the approval of the finance director.

Budget Amendments

Throughout the year, the budget may be amended from time to time based upon unforeseen circumstances or new opportunities. Departments may submit a request to amend their budgets to the finance director. The finance director reviews all budget amendment requests and then presents them to the board of county commissioners for its approval. Any amendment to the Eagle County budget is consummated through resolution at a public meeting.

Statistical and Supplemental Data

The purpose of this section is to explain how Eagle County is governed and to highlight the Eagle County community and its demographics and economy.

Form of Government

Eagle County is governed by a three member board of commissioners. The commissioners are elected at large to four-year staggered terms and are limited to serving two terms. Each must live in the geographic district for which he or she is running. Eagle County is separated into three districts.

The BoCC is charged with the responsibility of governing the county by complying with the Colorado Revised Statutes, adopting local ordinances, adopting an annual budget, and establishing local annual property tax rates. The BoCC also has the authority to call bond referendums, enter into contracts, and establish new programs. The board of county commissioners sets the strategic goals for Eagle County and appoints the county manager, county attorney, and members of various boards and commissions.

Current Eagle County Commissioners

The current commissioners from Left to Right: Kathy Chandler-Henry, Jeanne McQueeney, and Matt Scherr.



Kathy Chandler-Henry represents District 2 and was appointed in July of 2013 to fill the final two years of the term. She was elected to her second four-year term in 2020. Kathy is the county's representative to the Water Quality Quantity Committee, Ruedi Reservoir Water and Power Authority, Northwest Colorado Council of Government Economic Development District Board of Directors, Lake Creek Affordable Housing Corporation Board, FirstNet Governing Board, and the Colorado River Water Conservation District Board of Directors.

Jeanne McQueeney represents District 3 and is the 2021 BoCC Chair. Her term began on January 3, 2015. She was re-elected on November 6, 2018 to serve her second term. Jeanne represents Eagle County on the Northwest Colorado Council of Governments, the Eagle County Regional Transportation Authority, and the Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation. Jeanne also serves as the chair of the Roaring Fork Transportation Authority and was appointed by the governor to the Early Childhood Leadership Commission in 2016.

Matt Scherr represents District 1 and was appointed in February of 2019 to fill the final two years of the term. He was elected to his first four-year term in 2020. Matt represents Eagle County on regional transit solutions through the I-70 Coalition and on climate issues through the Rocky Mountain Climate Organization and Colorado Communities for Climate Action.

This map outlines, in red, the three districts that the commissioners represent.



<u>Other Elected Officials</u> The last election was held November 3, 2020. The current elected officials are:

> Mark Chapin, Assessor Regina O'Brien, Clerk and Recorder Kara Bettis, Coroner

James Van Beek, Sheriff Kelly L. Miller, Surveyor Teak J. Simonton, Treasurer/ Public Trustee

Geography

Eagle County is located in the Rocky Mountains of Colorado. It was named after the Eagle River, which runs through the county. The highest elevation is 14,011 feet, the summit of Mount of the Holy Cross. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the county has a total area of 1,694 square miles. The county includes the following towns: Avon, Basalt, Eagle, Gypsum, Minturn, Red Cliff and Vail.



Community Profile

<u>History</u>

The Ute Indians claimed Eagle County lands for summer hunting and fishing grounds before Europeans explored the area. The first reliable account of European presence in the Eagle River Valley was in 1840 when Kit Carson guided the Fremont party through the region.

Fortune hunters and settlers scoured the state, striking lead carbonate ore in Leadville in 1874. The strike brought many prospectors to the valley, and by 1879 a permanent camp was established and the town of Red Cliff was born. Eagle County was carved from Summit County by the Colorado legislature in 1883 and Red Cliff, named for the surrounding red quartzite cliffs, was the first county seat. The county government moved west to the town of Eagle in 1921 where it remains today.

The evolution of Vail from a quiet sheep pasture to an international resort is credited to the famous 10th Mountain Division ski troops who were introduced to the valley while training at Camp Hale in the 1940s. Following World War II, a group of former Army buddies returned to the Gore Creek Valley to fulfill their collective dream of developing a ski resort. Vail later emerged as a ski giant and the county has flourished ever since.



<u>Today</u>

Outdoor enthusiasts continue to travel to Eagle County from around the world. Eagle County is home to world renowned ski resorts and golf courses. Eagle County Regional Airport transports visitors to the county. The airlines provide seasonal non-stop flights from major cities such as: Atlanta, Chicago, Dallas/Fort Worth, Houston, Miami, New York, Philadelphia, Salt Lake City, San Francisco and Los Angeles.



Demographics and Economics

Eagle County is one of 64 counties in Colorado. County governments serve both urban and rural areas. They are an administrative branch of government and exist to administer government programs at a local level. No county is the same. Here is a comparison of similar counties in Colorado.

COLORADO COUNTY BUDGET C 2020	COMPARISON		
	<u>Eagle</u>	<u>Garfield</u>	<u>La Plata</u>
Total Population	55,127	60,061	56,221
Population % Change 2010- 2019	0.20%	0.49%	-0.16%
Total FTE (2019 CAFR)	508	504	411
Total FTE (2020 Budget)	519	504	419
Total Budgeted Revenues (2020 Approved) All Funds		93,594,853	81,409,070
Total Budgeted Expenditures (2020 Approved) All Funds		107,314,231	95,101,089
Total Budgeted Revenues (2020 Approved) General Fund		50,244,653	44,886,559
Total Budget Expenditures (2020 Approved) General Fund		28,704,478	48,777,541
Source: https://www.colorado-demographics.com/counties_by_population, https:	://www.census.gov/	/quickfacts, respect	ed Counties CAFR

Eagle County has a population of almost 55,000. As of July, 1 2019 there was a total of 33,174 housing units and 18,171 households.

				DEMOG	RA	INTY, COL PHIC STA FISCAL YE	TIS	STICS				
	2010	2011	2012	2013		2014		2015	2016	2017	2018	2019
Population Total	52,513	52,092	51,768	51,921		52,460		52,921	53,989	54,772	54,993	55,127
Percent Change	2.9%	-0.8%	-0.6%	0.3%		1.0%		0.9%	2.0%	1.5%	0.4%	0.2%
Births	864	888	886	844		754.4	n/	/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Deaths	102	190	195	204		212.5	n/	/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Net Migration	641	1388	-1,293	1,227		133	n/	/a	n/a	n/a	n/a	n/a
Population Change	 1464	-421	-324	153		539		461	1068	783	221	134
Median Age	36.6	34	34.9	36		36.2		37	36.7	37	37.4	36.5
School Enrollment	6,107	6,181	6,408	6,383		6,713		6,546	6,901	6,956	6,863	6,841
Percent Change	3.5%	1.2%	3.7%	-0.4%		5.2%		-2.5%	5.4%	0.8%	-1.3%	-0.3%
Labor Force	29,377	29,425	29,793	29,391		32,739		32,910	33,651	36,504	36,207	37,073
Percent Change	-6.6%	0.2%	1.3%	-1.3%		11.4%		0.5%	2.3%	8.5%	-0.8%	2.4%
Unemployment Rate												
Percentage	9.60%	9.00%	8%	6.60%		4.20%		3.10%	2.80%	2.30%	2.70%	2.20%
Vehicle Registration	50,669	51,830	52,251	54,360		56,045		57,083	59,378	59,759	60,080	67,272
Percent Change	-2.46%	2.29%	0.81%	4.04%		3.10%		1.85%	4.02%	0.64%	0.54%	11.97%
Median Household Income	\$ 76,500	\$ 75,400	\$ 76,400	\$ 77,200	\$	78,300	\$	77,600	\$ 79,600	\$ 80,600	\$ 83,803	\$ 84,685
Percent Change	-1.8%	-1.4%	1.3%	1.0%		1.4%		-0.9%	2.6%	1.3%	4.0%	1.1%

Sources: Demographic Section of the Colorado Division of Local Government and Labor Market Services, U.S. Census and other statisticals

School enrollment obtained from Eagle County School District Admin Offices for entire County

The education level statistics were compiled from the 2017 American Community Survey. This survey polled the population 25 years of age or older.







Source: <u>Https://factfinder.census.gov</u>

<u>Economics</u>

Eagle County has a gross assessed valuation of \$3.5 billion across all types of property. Its largest taxpayers are shown in the table below.

202	LARGEST PROPERTY TAX PAYERS		
	EAGLE COUNTY, COLORADO		
<u>Taxpayer</u>	Type of Business	2020 Assessed Valuation	% of Total Assessed Valuation
Vail Corp.	Skiing and Real Estate Development	\$ 77,869,840	2.20%
DiamondRock Vail Owner, LLC	Lodging Industry	42,688,980	1.21%
Ashford BC LP	Real Estate Development	34,018,440	0.96%
Union Pacific Railroad CO	Railroad	33,229,600	0.94%
Arrabelle at Vail Square	Lodging Industry	28,646,250	0.81%
EX Vail LLC	Lodging Industry	26,973,770	0.76%
Vail Hotel Partners LLC	Real Estate Development	24,939,990	0.70%
Public Service Co. of Colorado (XCEL)	Utility	19,045,700	0.54%
Holy Cross Electric Assoc. Inc.	Utility	16,651,000	0.47%
Bachelor Gulch Properties LLC	Real Estate Development	16,051,160	0.45%
Total As	sessed Valuation for 10 Largest Taxpayers	<u>320,114,730</u>	<u>9.04%</u>
Total A	Assessed Valuation for All Other Taxpayers	3,222,462,580	<u>90.96%</u>
		<u>\$3,542,577,310</u>	<u>100.00%</u>
Source: Eagle County Assessor's Office	2		

Budget Approval Resolution

Commissioner Scherr moved adoption

Of the following Resolution:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-099

RE THE MATTER OF THE ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET AND THE MAKING OF APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021.

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 29-1-103, as amended, requires the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Eagle, State of Colorado (hereinafter the "Board"), to adopt a budget setting forth the expenditures of the various county offices, departments, boards, commissions, and other spending agencies for fiscal year 2021, beginning January 1, 2021, and ending December 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed 2021 budget for the County of Eagle was held December 8, 2020; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to public notice duly published in accordance with C.R.S. § 29-1-106, as amended, the proposed 2021 budget for the County of Eagle has continuously been open for public inspection from October 15, 2020; a public hearing was held December 8, 2020, before the Board to consider the adoption of the subject 2021 proposed budget; and interested taxpayers were and have continuously been given the opportunity to file or register any objections to the subject proposed 2021 budget; and

WHEREAS, the Board has made provisions within the 2021 budget for the County of Eagle for revenues including unappropriated fund balances in an amount equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures set forth within the subject 2021 budget; and

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 29-1-108(2) requires the Board to enact a resolution making appropriations for fiscal year 2021 in accordance with the adopted 2021 budget for the County of Eagle; and

WHEREAS, all legal requirements have been fully complied with and performed in the premises.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO:

THAT, the total amount of One Hundred Thirty-Three Million, Six Hundred Six Thousand, Five Hundred Twenty-One dollars (\$133,606,521) is the amount of the proposed revenues, including unappropriated fund balance, and expenditures for the County of Eagle, State of Colorado, fiscal year 2021.

THAT, the Board hereby adopts as the budget of the County of Eagle, State of Colorado, for the 2021 fiscal year the 2021 proposed budget considered and approved, with any amendments so noted, by the Board on December 15, 2020, in the total aforesaid amount of One Hundred Thirty-Three Million, Six Hundred Six Thousand, Five Hundred Twenty-One dollars (\$133,606,521) for the specific purposes, functions, restrictions and amounts identified during the various public budget meetings/hearings referred to hereinabove, and the various working documents associated therewith.

THAT, the Board hereby appropriates to the various county funds, and for the various county offices, departments, commissions, boards, and other spending agencies, the following amounts for the specific purposes, functions, restrictions and amounts identified in the adopted 2021 budget for the County of Eagle and associated working documents, and during the various public budget meetings/hearing referred to hereinabove:

(The remainder of this page is intentionally blank)

General Fund:	(\$	44,892,858)
Special Revenue Funds:		
Road and Bridge Fund	(\$	8,785,251)
Human Services Fund	(\$	8,218,276)
Offsite Road Improvements Fund	(\$	1,000)
ECO Transit Fund	(\$	12,688,439)
ECO Trails Fund	(\$	1,774,395)
Airport Fund	(\$	5,682,826)
Conservation Trust Fund	(\$	73,800)
800 MHz Fund	(\$	309,978)
Emergency Reserve (TABOR) Fund	(\$	-)
Public Health Fund	(\$	5,157,615)
Mental Health Fund	(\$	745,950)
Housing Loan Fund	(\$	165,000)
Housing Operations Fund	(\$	1,275,197)
Workforce Housing Rentals Fund	(\$	416,226)
Open Space Fund	(\$	2,002,398)
Capital Improvements Fund	(\$	7,008,090)
Enterprise Funds:		
Landfill Fund	(\$	3,626,189)
Internal Service Funds:		
Fleet Fund	(\$	6,661,665)
Insurance Reserve Fund	(\$	1,162,985)
Health Insurance Fund	(\$	9,959,910)
Blended Component Units:		
Eagle County Housing and Development Authority	(\$	1,147,164)
The Valley Home Store	(\$	211,336)
Lake Creek Village Apartments	(\$	4,427,568)
Eagle County Air Terminal Corporation	(\$	5,281,382)
Custodial Fund		
Public Trustee		(\$122,339)
Discretely Presented Component Units:		
E911 Authority	(\$	1,432,857)
Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation	(\$	375,827)
Total Appropriations for all Eagle County Funds	(\$	133,606,521)

THAT, pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-1-113, the Eagle County Budget Administrator, is hereby requested and directed to immediately transmit a copy of this Resolution to the officer or employee of the County of Eagle whose duty it is to draw warrants or orders for the payment of money.

-3 -

THAT, pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-1-113, the Eagle County Budget Administrator, is hereby further requested and directed to file an original or certified copy of this Resolution with the Division of Local Governments in the Department of Local Affairs.

THAT, the adopted 2021 budget and the 2021 appropriations made as set forth in this Resolution are to be read as one comprehensive and integrated document. In no event shall a county office, department, commission, board, or spending agency expend or contract to expend any money; or incur any liability; or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money for any purpose for which provision is made in this Resolution, associated working documents and the related public budget meetings/hearings, which is in excess of the amounts appropriated in this Resolution for such office, department, commission, board or other spending agency, and/or purpose; nor which involves the expenditure of money inconsistent with the purposes, functions, restrictions, clarifications and/or specified monetary amounts as detailed and set forth within this Resolution, associated working documents and the related public budget meetings/hearings; nor which involves the expenditure of money for any purpose which is not identified within the aforementioned; unless prior to such expenditure the county office, department, commission, board or spending agency has presented the same to the Board, and the Board duly approves such expenditure in accordance with applicable law.

THAT, the Board hereby declares to be the legislative intent that the several provisions of this Resolution shall be severable, in accordance with the provisions set forth below:

If any provision of this Resolution is declared to be invalid by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that:

a. The effect of such decision shall be limited to that provision or provisions which are expressly stated in the decision to be invalid; and

b. Such decision shall not affect, impair, or nullify this Resolution as a whole or any other part thereof, but the rest of this Resolution shall continue in full force and effect.

THAT, this Resolution is necessary for the public health, safety and welfare of the County of Eagle, State of Colorado.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally blank)

-4 -

MOVED, READ AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Eagle, State of Colorado, at its regular meeting held the 15th day of December, 2020.

COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF

		COLORADO, By and Through Its
ATTEST:		BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Docussigned by: Regina O'Brin Clerk to fine Board of County Commissioners	By:	Jeanne McQueeney Commissioner Jeanne McQueeney Commissioner Jeanne McQueeney Commissioner Matt Schurr Matt Schurr Commissioner
- MaQuaanay		

Commissioner McQueeney seconded adoption of the foregoing resolution. The roll having been called, the vote was as follows:

Commissioner Chandler-Henry	Aye	
Commissioner McQueeney	Aye	
Commissioner Scherr	Aye	

.

This Resolution passed by _______vote of the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Eagle, State of Colorado.

Financial Policies



EAGLE COUNTY GOVERNMENT Financial Management Policies

Prepared By the Eagle County Finance Department For the Eagle County Board of County Commissioners 6/16/2015

I. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POLICIES AND GOALS

A. Overview

The Financial Management Policies for Eagle County Government (the County) serve multiple purposes, including, but not limited to: 1) formalizing the Board of County Commissioner's policy direction regarding financial management, 2) helping ensure that the County continues to be transparent and "exemplary stewards of the public trust", 3) maintaining and enhancing the sound fiscal condition of the County, 4) facilitating communications and expectations between Commissioners, various elected and appointed officials, County staff and constituents, 5) documenting the organization's responsibilities for safeguarding assets, verifying the accuracy of financial data, promoting operational efficiency and ensuring adherence to prescribed policies and compliance with federal and state regulations, 6) ensuring that appropriate reviews, monitoring, and approvals take place, and 7) setting a tone within the organization for ethical conduct and integrity. Periodic reviews and updates of the policies shall be conducted as needed. As circumstances change, it is anticipated that existing financial policies will need to be modified.

B. Ethics and Principles

The Board of County Commissioner's (referred to also as BoCC and the Board) is committed to the highest standards of conduct in the performance of its public duties. Individual and collective adherence to high ethical standards by public officials is central to the maintenance of public trust and confidence in government. The BoCC expects all elected officials, appointed officials, and staff to apply the following principles while adhering to the financial policies:

- Promote decisions with the public's interest in mind.
- Actively promote public confidence in Eagle County Government.
- Faithfully comply with all laws, regulations, and policies applicable to the County.
- Effectively manage and safeguard all funds and County assets that are your responsibility.
- Maintain a respectful attitude toward the public, employees, elected officials, colleagues, and associates.

- Cooperate effectively with other governmental agencies, political subdivisions, and all other organizations in order to further the public interest of the County.
- Engage only in outside interests which are compatible with the impartial and objective performance of public duties. Any activities which may not be compatible regarding a specific duty or issue should be disclosed immediately.

In addition, the finance department adheres to the Code of Professional Ethics of the Government Finance Officers' Association (GFOA), which is included in Section XI of this document. Refer to the "Eagle County Employee Handbook" for a more detailed discussion of standards of conduct and conflicts of interest.

II. ORGANIZATION and RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Organizational Basis

Legally, the County is an extension of Colorado State government (the State). The State legislature promulgates a significant number of statutes, and the executive branch imposes regulations affecting County government. Many of these statutes and regulations either specifically establish County policy or limit the BoCC's flexibility in establishing County policy.

B. Financial Reporting Entity

The reporting entity of Eagle County Government consists of (a) the primary government, i.e. the County itself; and (b) organizations for which the County is financially accountable. The County is considered financially accountable for a legally separate organization if it has some operational control and financial accountability, or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the County. Consideration is also given to other organizations that are fiscally dependent, i.e. unable to adopt a budget, levy tax, or issue debt without approval of the County. Organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that exclusion of their financial statements would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are also included in the County's reporting entity.

Blended Component Units

Blended component units of the County include: 1) Eagle Lease Financing Corporation, which, for reporting purposes, is part of the County and included in the Joint Maintenance Service Center debt service fund, 2) Eagle County Justice Center Financing Corporation, which, for reporting purposes, is included in the primary government because it is fiscally dependent upon the County and provides financing solely for the County and is therefore included in the Justice Center Finance Authority capital projects fund, 3) Eagle County Air Terminal (ECAT) which is reported as an enterprise fund, as the County may be financially accountable , further, upon payment in full of all issued bonds and other obligations the Corporation will be dissolved and ownership of the terminal, along with all remaining assets, will be transferred to the County, 4) Eagle County may be financially accountable . ECHDA is charged with increasing the supply of housing that is affordable to low income individuals and families who live or work in Eagle County. ECHDA operationally manages all housing projects the County is associated with, including Lake Creek Village, Golden Eagle Elderly Housing, Riverview Apartments and Seniors on Broadway. ECHDA is the sole member of Lake Creek Village, LLC.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units of the County include: 1) Lake Creek Affordable Housing Corporation, for which the Board of County Commissioners is responsible for appointing four members of the seven-member board, 2) Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation, for which the Board appoints the Corporation's board and can impose its will on the Corporation, and 3) Eagle County Emergency Telephone Service Authority (E 911), for which the Board appoints the Authority's board members.

Other Related Entity

The Public Trustee is a State statutorily-mandated position, appointed by the Board, but whose financial transactions are independent of the County. However, all expenditures and associated funding transactions related to the operations of the County Office of the Public Trustee are included in the general fund of the County, except those required to be accounted for in a custodial fund.

C. Board of County Commissioners

Eagle County is governed by a three-member board of commissioners. The commissioners are elected at large to four-year staggered terms. The Board is the County government's main policy-making body and serves in an administrative, budgetary, and, at times, a quasi-judicial capacity. The BoCC, in conjunction with the County manager, establishes all policies, including the financial policies of the County, which are reviewed and revised as needed.

The BoCC believes that all County officials will derive significant benefits from adherence to these financial policies. The Board also believes that this financial policy manual is consistent with the requirements of the "Local Government Budget and Accounting Laws" (C.R.S. Title 29: Article1, parts 1, 5,6).

The BoCC authorizes the County manager to take any and all necessary disciplinary actions to assure compliance with these policies by directors. The Board requires the County manager to inform the Board regarding noncompliance with these policies by elected or appointed officials and staff.

D. County Manager

The County manager serves at the pleasure of the Board of County Commissioners. The County manager is generally responsible for providing administrative support to the BoCC and for providing direction and interpretation of Board policies to the County departments/offices.

The County manager is directed by the BoCC to oversee the execution of these financial policies which have been established and adopted by the Board. Additionally, the County manager is designated as the official "Budget Officer" by the Board.

E. Finance Director

The finance director, appointed by the County manager, is responsible for providing administrative and operational support, control, and direction for the management of the County's finances to the Board, the County manager and all County departments/offices.

The finance director will develop all appropriate procedures and practices necessary to implement the financial policies established by the BoCC. In establishing procedures and practices, the finance director must comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, direction from the external auditor, direction from the State auditor, direction from the State Department of Local Affairs, other various pertinent agencies, and all relevant State and Federal statutes.

F. Department Directors

Department directors, appointed by the County manager, and elected officials, elected by citizens of Eagle County, are responsible for complying with all financial policies as described in the policy manual. Department directors and elected officials are also responsible for holding their respective staff accountable for compliance with the financial policies.

- III. BUDGET
- A. Budget Preparation
Budget Development Purpose Statement

The budget is to be developed with the participation of all departments and elected offices and with their commitment to meet the needs and expectations of County citizens, as aligned with the Board's strategic plan, while maintaining efficiency and effectiveness.

Relationship to Goals and Objectives

The County's annual strategic planning document identifies many of the goals and objectives that are considered in the development of the budget. Implementation of this vision directly supports the purpose statement of our organization. In addition, the BoCC's "Strategic Priorities" are used by many departments as a guide in developing their "Work Plans", from which a portion of their budgets are based.

Budget Philosophy

The BoCC's short and long term goals are the cornerstone of the budget. The budget is a financial plan which attempts to enhance and diversify revenues and minimize expenditures consistent with maintaining routine services and capital investments. Tools used include detailed budget proposals, long range financial projections and the Capital Improvements Plan. The finance department is responsible for preparing annually, and issuing to directors and elected officials, a budget preparation guide which shall include specific BoCC policy and detailed procedures for preparing each year's budget. Eagle County practices the concept of "modified zero-based" budgeting which guides department directors and elected officials to budget only what they know they need for the fiscal year, as to not budget excess funds in their budgets that are not expressly needed at the time the budget is adopted. This budgeting philosophy prevents the "fluffing" of budgets with contingency funds and the subsequent expenditure/expense of funds that otherwise might be saved. Due to this modified zero-based budgeting concept, the County has in place a supplemental process that allows department directors and elected officials the opportunity, several times during the year as needed, to adjust and amend their budgets when situations and/or circumstances arise that require additional funding.

Budget Policy

The policies for the County budget comply with Local Government Budget Law of Colorado as outlined in Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) Title 29: Article 1, Budget and Services: Part I. for preparation, consideration, adoption, execution, and audit procedures. The budget policies apply to all departments of Eagle County Government. Annually, the BoCC has the authority and responsibility to adopt and oversee implementation of a budget approving the use of public funds for the operation of all County departments. Eagle County's fiscal year runs from January first through December thirty-first.

Pursuant to C.R.S. Title 29: Article1, the County manager is the designated Budget Officer for the BoCC. The County manager, or his designee, shall present a recommended budget, including the mill levy distribution and budget, for BoCC consideration and approval no later than December 15th of each year. The budget is presented after working with all elected officials, constitutional officers, and department directors on behalf of the BoCC to prepare the recommended budget.

County Property Tax Revenue Budgeting

The Eagle County assessor is responsible for discovering, listing, classifying, and valuing all property within the County and follows state laws when meeting these responsibilities. The assessor's office publishes final property valuations for each fiscal year in November. These values are used to levy property tax that is to be collected by the County, schools, towns, and several special districts in the County that provide local services. All of the revenue generated by property taxes stays within the County. Property taxes do not support State services.

Each December, the BoCC is tasked with passing a resolution allocating and approving the County's portion of property tax revenue for the following year between various County funds. Total

property revenue budget for the various funds is determined by a set County mill levy multiplied with the final assessed valuation of property within the County and then reduced by any tax increment financing obligations. The BoCC may redistribute portions of the total 8.499 mills to different funds, as allowed by law, but may *not* raise the total mill levy without voter approval. Further, as required by voter approval, the Open Space fund must receive 1.5 mills and this cannot be reduced without voter approval.

The County finance department is responsible for collecting and compiling mill levy certifications for the County itself, as well as all towns, school districts, and special districts within the County. The report is presented to the public in December during a public BoCC meeting. The BoCC is not responsible for approving these certifications, but is only required to compile and present the information and then submit to the State Department of Local Affairs by December 22 of each year.

Balanced Budget Guidelines

Each fund is balanced separately. Unless specifically authorized by the BoCC, expenditures will be equal to or less than the revenues for each fund. In cases where expenditures exceed revenues, sufficient reserves must be available to cover the deficit, or a transfer from another fund must be approved by the BoCC. If sufficient reserves and/or a transfer from another fund is not available, essential services will receive first priority for funding. Subsequently, low-priority services will be identified for reduction or elimination. Long range financial projections are prepared for major funds and analyzed to assure that impacts of the proposed budget are fiscally sound in future years.

Strategic Plan Alignment

Every year the BoCC adopts and/or renews the County-wide strategic plan and their "Strategic Priorities". The strategic plan outlines the goals and objectives for the County for the budget year. The "Strategic Priorities" indicate the categories of programs that the BoCC will consider supporting as they relate to the strategic plan. The recommended budget shall, to the extent possible and based on available resources, be consistent with the goals and objectives of the BoCC adopted strategic plan and the "Strategic Priorities".

Fund Balances

In accordance with government accounting standards, the County reports the extent to which it is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the fund can be spent. The County does this by establishing, in accordance with GASB pronouncement 54, five different components of fund balance. They are:

> Nonspendable fund balance Restricted fund balance Committed fund balance

- Assigned fund balance
- Unassigned fund balance

The last three components together comprise "unrestricted fund balance" and are available for reserves and therefore considered in the reserve policies.

Reserve Requirements Policy

Each fund will maintain a sufficient "unrestricted fund balance"; to assure adequate cash for working capital and for possible catastrophes, to generate investment revenue, to avoid short term interest expenses, and to ensure good standing with credit agencies. A reserve is to be maintained for each fund at a level designated by the BoCC through resolution and as either a dollar amount or a percentage of the annual operating appropriation total of that fund. This reserve may be used at the BoCC's discretion during times of difficult economic conditions and/or for emergencies as recognized by the BoCC. If the reserve for any of these funds drops below the designated level, a plan for re-establishing the reserve will be developed and approved by the BoCC.

General Fund Reserves

The recommended budget for the general fund will set aside "committed funds" in reserve, as determined in an annual risk-based analysis of reserve requirements prepared by the finance department. The analysis will be prepared based on the GFOA "Triple A" model for assessing risk. In addition, the general fund budget will contain contingency funds for unexpected operational demands as a separate line item. The BoCC must authorize, during supplemental appropriations, any subsequent use of these funds from the general fund contingency line item. The budget is transferred to the appropriate department and line item account upon approval, thereby increasing the appropriation level of the department and allowing the expenditure of previously reserved funds in the proper account line item. Individual general fund departments/offices will not budget departmental reserves or contingency funds.

TABOR Emergency Reserves

An emergency reserve as required by Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution Amendment One, is maintained in a separate fund. These funds may only be used in the case of a "declared emergency" and under an amendment enacted in November 1992 - emergencies must be officially declared and then refunded to the emergency reserve fund within 180 days after the emergency ends.

Other Fund Reserves

Reserves for other funds will vary as appropriate to the fund and will be approved annually by the BoCC as a part of the budget process. Recommended reserve requirements for these funds will be made by the finance department after consultation with the appropriate department director.

Capital Improvement Fund Budget and Three-Year Capital Plan

The recommended budget shall include a capital budget and a three-year capital plan with a balanced financial base for renewal, replacement, and new projects. The recommended capital budget and capital plan shall be adequate to maintain capital assets at a level sufficient to protect infrastructure and minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. The capital improvement project (CIP) requests are reviewed and updated quarterly by a committee appointed by the County manager. The CIP committee will make recommendations to the BoCC for their consideration. Capital improvement projects are funded by sales tax revenue dedicated for capital and other revenues as deemed appropriate by the BoCC and consistent with State law. CIP funds should be used to create and maintain tangible assets owned by or to be owned by Eagle County Government. The adopted CIP plan authorizes expenditures for each specific project. Additions, deletions, or cost changes of projects in the adopted CIP budget require BoCC and County manager approval. The CIP plan will identify ongoing operating requirements associated with each capital project. If a capital request is approved in the budget process, the operating budget will reside in the appropriate department assigned to oversee the project, i.e., facilities for buildings, fixtures, furniture; IT for technology solutions; fleet for vehicle replacement, etc. Capital project budgets should include all costs and expenditures associated with the completion of the project.

Position Control

The recommended budget shall include a total number of recommended permanent, full-time equivalent (FTE) positions by classification for each department. Grant-related positions which do not require County matching dollars still must be approved by the BoCC prior to the hiring of any FTE. Further information on recruitment and new FTE policies are available on the ecoNet and are maintained by the human resources department

Performance Pay, Market Adjustments, and Benefits

The recommended budget shall include, to the extent possible and based on available resources, merit pay adjustments for employee performance pay, market adjustments and/or benefit adjustments. Performance pay is based on an assessment of actual employee performance pursuant to the Eagle County Personnel Manual and the compensation procedures as outlined and maintained by the human resources department. The complete compensation policy can be found under the human resources page on the ecoNet.

Revenues and Resources

The recommended budget shall include revenue and resource estimates that balance with proposed expenditure appropriations.

Property tax rates and distributions are estimated and allotted pursuant to Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution Amendment One. The allocation of property tax to separate County funds is based upon statutory requirements and/or revenue required to meet program needs. As mentioned above, the mill levy rate may be adjusted by fund depending on assessed values, program needs, and upon approval by the BoCC.

- Sales Tax Revenues are estimated on an aggregate basis for five years beyond the current budget year. Sales taxes shall be estimated using a combination of projections for sectors of the economy that produce sales tax and an analysis of past sales tax performance and current economic factors.
- Grants, Fees, and Other Revenue estimates are determined by individual departments with assistance from the finance department. Departments are responsible for meeting those budgets. Block grants and categorical grants will be tracked in separate cost centers.
- Beginning and ending fund balance and available resources for each County fund are estimated by the finance department based on projected actual expenditures and revenues of the previous and current fiscal years.
- All revenues are forecast for the current year, plus an additional five years, by the finance department. These forecasts are based on assumptions that are vetted with a Board-appointed Financial Advisory Board consisting of prominent citizens with various business and professional expertise.
- Upon BoCC approval, the general fund will recover the costs of providing services to County proprietary and special revenue funds. The recommended budget shall use the most current "full-cost" allocation plan to estimate the value of those services. The BoCC then sets inclusionary policies that may decrease the allocable costs charged to those funds receiving cost benefits from the County general fund.

Legislative Consideration and Adoption

The BoCC approves the budgeted level of expenditures for each fund. The budgets of all elected officials reside in the general fund, but are adopted at the department level within the fund. At any point prior to adoption, the BoCC may revise the recommended budget, pursuant to available resources and the requirements of state law. Elected officials and department directors shall have an opportunity to present any disagreement with the recommended budget to the County manager and then to the BoCC prior to budget adoption.

Budgetary Basis of Accounting – The County budget is adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments. County funds reflect the modified accrual basis of accounting in which budgeted revenues are recorded when they become measurable and available, and expenditures are charged against the budget when the economic event occurs. Once appropriations are approved by the BoCC, no department, office, or program may expend, or contract to expend, any funds in excess of the amount appropriated in the appropriation resolution. All unencumbered and unspent appropriations lapse at year end.

Budget Position Control – The BoCC approves the total number of permanent FTEs in the adopted budget. Departments must obtain BoCC approval for additional staffing levels above the adopted FTE count. The County manager, as designated Budget Officer, may authorize position classification realignments between and/or within departments.

Budget Control and Execution

The level of budgetary control is at the classification level within each department. No department may expend, or contract to expend, any money in excess of the amount appropriated in the appropriation resolution. No fund may carry a negative fund balance according to State statute. Administratively, operating budgets are controlled at the department level with departments having the authority to transfer appropriations within certain classifications within a department without further BoCC approval. Those certain classifications are fixed in the annual budget guidelines as approved by the BoCC and may be expanded to line item control. Increases in capital plan appropriations must be approved by the BoCC.

Supplemental Appropriations – Supplemental appropriations may be submitted for review and approval by the BoCC. Supplemental appropriations are appropriate when certain types of unanticipated revenue are secured. For example, the unanticipated revenue that must be offset by expenditure, i.e. a grant, would be considered for a supplemental appropriation. However, an increase in general revenue sources, e.g., property taxes, sales taxes, etc., is considered revenue available for County-wide appropriations and therefore not eligible for supplemental appropriations.

Supplemental appropriations may also be submitted for review and approval by the BoCC when additional appropriations are required to meet unanticipated needs, even though specific revenues have not been secured. In these cases, budget adjustments are made by appropriating from the general fund contingency line item or the unassigned fund balance. Budget adjustments appropriating from the unassigned fund balance should only be used when there are inadequate general fund contingency line item funds available and it has been reasonably determined that the requesting department cannot accommodate the request within its current appropriations. Supplemental appropriations for departments outside of the general fund may be submitted for review and approval by the BoCC as well, and, when necessary, may propose to use that fund's assigned fund balance to cover such appropriations that fulfill services within the mandated function of the fund. No other funds, besides the general fund, have unassigned fund balances.

Budgetary Transfers – Transfers of budget between spending agencies must be approved by the BoCC. A transfer can move budgeted and appropriated amounts from one or more spending agencies in one fund to one or more spending agencies in another fund. It can also consist of the transfer of budgeted and appropriated amounts between spending agencies within one fund.

Budget Audit and Evaluation - A budgetary control system is maintained to ensure adherence to the budget. Periodic financial reports are submitted to the BoCC and department directors detailing the progress toward compliance. These reports, at a minimum, compare the current budget and the year-to-date revenues and expenditures by department.

Performance Measures – Measures that assess the County's responsibility to provide services that are effective and efficient are developed and reported to assist the public in assessing the results of operations for Eagle County. In addition, the County's online check book, "Eagle County Open Book" (Open Book), reports all revenues and expenditures by department and vendor and is available to the public on the County's website.

B. Budget Administration and Control

Budget Control Purpose Statement

The purpose of budget control for Eagle County is to ensure that the budget is sustainable and transparent and that departments are accountable to their goals and objectives in an appropriate manner. Departments/offices should be prudent and strive to stay within budget, while being allowed the flexibility to deploy the appropriate resources to meet changing environments and client and/or commissioner needs through the supplemental process. This level of budgetary control adheres to the County's budget philosophy described above and the concept of modified zero-based budgeting.

Philosophy

Once the BoCC adopts the proposed budget, the finance director enters the budget (now a financial plan) into New World Systems, the County's accounting and financial system. The accounting system then becomes the major tool for monitoring financial status. Throughout the year, department directors and elected officials regularly review results by comparing actual expenditures and revenues to the budget. Whenever expenditures or revenues differ from the budget, causing a net negative variance, the department director or elected official prepares and presents corrective action plans to the County manager and the finance director for consideration and presentation to the BoCC for approval. This continuous monitoring and correction of the financial plan assures flexible and responsive provision of services.

<u>Definition</u>

An appropriation is the authority to spend funds as determined by the BoCC in the budget appropriation resolution. A supplemental appropriation is the authority to spend funds in addition to those authorized in the budget appropriation resolution; the additional spending must be formally approved by the BoCC using a supplemental appropriation resolution. The TABOR Amendment sets specific revenue and spending limits for each budget year. The BoCC can exceed those limits as the result of the specific voter approval at the November 1995 election.

Responsibilities

Directors and elected officials are responsible for managing their expenditures (at the "classification" level as defined by the BoCC annually) within the appropriation authorized. If a department director or elected official determines a need for additional appropriation or to rearrange appropriations "between classifications", that director or elected official must document and forward the request to the finance director. Any appropriation change request which creates an inter-agency, inter-fund, or supplemental-type of request must be published in the newspaper and formally accepted by resolution of the BoCC at a public hearing. Due to this administrative process, the finance director will hold and process these types of requests on a periodic basis, and as needed (typically, February, April, June, September and December).

The finance director is responsible for, when needed, assisting directors and elected officials in the preparation of supplemental requests and supporting documentation, consolidating the requests and in the presentation of those requests to the County manager and the BoCC. Also, the finance director will initiate a "Carry Forward Supplemental" process at the beginning of each fiscal year which will be included in the first supplemental, usually in February. Carry forwards are usually restricted to major or operating capital projects. Carry forwards for routine operating expenditures may be requested but are atypical and require very strong justification and extenuating circumstances to be approved.

The County manager, as County Budget Officer, is responsible for reviewing all appropriation requests. By statute, the BoCC has responsibility and authority for the final approval of all appropriations.

IV. ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

A. Accounting Basis

The County will maintain adequate systems for collecting, controlling, recording, and reporting both revenues and expenditures using GAAP as appropriate to governments and providing full compliance with both State and Federal laws and regulations.

B. Financial Statements

The County's basic financial statements, presented in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), are comprised of three components:

- 1. Government-wide Financial Statements,
- 2. Fund Financial Statements and
- 3. Notes to the Financial Statements

The CAFR also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements report information on all activities of the County and its component units. These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Both the government-wide statements (statement of net position and statement of net assets) distinguish functions of Eagle County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The County's public safety, public works, health and welfare, transportation, culture and recreation, and general government functions are classified as governmental activities. The sanitary landfill, Eagle County Air Terminal (ECAT) and Eagle County Housing and Development Authority (ECHDA) operations are classified as business-type activities.

The government-wide statement of net position presents information on all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Eagle County is improving or deteriorating.

The government-wide statement of activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the County's governmental functions and business-type activities. This is shown by how the County's net position changed during the financial period. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related

cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenditures are reported in the statement for some items that will result only in cash flows in future fiscal periods rather than affecting profit or loss (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements include Eagle County itself (known as the *primary government*), the business-type activities (sanitary landfill, ECAT and ECHDA) and the following legally separate entities or *discretely presented component units*: Lake Creek Affordable Housing Corporation, Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation (which includes Seniors on Broadway) and Eagle County Emergency Telephone Service Authority (E 911), for which Eagle County is financially accountable. Financial information for the discretely presented component units is presented separately from the financial information of the primary government.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources which have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Eagle County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Eagle County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Governmental funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are only recognized when they are both measurable and available and received within 60 days. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred, with the exception of debt

service expenditures, which are expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recorded only when due.

Eagle County recognizes four types of governmental funds; the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds and capital projects funds. The five major governmental funds within Eagle County Government are the general fund, the road and bridge fund, the Eagle Valley transportation fund, the airport fund and the open space fund.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Proprietary Funds

Eagle County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Eagle County Government uses enterprise funds to account for its sanitary landfill fund, Eagle County Airport Terminal fund and Eagle County Housing and Development Authority fund. Internal service funds use an accounting method that accumulates and allocates costs internally among Eagle County Government's various functions. Eagle County Government uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles, casualty insurance premiums, and for its health insurance plan. Because these services predominantly benefit government rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds, also referred to as custodial funds, are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government- wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support Eagle County's own programs.

C. Year-end Closings

Each year the finance department shall establish date cut-offs for processing purchases and receipts in order to facilitate timely "closings" to prepare finalized trial balances for the annual audit. The finance department is responsible for preparing two closing reports each year; budget basis and final audited.

Budget Basis

The budget basis closing report will be produced no later than the end of March. This report reflects revenue receipts through December 31, expenditures invoiced through December 31, and adjustments (accruals) as included in the budget. This report can be used to make overall judgments regarding ending position or budget performance and is used in preparation of the current periods published budget book. The finance department submits the published budget book to the State Department of Local Affairs for review and comment.

Final Audited

The final audited closing report, the CAFR, is the most technical report and is produced after the auditors have completed their official audit of the County's financials. This report reflects fiscal period activity including the accounting accruals and auditor adjusting entries that may have become necessary during the course of the audit. This report can be used to make overall judgments regarding ending position and to compare prior period performances. The CAFR is submitted to the State

Auditor's Office and to the Government Financial Officers' Association for review and comment.

D. Departmental Reporting

The County uses three financial accounting software systems, the primary one being New World Systems, which is used to maintain detailed record of all sub-ledger and general ledger activity of the County, with the exception of ECAT which uses QuickBooks and ECHDA which uses Yardi Beacon. The BoCC, County manager, elected officials, department directors and select managers and staff have direct access to a large variety of financial reports for their department(s). Reports can be generated at the line item detail level or at a broader overview level. The budget performance report compares actual month and year-to-date results to both the original adopted budget and the revised amended budget. Each manager, director and elected official is responsible for quality assurance and monthly review of financial and budget reports. Custom reports can be created by the finance department upon departmental request and reporting ability using the Business Analytics dynamic reporting tool for data that is stored in New World Systems.

The finance department will monitor summary reports and bring exceptions to the attention of the County manager and Board of County Commissioners as necessary.

Each department director and elected official is responsible for providing regular status reports to the County manager. Further, each department director and elected official is responsible for major projects that fall under their managerial control and may be required to provide project status reports to the Board of County Commissioners as necessary. Finance will support these efforts to the extent possible, given adequate notice.

E. Audits and Internal Controls

External Audit

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments, which Eagle County Government is, publish, within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with GAAP and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The BoCC employs a certified public accounting firm to audit the accounting financial statements on an annual basis. The finance department prepares the materials requested by the auditor and the finance director is responsible for producing and distributing both the required CAFR and the associated Audit Management Letters. The BoCC coordinates with directors and elected officials to correct any deficiencies noted by the external auditors in the management letter.

Internal Control

A comprehensive framework of internal control serves as the first line of defense in safeguarding assets and preventing and detecting errors and fraud. Internal control, which is synonymous with management control, helps government servants achieve desired results through effective stewardship of public resources.

The County manager and the finance department are primarily responsible for the appropriate internal control of all County assets and financial transactions. Internal control, as mentioned above, is a major part of managing an organization. An integral component of an organization's management that provides reasonable assurance that the following objectives are being achieved:

- Effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
- Reliability of financial reporting, and
- Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Examples of how the finance department assists the County in achieving effectiveness and efficiency are the periodic reviews of systems and the corresponding effectiveness of job duties within those systems. The finance department also provides management consulting advice to department

heads together with management reports to assist them in making cost-effective decisions. Examples of reliability of financial reporting include double reviews of all monthly reports, annual audited financials and monthly reconciliations of cash received. Examples of compliance with applicable laws and regulations include the timeliness of reporting to the State and the controls surrounding appropriated expenditures.

The finance department establishes appropriate internal control based on the following five standards and as explained in further detail below:

- 1. Control Environment
- 2. Risk Assessment
- 3. Control Activities
- 4. Information and Communications
- 5. Monitoring

Control Environment

Management and employees establish and maintain an environment throughout the organization that sets a positive and supportive attitude toward internal control and conscientious management. A positive control environment is the foundation for all other standards. It provides discipline and structure as well as the climate which influences the quality of internal control. Integrity and solid ethical values maintained and demonstrated by management and staff is the cornerstone of this foundation and will be held to a high standard.

Risk Assessment

Internal control shall provide an assessment of the risks the agency faces from both external and internal sources. One way risk can be assessed is through internal audits. Internal audits are performed by the finance department on a regular basis that include audits for adequate support documents/approvals, cash drawer balances, proper account coding (for both expenditures and revenues), receivable audits, payable audits, fixed asset audits, purchasing card audits, and any other control audit as deemed necessary. Forecasting, adaptive strategic planning, and consideration of findings from audits and other assessments all aid in risk identification and will be carried out on an ongoing basis by the finance department to continually identify and mitigate risk where possible.

Control Activities

Internal control activities help ensure that management's directives are carried out. The control activities should be effective and efficient in accomplishing the agency's control objectives. Control activities include the policies, procedures, techniques and mechanisms that enforce management's directives. The budget process, for example, is a control activity that helps ensure departments are carrying out the Board's directives. These activities are an integral part of the County's planning, implementing, reviewing, and accountability of County resources.

Information and Communications

Information is recorded and communicated to management and others within the entity as needed, in a form, and within a time frame that enables them to carry out their internal control and other responsibilities. Forms of communication must be reliable and timely for the County to achieve its objectives. The finance department stays current on all government finance pronouncements and standards that may affect County reporting and operations and communicates such information to department directors as soon as possible. The finance department also consults with external auditors, the attorney's office and/or any other necessary resources when additional expertise is required to properly implement changes in current operations, policies and procedures. The finance department are accurate, easily accessible, and add value to management decision making. In addition, communication to the public of all expenditures is accomplished through posting on the online check book, Open Book, on the County's website.

Monitoring

Internal control monitoring assesses the quality of performance over time and ensures that the findings of audits and other reviews are promptly resolved. Monitoring is a continual process and occurs in the course of normal operations. An example of quality performance is the quality service and efficiency standards that the finance department has implemented. Another example of such monitoring includes management's review and approval of accounts payable on a weekly basis and the procedures and subsequent reporting by the independent auditors.

F. Record Management

Record Retention

The state archive of Colorado publishes the *Colorado General Records Management Manual* which the County finance department uses as a guideline for record management. The records management process allows for the legal preservation or disposal of records as required by statutes. Each County department is responsible for the maintenance of their own record retention policy. This policy pertains only to financial documents maintained specifically by the finance department. The policy is as follows:

- 1. No record shall be destroyed or disposed of so long as it pertains to any pending legal case, claim, action, or audit.
- 2. Federal financial assistance recipients are required to retain records as prescribed by the federal Grants Management Common Rule, which requires financial and programmatic records, supporting documents, statistical records, and other records of grantees or sub-grantees to be retained for no less than THREE years. Departments receiving such federal assistance are responsible for maintaining these records, not the finance department. The finance department may assist in providing such records to the department when reasonable.
- 3. Accounts payable documentation will be retained for no less than SEVEN years. Documents may be retained in either paper or electronic form.
- 4. Audit workpapers will be retained for no less than FIVE years. Workpapers may be retained in either paper or electronic form.
- 5. The complete County record retention schedule is kept by the Attorney's office and lists all records maintained by the County and how long they need to be kept.
- 6. When records have exceeded the minimum retention schedule it is legal to destroy records.
- 7. Records can be destroyed by shredding, burning (where no local burn ordinance is in effect), recycling, or landfill. Records that are confidential by nature should be destroyed by shredding, or they can be destroyed professionally by a company that can certify to secure destruction.
- 8. Permanent records may be microfilmed or imaged and placed on an optical disk.

Open Records Requests

It is the policy of the BoCC that all public records shall be open to inspection by any person at reasonable times, except as provided by the Colorado Public Records Act, or as otherwise specifically provided by law. Requests may be submitted in person, via regular mail or via facsimile. Open records requests should be submitted to the official custodian of records for a particular department or to the person who is believed to be the custodian of the requested records using the Open Records Request form found on the Eagle County website. For complete details, see the Eagle County Open Records Policy also found on the "Attorney" page of the Eagle County website, <u>www.eaglecounty.us</u>.

<u>Open Book</u>

Open Book is Eagle County's online tool designed to allow taxpayers to view County revenues, expenditures and budgets in a transparent, easy-to-use format. Information on the website allows users to browse by budgets, expenditures, vendors or purchasing card transactions. Data presented in Open Book is unaudited information and is therefore subject to change.

G. Special Functions

<u>Efficiency</u>

The finance department will endeavor to achieve service levels that will make County accounting systems easier to use, improve efficiencies and be more effective. Finance has adopted a continuous improvement mission and will, therefore, continue to look for and implement the most cost effective and reliable accounting methods and procedures. In order to achieve this, the finance department will assist in the implementation of necessary internal control safeguards for other departments and elected offices in order to achieve reliable, efficient processes that protect County assets.

Interdepartmental Charges

Inter-fund interdepartmental charges are processed through New World and require proper invoicing and approval from the charging and paying departments, respectively. Charges between departments/offices within a fund will generally not be done unless there is a compelling financial reason. Such reasons shall include the need to allocate expenses for grant reimbursements, state program reimbursements, or any other need related to the collection of revenues.

Administrative Fees

Charges to certain special revenue and enterprise funds for the general fund administrative costs that they incur are calculated using a Full Cost Allocation Plan. Revisions to the Full Cost Allocation Plan are considered by the BoCC on an annual basis during the budget process. Administrative fees are charged to the funds on a monthly basis using a journal entry.

<u>Postage</u>

Central postage is absorbed by the general fund. Postage provided for non-general fund departments will be charged to those departments/funds. In addition, certain general fund programs are charged because their grants and reimbursements are designed to cover these costs.

Office Supplies and Coffee

Departments are responsible for ordering their own office and operating supplies. Coffee for general fund departments is absorbed in the purchasing department. Non-general fund departments charge coffee to the administrative department of their respective funds and may or may not purchase coffee independently.

V. EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

Expenditure Policy Statement

Directors and elected officials must monitor actual expenditures versus budgeted appropriations for each requested payment and are responsible for assuring that spending does not exceed budget authorization. Responsibilities might be delegated to management staff for the approval of financial transactions; however, such delegation does not relieve directors and elected officials of the responsibility for financial management. Budget surpluses may not be used as justification for increased spending in the classification experiencing the surplus or any other. As part of the internal control system, the finance department requires director, elected official or manager signature authorization (in either physical or electronic form) for the following financial transactions: purchasing, payment to vendors, posting corrections, payroll approval, purchasing card approval, cash advances, petty cash payments, reimbursements to employees, and any other transaction that uses budgeted funds under the director/elected official/manager's control.

A. Purchasing

Individual departments/offices perform their own purchasing activities for all other goods and services not explicitly mentioned in the list below. Items purchased must coincide with what has been budgeted and appropriated for that item's government accounting classification.

The following is a list of departments responsible for a few specific functions of purchasing pertaining to the County:

- Motor pool is responsible for the purchase of all vehicles and heavy equipment (excluding the Airport equipment).
- Facilities is responsible for the purchase of all furniture and fixtures for County facilities; for managing all capital projects related to buildings and grounds (excluding the Airport); and for managing both property and casualty insurance programs with assistance from the finance department.
- Airport is responsible for purchasing its own equipment and maintaining its facilities.
- Human resources is responsible for the purchasing and contracting with all Commissioner-approved employee benefit program vendors. Human resources must work with the County manager, finance director, and/or BoCC as necessary prior to changing any employee benefit programs.
- Information technology coordinates purchasing computer software and equipment in conjunction with the department purchasing such equipment.
- MFDs (copiers, printers, etc.) may only be obtained from one of two approved vendors. Departments may order equipment after consulting with information technology and finance.

Bids and Quotations – The Board of County Commissioners has adopted Guidelines for Purchasing and Contracting through Resolution No. 2014-003 (available on ecoNet). This resolution provides guidance on when projects must obtain documented quotes, when projects must go to formal bid, the application of local preferences, the selection criteria, and acceptable exceptions to the contracting process. Additionally, Administrative Policy 2014-001 (available on ecoNet) provides additional detail on the contracting and purchasing processes. Departments and elected offices are expected to follow these procedures and guidelines, as may be amended from time to time, unless an exception has been authorized by the BoCC, County manager, or County attorney. Bid and quotation policies and guidelines can be found on ecoNet.

Purchase Approvals – All purchases must be based on budgeted appropriations. Any purchases that require a contract between the County and a third party must adhere to the County attorney's office contract policies and procedures as outlined by the attorney's office. Departments may also utilize the purchase order module in New World to encumber budget dollars for large purchases and to meet vendor requirements.

Receiving and Inspection – All County supplies, materials, and equipment are to be shipped to and received at a County facility. Items purchased with County funds are not to be shipped to any employees' or officials' personal residence or business. The receiving department/office inspects all goods in a timely manner to assure goods are in conformance with the order. Any goods not in compliance with the order, such as: damaged goods, goods of unacceptable quality, incorrect quantity, missing parts, etc., are to be returned or resolved with the vendor immediately by the receiving department. It is the receiving department's director's responsibility to ensure that all purchases are for legitimate County business and that expenses conform to the approved budget purpose.

B. Payments

Payments to Vendors

Invoices – Invoice payment information and supporting documents will be entered and approved by the initiating department/office and presented to the finance department for payment. The finance department will return any request for payment which does not have adequate supporting documents, causes the budgeted "line item classification" to go over-budget, does not have adequate authorization, is not classified correctly, or does not meet any other internal control standards. All invoices require a second level of approval at the department level by either the department director

or an appointee. Invoices are to be submitted to the finance department no later than five o'clock PM on Tuesdays (adjusted for holidays) and checks will be printed and mailed no later than Friday of that same week (adjusted for holidays). Departments/offices may elect to have checks returned to their department/office, rather than mailed out directly, by selecting the "internal check pick-up" option during invoice entry.

Hand Checks – The finance department provides a "hand check" process for emergency spending. All requested "hand checks" must be approved by the finance director, financial accounting manager or an appointee of the finance director. The finance director will record and report excessive "hand check" activity to the County manager for remedial management action.

Purchasing Cards - County employees may be given a County credit card ("purchasing card"), at the discretion of their director. All employees in possession of a County purchasing card must sign the user agreement and comply with all regulations laid out therein. Receipts for all purchases must be kept and submitted as part of the monthly approval process prior to payment of the Visa bill. Purchases made for County purposes are tax exempt. And while not all purchases will be able to be made without tax (certain states and entities do not recognize Colorado Sales Tax Exemptions), employees should make an effort to avoid payment of sales tax whenever possible. As laid out in the user agreement, County purchasing cards may *only* be used for official County business that has been budgeted and approved *prior* to purchase. Authorization to use the card may be withheld or revoked by Eagle County Government at any time. Further, Eagle County Government reserves the right to investigate any purchases made with the card at any time. The cardholder has no rights of privacy in regards to purchases made on the County purchasing card.

Posting Corrections – General ledger account coding errors may occur during the processing of payments to vendors and/or employees. Department directors, elected officials, or department delegates, are responsible for the identification of such errors within the department and area of responsibility. The finance department is responsible for validating, coordinating and posting the correction of such errors once the request and all required documentation has been received. The finance department establishes procedures as deemed necessary to effectively perform such corrections and maintains a record of corrections by year and journal number. Posting correction forms/requests can be found on ecoNet.

Refunds of Expenditures – An overpayment or incorrect payment to a vendor will be deposited as an ROE (Refund of Expenditure) against the account number used in the initial purchase. Departments should provide the warrant from the vendor and the appropriate information to the finance department. The finance department designee will enter the information into revenue collections and bring both the revenue collection form and the warrant to Treasury for deposit. No deposits will be made to credit an expense account other than verified and approved ROEs.

Payments to Employees

Payroll - The payroll function is split between human resources and the finance department as explained below.

Human resources shall be responsible for maintaining all employee information, including personal employee information, benefit programs and options, wage rates, and employee tax information. Finance is responsible for verification of submitted electronic time sheets, payroll related changes and corrections from departments, and the actual processing of payroll through the ADP Software Portal. All departments/offices must submit individual employee time records through the Time and Attendance system by the assigned time each pay period. Finance performs a final review on all submitted time records before payroll is calculated and finalized each pay period.

The finance director reviews and publishes payroll data as required by State statute and as authorized by the BoCC as part of its appropriated budget.

Travel and Business Expense - Employees will be reimbursed for approved out-of-pocket expenses related to County business. Such expenses include, but are not necessarily limited to, mileage reimbursement for County-related business travel in a personal vehicle, reimbursed at the IRS mileage reimbursement rate at the time of travel; and travel accommodations, including flights, hotels, parking, and other transportation during business travel. During business travel, employee meals are reimbursable at rates stated in the Eagle County Employee Handbook. Meals purchased within 50 miles of employees' home offices during the course of normal daily business are not considered business travel and may only be charged to the County when there has been specific management approval prior to purchase. Per the Eagle County Employee Handbook, employees may never charge the purchase of alcohol to the County, either directly or through reimbursement. Employees may use their County purchasing card while traveling to avoid approved out-of-pocket expenses and will then not need to be reimbursed. Whether employees choose to be reimbursed for business expenses or to use their purchasing card, the same expenditure policies apply, including turning in receipts for all purchases and clearly stating the business purpose and attendees of all meals, and will be reviewed and enforced by department directors and the finance department during internal audits. Any violation of employee reimbursements or travel and business expense being charged to the County purchasing card may result in personnel action and the repayment of the expenditures in question. The complete travel and business expense policy, as well as detailed explanation of gualified mileage reimbursements, is available to all employees on ecoNet and is updated regularly by both finance and human resources as needed. Beyond this financial policy and the regulations detailed in the complete travel and business expense policy, it is the responsibility of department directors and elected officials to set, and enforce, policies for their offices regarding appropriate use of budgeted dollars for business and staff meeting food purchases. It is at the discretion of the department director/elected official when funds may be used for business and/or staff meetings within 50 miles of the home office. Per IRS regulations: receipts, attendees, and the business purpose of meetings, meals, travel, etc. must be documented and filed for all reimbursable travel and business expenses, without exception.

Cash advances – Cash advances will only be provided for expenses directly related to the conduct of official County business. The department director and the finance director must approve all cash advances. Within 30 days of receiving a cash advance, the recipient is responsible for providing supporting documentation, including but not limited to receipts, business purpose, and attendees of any meals, for the resulting expenditures and/or returning unused funds.

C. Expenditure Reporting

Unclaimed Property

Unclaimed money is tangible property that has been abandoned by the owner for one or more years. Some examples of property that can become abandoned and might be considered unclaimed property are: payroll checks, vendor checks, and over-payment or refund checks.

Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) Title 38: Article 13, Unclaimed Property Act requires the County to notify on all personal property that is considered abandoned or unclaimed and remit funds on property over \$25 in value to the State Treasurer for deposit by November 1st of each year. Though state statute allows the County to keep unclaimed property less than \$25 in value issued up to three years prior to remittance, Eagle County finance has committed to remit all unclaimed property to the state regardless of dollar amount by November 1st of each year. Before filing an unclaimed property report, the County must send written notice to the owner at the owner's last known address not more than 120 days prior to submission of the report. All property is turned over to the state treasurer's office annually by the deadline mentioned above, after the department has exhausted all alternatives to ensure the money is delivered to the appropriate owner.

D. Payment Reports

The finance director will review and publish a report detailing all payments to all vendors

monthly, as required by state statute, in the Eagle Valley Enterprise newspaper. These reports are also available electronically on the Eagle County website. Weekly payment reports are also reviewed by the finance director and County manager.

E. Petty Cash

<u>Petty Cash</u>

The finance department will authorize "cash drawers" (from here on referred to as petty cash) for County departments/offices as required and in sufficient amounts to conduct public business. It is the responsibility of each department director or elected official to balance cash regularly and retain sufficient documentation to fully explain the basis and nature of each transaction. The use of funds must be properly recorded in New World to maintain complete financial transaction information.

The finance department maintains a petty cash check system to provide for emergency spending needs of less than \$1,000 (regular hand checks will be used for larger dollar amounts). As directed by the finance director, exceptions will be allowed under certain circumstances. Petty cash checks will be charged to the requesting department/office through the standard accounts payable process to reimburse any petty cash funds used.

VI. REVENUE MANAGEMENT

Revenue Management Policy

The County follows a policy of prompt and efficient collection of taxes, fees, and other revenues and strives to maintain a simple revenue structure in order to reduce compliance costs for the taxpayers while ensuring the County's ability to provide ongoing services. The finance department and the treasurer's office coordinate in the development of adequate deposit procedures for County departments.

A. Revenue Sources

Revenue Diversification for Fiscal Sustainability

Generally, current revenues fund current expenditures. The County maintains diverse revenue sources and a multi-year forecasting system to help ensure stability so as to protect programs and services from short-term fluctuations in the cash flows of any single revenue source. The goal is that the County will be able to continue necessary programs and services to its citizens. A Financial Advisory Board consisting of citizens, who are various subject matter experts in the County, assists in the development of conservative financial assumptions supporting the multi-year forecasts. The finance department is responsible for maintaining these forecasts as well as cash flow records and reconciliations. Monthly cash reports are provided to management showing current cash balances and a brief financial analysis of these balances.

Property Taxes

The County's single largest source of discretionary revenues is property taxes. The County's goal is to maintain a secured property tax collection rate of at least 99% in the year levied. Property taxes are determined through the assessment of property values in accordance with Colorado Statutes and multiplied times the appropriate mill levies assigned to those properties, as described earlier in this document.

<u>Sales Taxes</u>

The County's second single largest source of discretionary revenues is sales taxes. The County's sales tax rate is 1.5% and receives these taxes directly from the State approximately one and a half months after the end of the month for which the taxes are collected. The finance department uses historical records and it's forecasting system to project cash flows from sales taxes. In addition, the finance department reports the sales tax receipts to County personnel on a monthly basis with

appropriate analyses. The finance department prepares this report within days of receiving the collection report from the State.

Fees and Charges

All fees established by the County for licenses, permits, fines, services, applications, and other miscellaneous charges shall, whenever possible and within the law, be set to recover all or the maximum reasonable portion of the County's expense in providing the associated service. The County's expense includes all direct and indirect costs, such as depreciation, supervision, clerical support, and all other costs as calculated in the cost allocation plan. These fees are reviewed at least annually by the County departments and with the assistance of the finance department, in order to determine the impact of inflation and other cost increases.

<u>Transfers</u>

The Finance department is responsible for analyzing the elasticity and diversity of the revenue stream and for determination of cash distribution or transfers to and from funds.

Grant Revenue

Each department is responsible for the preparation and submission of grant proposals and for complying with all grant management and reporting requirements. All potential grants shall be carefully examined by the submitting department for matching requirements (dollars, maintenance- of-effort, and in-kind matches), and funding sources identified for the out years once grant funds are reduced or eliminated.

Future funding obligations required by grants must be identified prior to grant acceptance by the Board. The County shall seek grants and other funding opportunities which provide maximum leverage of County monies while minimizing commitments requiring recurring County fiscal expenditures.

Each department is also responsible for providing all necessary grant information to the County's financial accounting manager immediately upon receipt of the grant award and during the course of the audit to the external auditor.

Miscellaneous Collections

The Finance department and treasurer's office will pursue and coordinate collection functions for, including but not limited to:

- Use of collection agencies
- Short check fees
- Late payment charges
- Interest charges
- Payroll and/or benefit overpayments

B. Revenue Reporting

Timeliness of Deposits

All funds received will be receipted into New World Systems and deposited to treasury, or other financial software and banking institution, as it may apply, no more than three days after receiving the funds. Funds must be receipted into the financial software and to the bank on the same business day for reporting purposes. Funds may be received in the form of cash, check, warrant or wire.

Basis of Accounting

Throughout the fiscal year, revenue will be receipted using the cash basis of accounting, unless the receiving department uses the accounts receivable billing module. The general ledger date in the financial software will be the same as the day the funds are deposited to treasury/the bank. All revenue received in the first sixty (60) days of the following fiscal period that was earned and recognizable in the previous period will be accrued according to GAAP and in compliance with government financial

reporting requirements.

VII. INSURANCE and RISK MANAGEMENT

A. Policy

The County recognizes and accepts its legal responsibility to manage risks effectively and has adopted a proactive approach to well thought-through risk taking. The effective management of risk is therefore at the heart of the County's approach to delivering cost effective and valued services to the public as well as sound County governance. Consequently, all staff must understand the importance of well thought-through and managed risks in decision making and adopt an approach that will help identify, assess, take action to manage them and review progress.

Some risk-taking is necessary to optimize public value creation. All organizations face risk. Well managed risk-taking should be recognized by all managers and staff within the County as being fundamentally important to effective service delivery, maximizing opportunities for innovation in service development and adapting to change.

B. Division of Responsibility

The County manager has split the insurance management functions as follows:

Property and Casualty Insurance	\rightarrow	Facilities	
---------------------------------	---------------	------------	--

Worker's Compensation Insurance \rightarrow Human Resources

The facilities department is responsible for property and casualty insurance and performs the following related functions:

Develops and maintains the operating policies and procedures.

Maintains adequate systems for preventing, controlling, recording, and reporting all insurance matters.

Processes and reviews all claims.

Provides appropriate loss control and safety programs.

Reviews the insurance coverage, deductibles, and risk management programs at least annually.

Evaluates and bids insurance services at least every five years.

The human resources department is responsible for worker's compensation insurance and performs the following related functions:

Develops and maintains the operating policies and procedures.

Maintains adequate systems for preventing, controlling, recording, and reporting all insurance matters.

Processes and reviews all claims.

Provides appropriate loss control and safety programs.

Reviews the insurance/risk management program at least annually.

Evaluates and bids insurance services at least every five years.

The County attorney's office may be delegated the responsibility of claims management for major liability insurance claims, property losses, or claims involving death or serious bodily injury.

VIII. DEBT MANAGEMENT

A. Policy

The finance department maintains adequate systems for controlling, recording, and reporting to properly manage all debt. This includes both County-originated debt and Local Improvement District originated debt. Debt management includes bonded debt, lease purchases, certificates of participation, and any other forms of debt. These programs are reviewed at least annually.

B. Structure

The BoCC directs that the use of debt be limited to major capital projects, generally greater than \$1,000,000 in cost. The BoCC also directs the finance director to evaluate all requests to incur debt and to make recommendations regarding the effects of approval on the County's overall financial position.

The finance director shall maintain communication with financial consultants, underwriters, bond rating agencies, paying agents, etc., regarding the County's debt structure.

Ordinarily, the County incurs debt in one of four forms:

- 1. General Obligation Bonds
- 2. Revenue Bonds
- 3. Certificates of Participation
- 4. Lease/purchase Agreements

General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds represent a commitment to fund debt service payments from property taxes, and as such, require voter approval in addition to BoCC review. In order to maintain present high credit ratings, the County policy is not to incur any general obligation debt.

Revenue Bonds

Revenue bonds represent a commitment to fund debt service payments from a specific nonproperty tax revenue source, such as sales tax, and require voter approval in addition to BoCC approval for all government-related activities. Enterprise funds may incur debt if sufficient revenue is available to service the debt, as explained in more detail below.

Certificates of Participation

Certificates of participation represent a commitment by the County to fund a non-binding lease with an outside authority. The lease payments are made from unrestricted funds (unassigned, assigned, or committed funds). A source of unrestricted revenue must be identified to ensure that future lease payments can be made without interruption.

Lease/Purchase Agreements

Lease/purchase agreements represent a general commitment to fund payments from County revenues. Lease/purchase agreements require voter approval under the TABOR Amendment unless appropriate "funding out" terms are included. The only leases the County is allowed to enter into are for printers and copiers where the specified vendors have approved the "funding out" terms in their master lease.

C. Long Term Debt Financing Factors

The use of debt is limited to major capital projects that are within an enterprise fund or are mandated by State or Federal agencies. Certificates of participation are used when a revenue source is available within the County's long-range operational forecasts. Revenue bonds are used for enterprise funds only when an adequate long-term revenue source is available for servicing the debt. In all cases, revenues available for debt issues must be considered sufficient and reliable such that long-term financing may be marketed with an appropriate credit rating, which can be maintained. In addition, market conditions must present favorable interest rates and demand for County debt financing. Debt is only incurred when a project is: 1) immediately required to meet or relieve capacity needs, 2) existing un-programmed cash reserves are insufficient to pay project costs, and/or 3) the life of the project is 5 years or longer.

Refunding Factors

The debt portfolio will be monitored on a semi-annual basis by the finance director for refunding opportunities. Refunding will be used when legally allowable and when any of the following conditions are present: significant savings may be achieved, anticipated revenues call for a change in the debt service structure, or when the County may desire a change in a bond covenant.

Arbitrage Compliance

Arbitrage occurs when the funds received from a bond are reinvested at a higher interest rate than that which is paid to the bond investors. Taxes must be paid on any profits derived by the County from such reinvestment. Reports are required for each bond on every five year anniversary of the bond issue date. The finance director will contract with an arbitrage compliance consulting firm to ensure proper calculation and compliance with IRS arbitrage regulations.

D. Interfund Borrowing

Interfund borrowings may occur for temporary cash flow reasons and are not intended to result in a transfer of financial resources. Any interfund borrowings from one fund to another must be approved by the BoCC by resolution. In such cases, a loan agreement between the funds will be included and attached to the BoCC resolution containing repayment terms, interest rates, due dates, etc.

IX. FIXED ASSET MANAGEMENT

A. Capitalization Policy

All assets acquired and owned by the County having a value of \$10,000 or more and a life expectancy of greater than one year, as well as capital leases, are considered a fixed asset by the County. All fixed asset purchases require approval by the BoCC and may be considered for funding from the Capital Improvement Fund.

B. Care of Assets

Department directors and elected officials are responsible for the care of all County assets in their department/office. Annually, the finance department may request that each department director and elected official take a physical inventory of all assets including fixed assets within their department as identified in the County financial records. The finance department audits the asset inventories of selected departments/offices annually, or as needed.

Motor pool develops and maintains operating policies and procedures to ensure adequate care of all vehicle and heavy equipment fixed assets.

C. Disposal of Assets

Surplus items which are not included as fixed assets shall be forwarded to the facilities department for disposal. The facilities department must advertise and then sell these items formally.

Surplus items which are included as fixed assets shall be forwarded to the facilities department for disposal. The facilities department must use the formal process statutorily required for the disposal of fixed assets. Each department director or elected official releasing surplus fixed assets must notify the finance department of asset numbers of the affected items by completing an asset disposal form.

Prior to advertising the sale of any assets, the facilities department shall circulate a list of the items to each department director and elected official. Any department director or elected official having a use for any such items may obtain them by requesting an asset transfer.

D. Commodities

Certain commodities, such as gasoline and motor parts, are expensed when purchased. Any amount of the purchased commodity that is not consumed at year end will be treated as inventory assets in the annual financial reports. The finance department is responsible for determining which commodities are treated in this manner.

X. CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

A. Policy

All purchases must be based on budgeted appropriations. Resolution 2014-003 provides the complete guidelines for County purchasing and contracts and is available on the ecoNet under the "Attorney" page.

B. Terms and Conditions

The attorney's office will provide guidance regarding the "terms and conditions" required for contract agreements. The attorney's page on ecoNet also provides links and documents to guide departments through the entire contract process. Attorney review is required on all draft contracts prior to obtaining vendor signature of County manager/BoCC signature. The attorney's office is the point of contact for all contract-related items.

XI. CODE OF PROFESSIONAL ETHICS

A. Policy

The finance department uses the Government Finance Officers Association "Code of Professional Ethics" for guidance in ethical matters. Specifically, the following sections are readily applicable to the finance department's ethical operations:

- Personal Standards
- Responsibility as Public Officials
- Professional Development
- Professional Integrity-Information
- Professional Integrity-Relationships
- Conflict of Interest

B. Government Finance Officers Association "Code of Professional Ethics"

Personal Standards

Government finance officers shall demonstrate and be dedicated to the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all public and personal relationships to merit the respect, trust, and confidence of governing officials, other public officials, employees, and of the public.

- They shall devote their time, skills, and energies to their office both independently and in cooperation with other professionals.
- They shall abide by approved professional practices and recommended standards.

Responsibility as Public Officials

**The GFOA code of professional ethics offers guidelines for public officials; however, Eagle County Government public officials are governed by and abide by the statutory code of conduct found in Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) 24-18-101. For this reason, we have omitted section

II. Responsibility as Public Officials content to avoid confusion and/or contradiction within County policy.

Professional Development

Government finance officers shall be responsible for maintaining their own competence, for enhancing the competence of their colleagues, and for providing encouragement to those seeking to enter the field of government finance. Finance officers shall promote excellence in the public service.

Professional Integrity-Information

Government finance officers shall demonstrate professional integrity in the issuance and management of information.

- They shall not knowingly sign, subscribe to, or permit the issuance of any statement or report which contains any misstatement or which omits material fact.
- They shall prepare and present statements and financial information pursuant to applicable practices and guidelines.
- They shall respect and protect privileged information to which they have access by virtue of their office.
- They shall be sensitive and responsive to inquiries from the public and the media, within the framework of state or local government policy.

Professional Integrity-Relationships

Government finance officers shall act with honor, integrity, and virtue in all professional relationships.

- They shall exhibit loyalty and trust in the affairs and interests of the government they serve, within the confines of this Code of Ethics.
- They shall not knowingly be a party to, or condone, any illegal or improper activity.
- They shall respect the rights, responsibilities and integrity of their colleagues and other public officials with whom they work and associate.
- They shall manage all matters of personnel within the scope of their authority so that fairness and impartiality govern their decisions.
- They shall promote equal employment opportunities, and in doing so, oppose any discrimination, harassment, or other unfair practices.

Conflict of Interest

Government finance officers shall actively avoid the appearance of, or the fact of, conflicting interests.

- They shall discharge their duties without favor and shall refrain from engaging in any outside matters of financial or personal interest incompatible with the impartial and objective performance of their duties.
- They shall not, directly or indirectly, seek or accept personal gain which would influence, or appear to influence, the conduct of their official duties.
- They shall not use public property or resources for personal or political gain.

XII. POLICY REVISIONS

This Financial Management Policies manual shall be reviewed by the finance director, the County manager, and the BoCC regularly and as needed and may be amended as conditions warrant. Amendments to this manual may be updated by the finance director as necessary, with approval from the County manager and the BoCC.

XIII. INTERNET / ECONET INFORMATION POLICY

It is the policy of the finance office to update the departmental information on the <u>eaglecounty.us</u> publicly-available website and the internal ecoNet website on an ongoing basis. As information becomes available, or is updated, the finance office will publish the updates on the appropriate website within three business days.

A. Investment Policies

Investment policies are maintained by the treasurer's office and approved by the BoCC. Eagle County investment policies are designed to protect principal and eliminate the possibility of loss. The investment policies are available upon request of the treasurer.

B. Cash Management Policy

Cash management policies are maintained by the treasurer's office and approved by the BoCC. These policies include regulations involving, but not limited to: the location of cash; daily transactions; balancing procedures; daily deposits; refunds; non-sufficient funds policy; redemption policy; security policy; and account reconciliation. The cash management policy is read and signed by each Eagle County treasurer employee to ensure compliance. The policy is available upon request of the treasurer.

XV. HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES

A. Compensation Policies

Compensation policies and procedures are maintained by the human resources department and approved by the BoCC. These procedures explain the determination and adjusting of employee salaries and can be found on the ecoNet. These policies and procedures are updated as needed by the human resources department.

B. Employee Benefits

Employee benefit policies are maintained by the human resources department and are available to County staff on the ecoNet.

C. Recruiting and new FTE Policies

Policies managing the recruitment of new employees and requests to fill vacant positions are maintained by the human resources department. These policies and procedures are available to all County staff on the ecoNet and are updated as needed by the human resources department.

Glossary of Terms

Accrual Basis: A basis of accounting in which transactions are recognized at the time they are incurred, as opposed to when cash is received or spent.

Adopted Budget: Required by Colorado Local Government Budget Law. The budget is an annual financial plan for county operations showing all expected revenues and expenditures to be in balance. The adopted budget refers to the budget amounts as approved by the Board of County Commissioners.

Amended Budget: Budget which includes changes to the adopted budget that are approved by the Board of County Commissioners during the course of a year.

Appropriation: Spending authority established by legislative action or executive order for amounts that may be disbursed from a fund, program, or expenditure account for a particular purpose during a specific period of time.

Assessed Valuation: The valuation set upon real estate and certain personal property by the assessor as a basis for levying property taxes.

Balanced Budget: When the total sum of money a government collects in a year is equal to the amount it spends on goods and services. No budget adopted shall provide for expenditures in excess of available revenues and beginning fund balances.

Basis of Accounting: The timing of when the effects of transactions or events should be recognized for financial reporting purposes.

Budget Amendment: Increase or decrease in an appropriation.

Board of County Commissioners (BoCC): The three person elected body that governs Eagle County.

Budgetary Basis: The basis of accounting used to estimate financing sources and uses in the budget.

C.R.S.: Colorado Revised Statutes, which contains all laws enacted by the Colorado state legislature.

Capital Outlay and Leases (Expenditure): All assets acquired and owned by the county having a value of \$10,000 or more and a life expectancy of greater than one year, as well as capital leases, are considered a fixed asset by the county.

Certificates of Participation (COP): A type of financing used by governmental entities which allows an individual to buy a share of the lease revenue of an agreement made by the entity. Certificates of Participation do not add to a government's general obligation debt.

Charges for Services (Revenue Source): This revenue source includes all fees established by the county for licenses, permits, fines, services, applications, and other miscellaneous charges some of which are state mandated and some are county imposed. This classification includes the majority of mandated fees for revenue received by the Clerk's office for motor vehicle and Recording and the Treasurer's office for internal and external fees. The county imposed include fees for ECGTV, Building, Animal Services, ECO Transit, Airport, and Landfill to name a few.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR): A set of financial statements for a state, municipality or other county governmental entity that complies with the accounting requirements established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Federal Grants (Revenue Source): Grants given by an agency of the Federal government. This revenue source includes funding for Early Head Start, Human Services programs, ECO Operating and bus purchase, Airport runway and apron projects, and Public Health programs.

Fixed Assets: Assets with a value of \$10,000 or more and a life expectancy of greater than one year, as well as capital leases, are considered a fixed asset by the County.

Full Time Equivalent (FTE): A full time equivalent employee is one that is budgeted to work 2,080 hours in a year. Less than 1.0 FTE is calculated based upon the number of hours worked, so a 0.5 FTE will be budgeted to work 1,040 hours in a year.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP): The set of rules that encompass the details, complexities, and legalities of accounting.

Grants and Contributions Issued (Expenditure): These expenditures include contributions to United Way, Highway 6 study, monies paid to the school districts for their portion of the PILT funding, Environmental Health and Sustainable Communities for Eagle River Watershed Council, Energy Smart rebates and other related environmental issues, a donation for the I-70 interchange upgrade and payments to Roaring Fork Transit and Trails for Eagle County portions of the sales taxes collected and a donation to Walking Mountains from the Landfill fund.

Insurance Premiums and Proceeds (Revenue Source): This includes proceeds from casualty and property insurance claims and health insurance rebate revenue.

Interdepartmental Services (Expenditure): Payments for services rendered made on county department or fund to another. These expenditures would include motor pool fund charges for vehicle maintenance and replacement, departmental health insurance costs and administrative fees.

Interest Expense: This expenditure is for the interest for the Justice Center, Air Terminal Corporation Revenue Bonds, Lake Creek Village Debt and Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation debt.

Interfund Transfers in (Revenue Source): Contributions from one county fund to another in support of activities of the receiving fund. This includes transfers for capital projects and funding for the public health fund.

Intergovernmental (Revenue Source): This revenue source includes Sheriff revenue received for services to towns (Minturn and Gypsum), Road and Bridge Highway Users tax, Cost Allocation Plan and Airport sales tax for fuel.

Intergovernmental Expenditures (Expenditure): Services purchased from other government agencies, normally including types of services that only government agencies provide. These would include funding for the District Attorney, dispatch services for the Sheriff's office, Walking Mountains Outdoor Movement pass through grant, Road and Bridge transfers to towns for their portion of the property taxes collected by Eagle County, Landfill surcharges to Colorado Department of Health and E911 Town of Vail communication charges..

Internal Service Fund Charges (Revenue Source): Fees that are charged to other county departments by the general fund (Administrative Fees), Motor Pool (replacement, fuel and maintenance) and health insurance costs.

Investment Earnings (Revenue Source): The Treasurer is responsible for investing all excess funds for all Eagle County funds.

Licenses, Permits, Sales and Fines (Revenue Source): These include liquor licenses, recording fees, marijuana permits and licenses, various fines for Sheriff activities, retail food establishments, wholesale/broker recycle sales and landfill.

Miscellaneous (Revenue Source): Includes all other unexpected revenue received.

Mobile Intercultural Resource Alliance (MIRA): The MIRA RV is a rolling clearinghouse for services available in Eagle County. Examples include basic health education and screenings, application support for public assistance programs, food resources, workforce development, early-childhood education coordination and physical activity programming.

Payments in Lieu of Taxes (Revenue Source): Federal payments to local governments that help offset losses in property taxes due to non-taxable Federal lands within Eagle County boundaries.

Principal Payments (Expenditure): This expenditure is for the COP for the Justice Center, Air Terminal Corporation Revenue Bonds, Lake Creek Village Debt and Golden Eagle Elderly Housing Corporation Debt principal payments.

Proceeds of Capital Asset Dispositions (Revenue Source): This revenue source includes monies received on all sales of county owned assets across all funds.

Property Taxes (Revenue Source): This revenue source includes all property tax collected by Eagle County. Eagle County's total mill levy is 8.499 mills which is split between several funds. Also included within this classification are any delinquent taxes collected and interest thereon and abatements issued.

Purchased Services (Expenditure): This includes all services utilized by all Eagle County departments, such as utilities, legal, security and building maintenance.

Rents and Royalties (Revenue Source): These are fees charged to tenants. The majority of these rents are charged by the housing corporations for apartment leases and charges to airlines and car rental agencies for space at the airport.

Salaries and Benefits (Expenditure): Amounts paid for personnel services rendered by employees in accordance with rates, hours, terms and conditions authorized by law or stated in employment contracts. This classification also includes overtime, temporary help, taxes, employer paid retirement and health insurance.

Sales and Use Taxes (Revenue Source): This revenue source includes all sales tax collected by Eagle County through both its 1% voter approved sales tax and its 0.5% vote approved mass transit tax. It also includes other sales and use taxes such as the county collected marijuana sales and excise taxes (approved by voters in 2017), specific ownership (motor vehicle purchases) and state collected marijuana sales taxes.

State and Local Grants (Revenue Source): These grants are primarily received to provide goods and services for Early Head Start and Public Health.

Supplies (Expenditure): This expenditure includes costs of all departments office supplies, furniture and small equipment purchases. Fuel and diesel purchases are among the largest supply line items.

TABOR (Taxpayer's Bill of Rights): This is an amendment to Article X of Colorado's state constitution which Colorado voters adopted in 1992. TABOR controls the amount of revenue that can be collected and spent, how and which taxes can be raised, and other things.

Training Benefits (Expenditure): To offer educational and professional development opportunities to all Eagle County employees.

Transfers Out (Expenditure): Contributions from one county fund to another in support of activities of the receiving fund. This includes transfers for capital projects and funding for the public health fund.